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We are a leading provider
of communications services
to organisations and
consumers in the UK.

Small and medium-
sized businesses

Supporting small and medium-sized
businesses to explait the benefits of
cloud services

Enterprises

Enabling enterprises to
achieve business outcomes
through technology

Consumers

Helping consumers
live more connected lives




Highlights

Operational highlights

= Performance in line with expectations

« Progress across all key focus areas

» Success of and growth in demand for IP-based "Workplaces'
portfoho, ncluding successful HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC)
implementation and further significant opportunities in pipeline

= Acceleration of fibre deployment in Hull and East Yorkshire,
following continued strong demand for fibre and broadband
services, well ahead of national average

» Business transformation continues to create a more agile

operating model

« Integration of brands to focus investment on growth in
the enterprise, small and medium-sized business (SMB)

and consumer markets

« Continued move towards effective, efficient support services/
back-office operations and implementation of common
systems and processes supports consolidation of teams

Financial highlights

Revenue fm

£3480mM 61%

2015 | 3480 ‘

2014 | 3797 I

Operating profit’ Em

£57.2m so%

zmsl 5712 I
2014 | 550‘
Net debt £m

£99.3m 324%
2015 | 993 |
2014 | 750]

1 Before exceptionals
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page 8

EBITDA'Em

£74.3m 13%
2015 I T4l |
2014 I 753 |

Profit before tax' Em

£51.5m 3.2%

2015 | 515 }

2014 | 499 |

Proposed full year dividend per sharep

5.37p 100%

2015 I 537 t

2014 | 488 |
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Strateqic report

Our business at a glance

We are the partner of choice for organisations
and consumers seeking to harness the power

of communications

Our goal Is to become an acknowledged
leader in the markets we serve and an
automatic partner of choice for
organisations and consumers

In those markets

We aim to help our customers exploit
the communications revolution and its
assocated technologles to improve the
performance of their organisations
and to enhance therr personal
communications experience

Further information.

Our business model
page 10

Market opportunities and trends
page 12

Case studies
pege 15
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Enterprises

We help customers meet their business
needs, growth and cost outcomes through
the integration of collaboration and
communications tools

Our customers in this market include Admural,
Assoaiation of Train Operating Companies
(ATCC), Aviva, Domino’s, HMRC, Kuon,
Morrisons and NFUM

Served by
Smart421 and Kcom




Small and
medium-sized
businesses

Our connectivity and [T services help
businesses operate more efficiently,
provide better customer service and
achieve growth

Qur customers in this market include
Foot Anstey, Furniture Village, Hull College Group,
RNLI, RSPB and The Range

Served by
KC and Eclipse

Consumers

Our broadband-based services help
people communicate and live their lives
In a digital age

Our customers in this market include more than
130,000 households in Hull and East Yorkshire

Served by
KC

KCOM Group PLC 03
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Iilrnlegn: report

Chairman’s statement

We have seen clear progress in terms of
growing customer demand and increased

operational effectiveness

In summary

= Business continues to progress
its transformation

s New Board appointments bring fresh
perspectives and contributions

+ Focus and discussion on strategic milestones
and successton planning

= Continued dividend growth reflects strength
of the business

The executive team
continues to lead the
transformation of
the business

O L| KEOM Group PLC
Annual report and accounts 28314115

Dear shareholder

The business continues to perform well progressing its transformation
Journey to become more tightly focused on the markets in which it
operates While this journey will conbinue inte the coming financial year
we have seen clear progress in terms of growing customer demand and
increased operational effectivenass

Dividend

As a result of this progress and our confidence in the strength of the
business the Board 1s propesing a final dividend of 3 58 pence pes share
(2014 3 25 pence} Subject to shareholder approval at this year s AGM
the final dividend will be paid on 4 August 2015 to shareholders
registered on 26 June 2015 The ex dividend date 1s 25 June 2015

The proposed total dvidend of 5 37 pence per share (2014 4 88 pence)
would result in a sixth year of 10 per cent growth in the total diwvidend
Thus is consistent with the Board s previously stated commitment to
grow full year dvtdends by at least 10 per cent per annum and this
commitment remamns in place until 31 March 2016




Employees have consistently

demonstrated commitment
to delivering inspiring
customer experiences

Strategic focus

As the executive team centinues to lead the transforrmation of the
business a great deal of the Board's time has been focused on evaluating
progress aganst key strategic mifestones We continue to have an
effective Board in place, with debate and constructive challenge on alt
of the key areas of the business Given the strong focus en the strategy
of the Group there has been a standing agenda item at each Board
meeting to discuss strategy with contributions from across the Board

Board appomntments

We reported last year that we were seeking an additional Non-Executive
Director to join the Board and we were delighted to appoint Peter Smith
to the Board in January 2015 Peter brings with him a wealth of
experience In assisting businesses across different industnes in
developing and delivering therr strategles

Earlier this year Martin Towers notified us of his intention to retire from
the Board at the AGM in July 2015 In seeking a successor for Martin s
role we welcomed Liz Barber to the Board i April 2015 She has
sigrificant financial expenence and expertise and will become
Audit Committee Chairman following Martin s departure

We befleve that both Peter and Liz will bring new perspectives to

our Board discussions and will contribute sigaificantly to the ongaing
effectiveness of the Board We used external recruitment consultants
who are completely ndependent of the business for both appointments

Board effectiveness

We continually consider the effectiveness of the Board and have a formal
evaluation annually which in 2014 was performed by an independent
external irm The conclusion from the evaluatien was that we are
operating effectively but there were some minor areas for improvernent
which are detailed further on page 32 We have taken action in all the
areas identified as we strive to be as effective as we can be

We always seek to ensure that we have apprepriate succession plans
1n place both for the Board and for the senior management team
of the business and this has been another regular topc of discussion
during the year

Looking ahead
Over the coming year, there are a number of prionties for the Board

The first is for Peter and Liz to continue to familiarnise themselves with
the business and spend time with members of the serwor management

team We believe that having a cdlear understanding of how the business
operates Is key to the Board s ability to measure progress and contribute

to sts future success

yodas 3\bajong

As the transformation of the business cantinues [ anticipate that a great
deal of the Board s time and focus wili be on reviewing progress against
the key strategic milestones set out by the senior management team

Given the growing dependency on the strength of our people the Board
will increasingly dedicate time to further discussions around succession
ptanning and to making sure that plans are in place te retan and
develop talent

Good governance and responsible business

We believe that good governance 1s essential to the Group and we seek
to adopt best practice in all areas of governance where it 1s possible to
doso We also believe it is vital that the Board lives the values according
to which the Group conducts itself those of being open and considerate
tearn muinded flexible inspinng and innovative 1 believe that our current
Board achieves this and we will seek ta continue to demonstrate these
values (n all that we do

Those values have been embraced by employees and we continue
to have a high level of engagement in community programrmes eight
across the business and particularly in Hull and East Yorkshure

At the end of this year we came to the end of our three year Chanity
Partnership with Sparks dunng which through a wide vanety of
fundraising activities we were able to raise over £235 000 for the
charity This money will support Sparks’ angoing work to fund
pieneenng research into conditions that affect babies children
and mothers to be

At the start of this financial yecr we began our new partnership with
the Teenage Cancer Trust and | am sure that we will see equally
enthusiastic support

Finally 1would like to acknowledge ance more the significant
contribution made by our ernployees An environment of transition and
change inevitably results 0 a level of uncertainty Since we began this
Journey in 2008 our employees have consistently demonstrated their
commitment to delivening INspinng expenences to our customers and

I have every confidence in their ability to rise to the challenges ahead

1 thank them for therr focus hard work and comrmutment

Graham Holden
Non-Executive Chairman
17 June 2015
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Strategic report

CEOQ’s statement

Continued progress as we transform

the business

In summary

+ Progress towards becoming
an integrated business

+ Continue transformation through
tighter focus on three key markets

» Integration of brands to align resource

« Journey continues INto corming year

We continue to
shift towards
sustainable, higher
value services

O 6 KCOM Group PLC
Annual report and accounts 2014415

Dear shareholder

Duning the last year we have continued with the transformation

of the business bullding on the progress made since we began this
journey back 1n 2008 Qur full year financia! results were broadly
as antcipated and [ am pleased to report that there has been
continued progress in our focus areas, as we transform into an
integrated business

within the Keom segment made up of the activities relating to

our Kcom Smart421 and Echipse brands we continued our shift away
from the provision of declining network based vorce and associated
commodity services and towards more sustainable higher value
rmanaged 1P based services Those services included our contract to
provide HMRC with a range of contact centre services exploiing our
investment in cur market leading "Workplaces platform This was
delvered successfully and in place aheod of the personal tax

self assessment deadline at the end of lanuary

We launched also a number of cloud based packages primanly aimed
at small and medium sized businesses These include o managed
Office 365 service with increased levels of custorner support and
tatlored migration Dunng the year owr Eclipse brand became one
of Microsoft s first official Cloud Solution Prowider partners



We will seek to
accelerate the

progress we
have made

Acrass all brands we continue to see growing interest «n our cloud
and collaboration related capabihities

As a result of this continued shift the revenue and margins from
some of our more tradstional legacy activities have continued to
decline Recogrising this and therr dimirishing importance and
contribution to future growth an exceptional imparrment charge
has been recognised against the gocodwill batance associated with
those related historic acquisitions made in 2004

In the KC segment our Lightstream fibre network is supporting
the demand for cloud-based services among SMBs with continued
interest for example in our high definition cdloud based CCTV service
Demand 1s driven also by Hull s incluston in the Government s
Superfast Britain voucher scheme aimed at supporting SMBs with
improved digital connectivity

We have seen continued strong demand for our fibre based services
among consumers in the region with take up well in excess of national
rates As a result, we have taken the decision to accelerate the rate of
deployment and by March 2017 over 100 000 homes will be able to
access the service

We have seen that fibre customers consume over twice as ruch
data compared to those using a standard copper based broadband
connection This demonstrates the growing importance of high
bandwidth connections as customers look to make use of the wide
range of over the top services that are being developed such as
on demand content

While many of those services are developed by third parties we have
begun to develop regienally focused content for consumers Including
coverage of local sporting and cultural events Our content offenng

Is in the early stages of development and we wili be making more
content avallable particularly in the run up to Hull becoming the UK
City of Culture in 2017

These are the key opportunities for future growth and in the coming
year we will seek to acceferate the progress we ve made to date

Ofcom

In March the industry regulator Ofcom ennounced its intention
to undertake a strateqic review of the UK s digital communications
market to ensure that communications providers and services
continue to meel the needs of cansumers and businesses kt will
examine competition tnvestment innovation and the avadability
of products in the broadband mobile and landline markets

uoda a6ajong

The first phase of the review wilt exarmine current and future market
facters that may affect digital communications services, and current
regulatory approaches Ofcom expects to publish a discussion
document in the near future

We will play an active part in this review, continuing our active
and constructive dialogue with the regulator and other
communications providers

Looking ahead

Over the coming year we will continue to tighten our focus on the
three key markets we serve enterprise small and mediurm sized
business and consumer

To do this, we will begin the process of integrating our existing brands
in order to align resources with those target markets and priorntise
Investment more tightly to support our strategic growth areas where
we see increasing opportunity We see this i particular being the
provision of cloud based services the integration of collaborative
systems and therr related consultancy design and integration
achivities and the development of fibre based propoesitions Building on
the progress to date, we will continue consolidating our business wide
operational and support services to remove everlaps and duplication
creating  more scalable agile operating model

Our achievernents so far on the journey are a testament to the
capability comrmutment and coliaboration of everyone across the
business and it (s that strength and combination of qualities that will
see us continue our successful transformation while continuing to
deliver the highest standards of customer service

Bill Halbert
Chief Executive
17 June 2015

KCOM Group PLC
Annual report and accounts 2014/15

07/



Strateqic report

Performance review

The Group is well positioned to deliver value-added

services in our target markets

In summary
« Performance in line with expectations
» Progress across all key focus areas

» Pre exceptional operating profitup 4% to
£572m (2014 £55 Om), reported operating
profit £22 4m (2014 E£55 6m)

« Adjusted basic EPSup 5% to 791p (2014 755p)

« Proposed final dvidend of 3 58p (2014 3 25p)
representing sixth year of at least 10 per cent
dwidend growth

We are increasingly
recognised as a
partner of choice for
the delivery of complex
integration projects

Revenue Em

£348.0m 61%

EBITDA' Em

£/43mM 13%

Operating profit £m

£57.2m sox%

1 Before exceptionals.
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Business update
Businesses of all sizes are looking for a technology partner that can
provide sclutions that deliver against clear business cutcomes

It the enterprise market we are becorming recognised as a partner of
choice for the delivery of complex integration projects as is evidenced
by the successful implemnentation of a private cloud contoct sotution for
HMRC This success reflects our decision toinvest in bigher value services
and migrate the business away from the provision of declimng voice and
volume based connectivity services

Within the SMB market we provide and support a range of subscription
based IT and communicatiens packages We have seen growing demand
parucutarly for doud based services aaoss both new and existing customers
resulting in continued revenue and EBITDA margin growth in this area

In the consumer market, data usage continues to grow exponentially
drving demand for both fibre based and traditional broadband services
Our fibre deployment i Hull and East Yorkshore has achieved take up

of 33 per cent of prermises passed significantly above the national
average Based on this strong demand we have accelerated our
deployment of fibre and by 2017 over 50 per cent of customers will have
access to these services The majonty of our fibre services are delivered
direct to the prerruses allowing us to offer speeds and capacity that can
grow readily to match future customer demand

Set against this progress the revenue and margins from some of our more
tradiitonal legacy activities have continued to dechine Recognising this
and ther dimimshing importance and contribution to future growth
an exceptional non cash impairment charge of £33 9 million has been
recognised against the goodwill balance associoted with the related
acquisitions made in 2004



KC

The KC reporting segment covers communications services for consumers
and SMBs within Hull and East Yorkshire and provides contact centre and
publishing services Key features of the year include

= continued growth i consumer revenue and profitability driven by
growing demand for broadband services and increasing penetration
of bundled products with an accelesating demand for fibee services

= consumer Average Revenue Per User (ARPU) continues to increase
as a result of new broadband customers and fibre take up

« shghtly weaker business performance pipeline strengthening
particutarly for fibre services and

= an expecied lower publishing EBITDA reflecting anticipated decline
in the Hull Colour Pages directary

The fibre deployment across Hull and East Yorkshire continues to achieve
customer take up well in excess of national trends As at 31 April 2015
approximately 48 000 prermises had access to hbre with take up of

33 per cent As aresult we have accelerated our rate of deployment
and by March 2017 we expect to reach 100 000 custorners covering
50 per cent of our network area

Hull1s included in a government funding scheme amed at supparting
SMBs with improved digital cennectivity KC has registered as a provider
under the scheme and since launching on 1 April has achieved 110 sales
with pipeline bullding to 450 registered interests Fibre take up ratesin
the business sector are significantly ahead of inimial expectations

at approximately 50 per cent of premises passed

Kcom

The Kcom reporting segment covers the communication and
collaboration services prowided across the enterprise and SMB activities
{excluding Hull and East Yorkshire) Key features in the year include

» investment in cloud based contact services underpins successful
implementation of HMRC contract within Kcom

« overall revenue and prefit in Kcom brand impacted by continued
decline inlegacy activities

= cloud services contributing to a growing revenue and market share
withun Echipse and

= strategic progress and stionger second half order intake in Smart421
paruculary in doud based integration and consultancy services

The substanual government contract to provide a doud based contact
centre for HMRC was delvered successfully ahead of the 31 January
self assessment deadhne This imtial deployment was the start of our
engagement with HMRC's digital roadmap

Refinancing, net debt and cash flow

During the year the Group refinanced through the agreement of
a £200 milion revolving credit faciity secured on improved terms
This new arrangement which expires on 30 June 2019 provides
sufficient funding to support the Group s growth

Exceptional items
The Group s net exceptional charge ts £34 8 million (see Note 7
to the financial statements} Significant items include

« £33 9 milhon imparment charge against the goodwill balance
of legacy activities assoclated with histonical acquisitions made
in 2004 Thisis a non cash item and ts treated as exceptional In
line with our accounting policy

= £75mllion restructuning costs relating to cost reduction strategic IT
investrment and the move towards an ntegrated operating model
offset by

= £5 3 million cash receipt i refation to a rebate of prior year network rates

As anticipated year end net debt increased to £99 3 million

(2014 £75 0 mullion) representing a net debt te pre exceptional EBITDA
ratio of 13 x (2014 10 x} The year on year movement in net debt was
anticipated followtng planned increases relating to our services to HMRC
The Group s working capital outflow in the year principally arose as a
result of a partal reversal of the strong cash collection in March 2014

yodas ubayong

Dividend

The Board 1s proposing a final diwdend of 3 58 pence per share

{2014 3 25 pence) representing a total dvidend for the year of 537 pence
per share (2014 4 88 pence) Thisrepresents 10 0 per cent year on year
growth in the total dvidend consistent with the Board s previously stated
commutment to grow full year dividends at 10 per cent per annum untl

the year ending 31 March 2016

Subject to shareholder approval at the KCOM Group PLC Annual General
Meeting on 31 July 2015 the final dvidend will be paid on 4 August 2015
to shareholders registered on 26 June 2015 The ex dividend date

is 25 June 2015

Pensions
The year end FAS 19 pension hability was £31 4 mifhon {2014 £26 S million)
The year on year increase arose as a result of

» £22 6million increase in liabilities, principally due to a 105 per cent
decrease in the discount rate, mitigated in park by a reduction in the
assumed rate of inflation offset by

« E177 milion increase on assets due to stronger investment returns
{equity and bonds) over the year

The agreed level of deficit repar payment {across both schemes) for the
year ended 31 March 201615 £2 0 million

Capital investment

The Group s Investment profile is consistent with previous guidance and cash
capital expenditure dunng the year was £32 0 million {2014 £279 million)
Specific projects include

« the continued deployment of fibre

» strategic IT investment induding the implementation of SAP
financials daving the Group s move towards common systems
and processes and

« targeted customer specific investment

The Group s deprecation and amortisation charge for the year 15
£171 million (2014 £20 3 million) [nline with 1ts accounting policy
and in light of market actvity relating to network assets the Group
has assessed the appropriateness of the residual values of its network
assets This has resulted in higher residual values and a £4 9 million
reduction In the depreciation charge for these assets In the year

Tax

The Group s tax charge 1s £4 1 mithon {2014 £11 8 milhony The current
year effective tax rate is 21 6 per cent broadly in line with the prevailing
rate of corporation tax The overall effective tax rate 1s 24 9 per cent
reflecting the impact of prior year items

Paul S1mpson
Chief Finanaial Officer
17 June 2015
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Strategic report

Our business model

Harnessing technology to create better ways
to connect people and organisations

How we generate revenue

Our key relationships

Our customers
Our strategic partners

The communities we serve 1n
Hull and East Yorkshire

Enterprises

Providing communications technology
consultancy, solution delwvery
and service management

Served by
Smart427 and Kcom

Our key inputs
The skills, expertise and
expenence of our people

Services and technologies from
our partners

Our technology platforms

Fibre investment in Hull
and East Yorkshire

Small and medium-sized businesses

Providing and managing cennectivity,
network services and cloud services

Served by
KC and Eclipse

10
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Consumers

Providing broadband talk,
TV and other packaged
communNIcations seFvices In
Hull and East Yorkshire

Served by
KC







We report our activities under two reporting segments

KC segment
Consumers and bustnesses in
Hull and East Yorkshire

Kcom segment
Businesses and public
sector organisations
across the UK

How we create value

For shareholders
Strong funding and cash generation

Long-term investrment opportunity with
increasing returns

For customers
We help enterpnses use collaboration
and communication tools to enhance
their business performance

We help small and medium-sized
businesses to operate more effectively,
provide better customer service and
achieve growth

We help consumers live more
connected lives

For employees
Personal growth and
development opporturities

Flexible benefits and wellbeing initatives

For local communaties
in Hull and East Yorkshire
High-guality employment opportunities

Contrbution to local economy

Suppert of local business and
community initiatives

Our key strengths

Managing complexity
We manage complexity for custormers
We take the time to understand therr
desired outcomes, better exploiting
existing systems alongside integrating
new systermns

Deploying our expertise
Our people are experts not just i

communications and IT but also In the
increasingly important fields of business
innovation, technology change and
digital transformation

Our approach to technology
We believe technology 1s key to
creating value Qur skills in integration
and design mean we can bring together
multiple services to deliver tangible
business outcomes

KCOM Group PLC
Annual report and accounts 2014715
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[Stmteguc report

Market opportumities and trends

Enterprise market

Technology to support the evolving enterprise

The UK Systems Integration market s expected to grow
at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 15 3 per cent
unt! 2018

UK Systems Integrations Market MicromarketMonitor, 2014

Enterprises are increasingly looking for a technology partner
to provide solutions that deliver clear business outcomes
Today s large corporate and public sector organisations face the
challenge of developing technology strategees, designs and services
that meet ther rapidly evolving needs

They recognise the value of being better connected - to customers
partners employees and other assets and resources — and they
understand that o jomed up technology architecture 1s the route
to achieving this

There are benefits that can be exploited across a number
of technology layers

Technology architecture organisations are increasingly seeking
external support to address digital challenges and opportunities We are
well positioned to provide instght on emerging technologies and have a
strong track record tn designing and delivening [T transformation plans
to meet business goals

Contact and collaboration organisations want te reap the benefits
of Increased collaboration between employees and with partners and
manage contact with custormers acrass multiple channels We have the
experience gnd capability to add value in this service area by creating
flexible rapidly deptoyable and easily scalable solutions

Systems integration as enterprnises seek to extend their networks

to connect custorners partners and a growing number of apphcattons

we have the expertise to deliver seamless integration of existing systems
and create a technology environment that facititates new connections

KCOM Group PLC
Annual report and accounts 2034/15
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Cloud adoption and Integration hasting systems and applications
in the cloud present the oppartunity for enterprises to reduce capital
and operational expenditure on [T while Inceeasing business agility
and flexibiity We are a premier pastner of Amazon Web Services and
the feading UK provider of cutting edge cloud technology projects

Identity and access management a more connected enterprise,
with authonsed users sitting both within and beyond the traditional
boundaries of an organisation’s [T services can increase exposure
to nsks We are uniquely able to use voice and bliometric enalytics to
enhance identity und access management and can support bespake
solutions ta manage cyber threats

Data and voice analytics large enterprises have much to gain by
ustng the vast amounts of data generated by customer contact to
create insight that can help idenufy new opportunities The cost
of storning and processing this data means it has remains largely
unexploited but our expenence in cloud computing means we can
help organisations deliver a Big Data solution cost effectively

Qur opportunity within this market s to exploit our deep communications
and application knowledge and experuise, and that of our partners

to buld integrate and manage technology soluttons that maximise
business value for our customers

End-to-end solutions covering consultancy, solution delivery
and service management

The propositions we offer to the enterprise market match our capability
with the opportunities set out by leading global technology analysts
based on the prevailtng C10 agenda

We offer consultancy solution delivery and service management

and support to target sectors Incduding central government transport
and logistics financial services, travel and lewsure retall, utilities
and manufacturing

We expect to see consistent growth
in the UK enterprise market over
the medium to long term for our
key offerings




Small and medium-sized business market
Enabling operational flexibility and growth

84 per cent of UK organisations have formally adopted
at least one cloud service, with the cloud services market
estimated to reach £2 7 bilhon by 2017

Cloud Industry Forums 2014

SMBs of all types and sizes need reltable connectivity to run

their operations

While many rely on their phone and internet services chiefly to sell goods and
services connect to customers and suppliers and communicate within the
workplace the growtng availability of fast and affordable connectmty means
SMBs are in a better position than ever to exploit cloud based services to
address business challenges and achieve growth

Cloud technologies include LT infrastructure platforms and software
managed and maintamed by a third party delivered over a network
connection and paid for based on usage In contrast to traditional
technology purchasing where a business buys and owns o fixed 1T asset
such as a server or a sofiware license cloud technology offers benefits
that are particularly attractive to the SMB sector including

Scalabihity the capacity of cloud services can be rapidiy scaled up
and down (o cope with growth or changing demand

Cost cloud services reduce the need for up front iInvestment In
hardware and software and give SMBs access to technical expertise
without the cost of dedicated iT resource

Flexibility cloud services support mobility allowing employees
to work from any location

Secunty data and systems are stored remotely supporting business
continuity In the event of disaster white automouc software updates
address onhne threats

vodas mbajong

Our focus in recent years on developing our portfolio of cloud based
services means we are well placed to capitalise on forecast growth
within this market, both through our expanded offening to our existing
SMB customer base and by attracting new customers to whom we can
offer both connectivity and cloud services

A sigrificant opportunity lies i the area of cloud based commuriication
and collaboration services where across our Eclipse and KC brands we
have an established offering including hosted business voice services
business class email ncluding secunty and archiving web and phone
conferencing instant colfaboration and mobile device management

We are seeing an increasing number of SMBs switch to hosted voice
services when it comes time to upgrade their in house telephone
system Likewise the need to renew software licenses for services
such as ernail and other standard business apphications is a key factor
triggering cansideration of a move to a cloud based solution

Superfast broadband remains a key epportunity in Hull

and East Yorkshire

We have conunued Lo see high take up of our fibre based broadband
service among SMBs in Hull and East Yorkshire The expansion in
Apnl 2015 of o Government scheme that provides funding for SMBs
to connect to superfast broadband means we are now able to offer
the service to businesses beyond our planned rell out areas

We are seeing an increasing number
of SMBs switch to hosted voice
services when it comes time to
upgrade their in-house systems

KCOM Group PLC
Annual report and accounts 2014/15
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Strateqic report

Market opportunities and trends continued

Consumer market

Meeting the needs of the connected consumer

2+ times

KC's fibre broadband customers download more than twice
as much data as those using non-fibre connections

Consurmners are using more devices to connect to more

online services

UK consumers are increasingly using the internet to improve almost every
aspect of thewr lives This trend continues to drive growth in the overall
number of broadband connections and demand for faster downtoad speeds

Whether for general browsing gamung, social med:a shopping or
on demand TV and video consumers of all ages are spending more tme
online thanks to developments in both technology devices and services

Ofcom s 2013 UK Communications Market Repart showed that UK
househclds have an average of three different types of nternet connected
device whie a survey by Microsoft later that year indicated that the typical
UX household has six devices connected to the internetindluding laptops
tabtets smartphones games consoles and smart TVs

The use of data hungry services and apphicattons inctuding free
on demand TV and subscription based content services such as
Netflix and Amazen Prime Instant Video has also continued to grow

The combinatian of these trends has resulted n significantly increased
data traffic across cur Hull and East Yorkshire network with the average
KC consumer broadband cusiomer now downloading more than three
times as much data each month thanin 2012

Addressing demand through new propositions

One of the ways in whicth we are addressing the market opportunity for
growth in fixed line consumer broadband services 1s by developing new
propositions to appeal to the needs of a wider range of customers

KCOM Group PLC
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Since 2012 the volume of data
downloaded by our consumer
customers has trebled

These inctude low cost broadband packages aimed at households new
to fixed hne broadband and low cost PCs laptops and tablets aimed
ot households where the cost of a device Is a sigmificant barrier to
switching to fixed ine broadband

We have begun a tnal of a pay as you go breadband service aimed
at consurmers who are unable to commit to a fixed term contract

We ore also seeking opportunities to enhance the content defivered by
our YouView based TV service including regionally focused programmes

Accelerating our deployment of fibre-based broadband

The second way in which we are addressing the market trend for
increased data usage and demand for faster download speeds Is by
accelerating the deployment of our fibre based broadband service
KC Lightstream across our Hull and East Yorkshue network

We have reached our target of making KC Lightstream available to
more than 45 000 properties by 31 March 2015 The high take up rates
achieved have gwven us the confidence to double the speed of our
implementation over the next two years so that by 31 March 2017
it will be available to more than 100 000 local properties

The typica! Lightstream connected household downloads more than
twice as much data each month than the average household with
astandard copper broadbond connection

Gur Lightstream pockoges accommodate this demand by delivering
download speeds of S0Mbps (megabts per second) 75Mbps 100Mbps
and 250Mbps They also offer significantly targer data allowances than
our standard copper broadband praducts

Video downloads by KC consumer
customers have increased sixfold
since 2012



Case studies

How customers benefit from our services

Enterprises

HM Revenue & Customs

As the UK’s tax authority, HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC)
ensures money 1s available to fund public services through
its collection, compliance and enforcement activities

HMRC selected Kcom to provide its new virtual contact centre which
enabled over 8 000 advisors to deal with more than six milhon phone calls
during January the month leading up to the self assessment deadline

Small and medium-sized businesses

BPL Business Media Ltd

BPL Business Media Ltd is the leading digita! media, print,
events and research company covering the IT, telecom
and broadcast sectors Eclipse’s reputation for service and
support led BPL to choose it to manage the migration
of key Microsoft applications to the cloud

Consumers

Hull and East
Yorkshire residents

As digital services become the default option for accessing
public services, infermation and entertainment, KC's
broadband services are helping households across Hull and
East Yorkshire make the most of all the internet offers

The new doud based platform uses speech recognition to enable
customers to speak directly to the adwisor best placed to help them
Through secure integsation with HMRC s systems, adwisors also have
Instant access to the caller s histary

Other benefits of the cloud based platforms we develop for enterprise
customers include

» better handling of fluctuations ndemand improving customer
experience and advisor productivity

» mults channel capabihity to support customer contact preferences
¢ lower costs through ausage based commercial model and
« rapid deployment and integration with existing infrastructure

As technology industry experts BPL understood the productivity and
cost benefits offered by dloud services When the time came to upgrade
licenses for key applications 1t chose instead to strearnbne 1its [T

infrastructure and evolve to Microsoft s cloud based Office 365

The solution provided by Eclipse delivers benefits Including

« fully managed migration of data with murimal interruption to operations

= access to the latest versions of Microsoft applications across all devices
and from any location

« o financially backed service level agreement guaranteeing
99 9 per cent uptime

« service continuity and support from an official Microseft Cloud Solution
Provider (CSP) Partner and

« apredictable monthly fee per user that reduces the total cost
of ownership of key IT services

Take up of broadband across KC s network grew by 59 per cent during
the year supported by the intreduction of affardable devices and
low cost packages aimed at first time users The many benefits of being
online were set out In the UK Broadband Impact Study published by the
Department of Culture in Novernber 2013 and include

= improved job prospects as being digitally capabte is cntical sn finding
and secunng a job

« reduced costs of ving Households offline are missing out on savings
of £560 per year from shopping and paying bills enline and

« improved quality of life, especially for older people 81 per centof
people over 55 say being online makes them feel part of modern
society and less lonely

KCOM Group PLC ‘1 5
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Ijtmteglc repart

Our strategy

Our vision is underpinned by four strategic pillars
that support us in our pursuit of operational
excellence as we seek to achieve a leading position
in our selected markets

Customers People

We understand and anticipate the needs of our custormers  We want to provide an environment where we attract,

and align our products, services and solutions to meet develop, sustain and enable all of our people to demonstrate

those needs and create a umique brand expenence and apply their capabiities, providing opportunities for
everyone to reach therr full potential

Prionties for 2014/15 Priorities for 2014/15
« delivening growth in the provssion of managed services to UK based = continue to develop the skills and capabilities of our people to drive
multi site organisations the achievernent of our strategic objectives in ine with our growth
« continuing the deployment and take up of fibre based broadband ambition and
services to customers in Hull and East Yorkshire » reward and recognise employees who demonstrate excellence
» continuing to grow market share through our ongoing focus on in thewr performance

delwering tnspnng customer experiences and
» thought leadership

Progress for 2014/15 Progress for 2014/15

We have We have

» achieved our target of passing a further 15 000 premises with our « brought together finance teams from across the business to create
Hulland East Yorkshire fibre deployment maintaiming a take up rate o bustness wide finance team in a single location and with a single
n excess of 30 per cent set of processes

= continued to win new service management contiacts and new + established a joint working approach between our Kcom and Smart421
contracts for cloud based services withun the enterprise market and brands to better address opporturuties in the enterpnse market

= delivered successfully our first mojor project for HMRC + ntroduced a competency framework that will set out the skills and

behaviours required for each role wathin the business It will be used to
deploy our people more flexibly identify skills gaps manage performance
support employee development and nform succession planning and

= implemented a new reward framework that gives managers greater
flexibility to seward and recognise excellent performance

Prionties for 2015/16 Priorities for 2015/16
We will We will
= accelerote owr deployment of fibre based broadband to pass a « Stmplify our business to aeate a single agile operating model
further 60 000 properties over the next two years bulding on current where our people can be deployed flexibly and efficiently for
take up rates the benefit or our custamers

=« deliver growth in the provision of complex communications solutions
to the enterprise market and

» grow our share of the small and medium sized business market

’I 6 KCOM Group PLC
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Partners

wodal mbajong

Processes and systems

We recognise that our customer needs are better met
iIf we work searmlessly with carefully selected partners
to create combined service offerings

r
Custorner service excellence 15 underpinned by robust
processes and systems

Prionities for 2014715

« Invest in partnerships that support our customers objectives

» continue to exploit our strategic relationshups to deliver market leading,
innovative services and

« maximise our hosted and cloud collaboration services and unified
communication services of ferings

Prionities for 2014/15

implement efficent scalable back of fice processes and systems in qur
finance function

extend and improve our customer self service capability and

deliver best in class levels of customer service

Progress for 2014/15

We have

« continued to invest In partnerships that support our customers
objectves such as that with Amazon Web Services and

= putin place plans with strateqic partners to transform key networks
and technology platforms

Progress for 2014/15

We have

implemented an SAP system and efficent and scalable back office
processes within our business wide finance team and

introduced an e commerce portal that extends the ability of customers
to buy online and self serve

Prionties for 2015/16

We will

« exploit the scale and innovation offered by our strategic parinerships
ta deliver market leading services to customners 1n ous target markets

Priorities for 2015/16

We will

opurmise more of our back office systems to support a ssmplified
operating model

enhance the capability of our e commerce platform to generate
further online sales and encourage self service and

improve cross business collaboration through the introduction of new
technology platfosms

KCOM Group PLC
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Strategic report

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

We track a series of financial and non-financial
metrics that demonstrate the progress we
are making against the key pillars of our strategy

Financial

Revenue £m

The total amount the Group earns
from the sale of goods or services

£348.0m 61%

2015 l 348 (ﬂ

2014 { 3707

EBITDA' £m

Earmings before interest tax
depreciation and amertisation
A measure of profitability

£743mM 13%

2015 [ 743 l

2014 [ 753 |

Profit before tax' fm

A measure of profit that does
noi take into account the cost
of corporation tax

£51.5m 324

2015 I 515 I

2014 | w9e I

Net cash inflow from operations £m

Cash flow from operating
activities adjusted
for non cash items

£50.8m

201% 1 508 |

290%

2014 | 71 3J

Net debt

A metnc that shows the
Group's indebtedness

1 Before excepuonals.

'] 8 KCOM Group PLC
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£99.3 32u4%

2015 992 |

2014 750 |

Performance review
page 8

Comment
Headline financicl metnics broadly in hne
with expectations

Revenue impacted by cantinued decitne
in legacy activities

Anticipated increase in net debt as aresult
of planned ncreases in capital expenditure




Key Customers People

Non-financial

Partners

Processes and systems

Hoda nbayons

Impact of health and safety incidents

Number of days lost due to health
and safety incidents

35 1692%

2015 l 35 |

2014 [ 13

Comment

We focus on continucus education and
implementation of improved ways of working that
keep health ond safety inadents to a minimum
The working days lost relate to just thiee Inadents
with one ncident accounting for 26 days

All incidents are thoroughly investigated

and action 1s taken to prevent recurrence
wherever possible

Availability of fibre-based broadband

Number of premises passed in Hulland East
Yorkshire by our roll out of KC Lightstream

45,000

2015 l

50.0%

45 000 l

2014 | 30 000 l

Comment

We achieved our target of making our
fibre based broadband services available
to 45 000 homes and businesses in

Hull and East Yorkshire by March 2015

Rotes with a competency profile

70%

1,233

Comment

We Introduced a competency framework in
2014/15to enable better utiisation of our
people skills and support career progresston

Number of rofe profiles which have been 2015 | 1233 J
mapped against our new behaviour and 2014 l NiA l
technical competencies
Employee volunteenng Comment
1 5 70 59 % In 2014 2 000 additional velunteering
’ hours were devoted to delivening a specific
Prince s Trust actvity

Number of employee haurs we have In 2015 schools chanues and commurity
donated to community projects 2014 | 3843 I

Corporate responsibility
page 22

groups across Hull and East Yorkshire have
benefited from our employees time
and skills during the year
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Strategic repornt

Risk management

As with all businesses, we are affected by
a number of risks and uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties

This table shows the principal nsks and uncertainties, some of
which are beyond our control, that could have a material adverse

effect on the Group and have been identified through our risk

management framework

Risk management framework

Risk identification

Risk recording

This 1s not an exhaustive list and there may be nsks and uncertainties
of which we are currently unaware, or are believed to be immatenal,

that could have an adverse effect on the business

Further information on nsk management and our internal control

systems can be found on page 35

Our strategy
page 16

Auditing

Risk reporting

Risk management and internal controls

page 35

Security and resilience of our networks and IT systems

Why I1s it important?
We place significant reliance en the networks and IT
systems both within our business and in the services
we provide to our customers It s therefore essential

that we build securnity and resilience into the networks
and systems to mitigate the nsk frem attacks

How does this link to our strategy?

What are we doing to mitigate the risk?

We continue to monitor closely any attempted attacks and
take actions where necessary to ensure we have robust
security n place We have held the 15O 27001 Information
Security Management standard since 2007 and comply
also with other security standards as required by our
customers We have also made ssgruficant investment inour
[T infrastructure to improve the resiience of our key systems

This links directly to our processes and systems as well as being key to the customer pillar
of our strategy as ensunng secunty of our networks and IT systems 1s a clear customer need

Change in level of risk

Risk decreased

Accuracy, security and confidentiality of customer data

Why 1s it important?

Secunty of customer data, whether it belongs to o
business or an individual, 1s of paramount importance
to us The risk to data security remains high as a result
of the volume of external attacks seen across

all industries

Heow does thus link to our strategy?

What are we dotng to mitigate the nisk?

We have run an information secunty awareness programme
throughout the year to regularty remind our people of the
importance of information security and therr responsibilities
inrelation to this We have a dear Data Governance policy
in place and in the year have appornted data governance
owners across the business to form a virtual team with
responsibikity for all matters relating to data governance
Any inadents however minor are tnvestigated and control
improvements care implemented where necessary to ensure
that we keep our custemer data secure at all bmes

Change in level of risk

No change

This has a direct impact on our custemers and also inks to cur processes and systems pilar of our strategy

s our processes and systems play a pivotal rofe in keeping our data accurate secure and confidentwal

2 O KCOM Group PLC
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Key Customers People

Customer service and delivery
Why 15 it important?

Delivering exceptional service to our customersis one
of our key strategic aims and therefore the risk of
failing to do this is a key risk for us to mitigate

How does this ink to our strategy?

Partners

Processes and systems

What are we doing to mitigate the nsk? Change in level of nisk

We have continued to invest in our people and our systems
to ensure that we have the nght people in the nght roles and
that they have the right tools to provide an exceptional service
We also work closely with our partners to ensure that they

are ghigned with us in delivering the best service possible Risk decreased

Thus links to alt aspects of our strategy and 1s key to the whole of our business

Recruitment and retention of the right people

Why s it important?

Recruiting and retaining the right people 1s crucial
for the success of the Group in meeting our objectives
This apphes not only to being able to recruit people
who embody our values, but also te recruiting people
with specific technical skills where needed, secme of
which may be in short supply It also involves developing
the skills in-house and creating internal mobility
around deploying those skills

How does this ink to our strategy?

What are we doing to mitigate the risk? Change in level of risk
We are focused on creating a workplace that both attracts
and retains people with the skills and bebaviour that we
need During the year we have created o competency
framework which will help usidentify skills gaps for
recrmtment enable us to create more opportunities

for persona! growth development It also links into

our performance management to help us ensure we

are identifying and rewarding the peaple that embody
the competencies we need to drive the business forward

Risk increased

Recruiting and retaining the right people 1s part of the people pillar of our strategy whilst also
having animpact on our customers and the level of service that they receive

Reliance on key partners and suppliers

Why is it important?

Qur business model means that we work with several
key partners to deliver service to our customers,
they include Amazon Web Services, BT, Cisco,
ForgeRock, Microsoft

How does this ink to our strategy?

r

What are we doing to mitigate the risk? Change in level of nisk

We hove dedicated teams to work alongside our key
partners and we monitor all of our partnerships dosely

to ensure that our partners embody our key values and we
can work together Lo resolve any minor issues before they
become sigrificant We also have multiple pariners in key
risk areas to mitigate the nsk in the event of failure

of one partner

No change

This Iinks directly to the partners pillar of our strategy and alsc impacts upon our customers

KCOM Group PLC 2 ’]
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Strategic report

Corporate responsibility

We seek to ensure our business is sustainable
and acts responsibly

People Environment
page 24 page 25
Governance
Community Customers and suppliers
page 26 page 27
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We have a number of key stakehclders that are influenced by the way

that we choose te do business Qur Corporate Responsibiliity (CR) strategy
seeks to ensure that we behave conscicusly In a way that has a positive
effect on the communities in which we operate, on the peopte we employ
and on our customers and suppliers while minimising our impact on the
environment We also acknowledge that CR s of importance to our
shareho!ders and that our ethucal behaviour as a hsted company

haos an influence on the market on which cur shares are traded

As ane of the largest employers in the Hull and East Yorkshire region
we beleve that we have a particular responsibility to make a positive
difference n the region and much of the commumity work we do

15 avmed at benefiting the Hull and East Yorkshire community

Theve are three key objectives which underpin our CR strategy

» touse our expertise In cornmunications technology to create a positive
wnpact on all our stakeholders and the commumities in which we operate

» topromote our values both internally and in the way in which we do
business with external stakeholders and

« 1o engage and empower our people so that they canmake a positive
contribution to our CR strategy and the causes that maiter to them

Our CR strategy covers four key areas

All four areas are taken into consideration 1n key business decisions
and the Board receives reports aon each of these areas as and when
appropnate Responsibility for the overall CR strategy sits with

our Chief Executive Bill Halbert

The governance around the four areas 1s to ensure that we have
a consistent approach to sk management strategy development
and measunng progress

wodal 3fnonsg

Why have we chosen these four key areas?

Qur peaple are fundamental to all we do and the way that we operate
os a business clearly has an impoct on how valued our people feel
and whether or not we are the type of organisation that they want

to work for

We believe the environment is a key concern for all businesses and
that we il have a responsibility to minimise cur negative environmental
impact and make deastons with environmental sustainabslity in mind

We operate in a number of different communities across the country
particularly in Hull and East Yorkshire where we have a significant presence
We take senously our responsibility {o operate in a manner that benefits
the local community as well as our strategic aims as a business

Qur customers and suppliers are alsc key stokeholders in the business
and we believe that we have a responsibility to behave ethically with
both suppliers and customers We know also that there are issues that
are important to our customners that go beyond the products ar services
that they buy from us, and we also seek to address these as part

of our CR strategy

How does the CR strategy link to business strategy?

The key areas of our CR strategy are fully inter linked with the man pillars of our strategy as shown in the diagram below We seek to ensure that
CRniiatives are fully aligned with our overall strategy and that CR considerations are built into all strategic deaislons across the business

People Environment

Community Customers and suppliers

Key Customers People Partners

Processes and systems

KCOM Group PLC
Annual report and accounts 2014/15

23



Strateqic report

Corporate responsibility continued

People

Development

Cur people are one of our key differentiators We place great importance
on seeking talented Individuals to Join our business and motivating and
developing those who are already part of our team

Qur aim s for cur people to embody our values of being open and
considerate team minded flexible inspiring and innovative Many of
our tralning programmes and agtities focus on these values and the
behaviours ansing from them We believe demonstrating the nght
behaviours 1s as important as having the nght skills to perform a role

During the year under review we have started to tmplement a competency
framework which sets out the required competencies for every role covering
both behaviour and technical expertise The framework will enable us not
only to carry out more effective and meaningful performance management
but will alsc open up more development cpportunities for our pecple by
showing more dearly the competencies required to move to another past

of thebustness or to progress

Human nghts

We respect fundamental heman nghts consistent with the United
Nations Universal Declaration of Human Rights and we ensure that
all of our internal policies are consistent with this We do not hove
any current human rights 1ssues

Health, safety and wellbeing

We continue to place the utmost importance on the health safety and
wellbeing of our people as well as the health, safety and wellbeing of
our contractors partners customers and any members of the public
who may be affected by our work

Some of our people are engaged in manual work and we have thorough
traning in place for all of these peopte as well as dear Safe Systems of Work
that must be followed at all times We launched a mandatory health
safety and environment e learring module towards the end of the year
for all of our employees This covered fire safety workplace hazards,
health and wellbeing environmental sustainability driving safely

and respensibilities and reporting

Anumber of our people have to dnive on company business and
we perform nisk assessments and provide addittonal driver traiming
for indivduals deemed to be at a higher rnisk

We work also with a number of pastners when performing manual work
and we follow clear processes to ensure that our partners are competent

2 L{ KCOM Group PLC
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and operate in a healthy and safe manner We require all of our suppliers
of physical services to hold accreditation to a member scheme of Safety
Schemes in Procurement {SSIP} and we will work with those without this
to assist them in reaching the required level of competence

We have been accredited to the BS OHSAS 18001 Health end Safety
Management standard since 2011 and there were no fatalities or Health
and Safety Enforcement Notices in the year We experienced two
Reporting of Injunes Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
(RIDDOR) incidents {2014 two) There were 35 working days fost in the year
as aresult of just three health and safety inadents (2014 13 working days)
Heclth and safety incidents are clesely monitored by the Health and
Safety team to ensure that any appropniate acticns ansing as a result
are identified and then fully implemenited

Education i1s a key part of our approach to wellbeing Each year we
hold heglth and wellbeing screening sessions which are open te all
employees and contractors These are provided by an independent third
party and provide a free and confidential health assessment-mecsunng
such things as bload pressure blood sugar levels, Bedy Mass Index and
cholesterol 585 of our colleagues attended these sessions in the year
representing appioximately 32 per cent of the workfarce We provide
also employees with the option to purchase other medical and dental
services through our flexible benefits scheme

During the year we launched a new programme called Live Well

Work Well which provides self-help tools and ideas to our people to
encourage them to think about therr mental and physical wellbeing and
to seek support and help when they need it to achieve a heaithy work life
balance Many of our employees have embraced the programme and have
shared theis ideas and tips through our internal socicl media platform

Gender diversity

Gender diversity 1s the subject of much focus at the current time and we
believe unreservedly in equal opportunities for all regardless of gender
We have clear policies in place which mean that men and women are
given equa! opportunities both when we are recruiting and then in
developing and progressing once with us Since the year end we have
welcomed a female Director to the Board As at the year end the gender
diversity of the Group was as set out in the table below

Male Female Female %

Board Directors 6 0 0%
Senior management team’ 11 5 31%
Other employees 1165 635 35%

1 The semor management team 1s defined as thase reporting directly to the Board of Directors
and other leoders of key areas of the business.

We are supportive of flexible working whereves possible and 14 per cent
of our workforce works flexible hours induding 34 per cent of our
female employees

During the year we launched a
new programme called ‘Live Well,
Work Well’ which provides self-help
tools and 1deas to our people




Environment .

Breakdown of our emissions %

85 9% Premuses— Electncity

71%  Premuses — Other
fuel and waste
70% Businesstravel

The main environmental impact of the business arnises from our use
of electriaty which makes up 85 9 per cent of our CO,e ermussions This
includes alt our premises such as offices data centres and our various
network sites both nationally and in the Hull and East Yorkshire region

As a business, we continue to work on reducing our emissions wherever
possible We have recycling facilities at ali of our main offices and have
introduced recyching bins for dry mixed matenials during the year ta make
st easier for more items to be recycled This has led to 94 1 per cent of
our waste being recycled in 2014/15 compared to 92 5 per cent in the
prior year We report our environmental performance internally through
a ‘Green Dashboard on our Intranet and we have a network of volunteer
Green Champions across the business that helps to raise awareness

of environmental matters

Ermissions in the year
The table below sets out our annual emussions in tonnes of CO.e

Year ended

Yearended 31 March 2014

31 March 2015 COze

Area COze festated’

Combustion of fuel and 3910 2962
operation of faallities

Purchase of electricity 18 953 18 344

Total 22063 21306

Tonnes of CO,e per £°000 0063 0057

of revenue

1 The reparted figures for 201 3/14 have been restated to use the UK Government conversion
factors for 2014 and methods of calculation which are consistent with those used n 2014/15

During the year the CO,e created from the combustion of fuel and
operation of facihities has increased by 5 0 per cent This reflects a
shightly higher use of refrigerant gases in the year as a result of the
reptacement of the now obsolete R22 gas ina number of our arr
conditioning systemns plus an increase of 3 7 per cent i our business
trave! the majonty of which 1s due to an increase in domestic and
short haut air teavel Whilst we always encourage our employees

to travel only when necessary we acknowledge also that some
travel 15 necessary in order to do business

We will continue to menitor our emissions in these areas and
will contimue to enforce the message to mimimise our emissIons
wherever possible

The CO,e from electricity purchased has increased by 3 3 per cent in
the year which reflects an increase in the conversion factor applied to
electnaty in the year The actual amount of kilowatt hours of electricity
used has reduced in the year by & 9 per cent

informatsen for our carban emissions reporting comes from our own
internal systems third party travel companies, suppliers of fuel and
waste collection and recycling services and from our electncity supplier
The method of catculation has been audited in previous years by our
[nternal Audit tearm and uses the UK Government conversion factors
for company reporting

Environmental measures

Target Target Target

Area Actual 2014/15 met 2015716
Total C0,e 22063 Not to exceed Toreturn to
emissions tonnes 2013114 levels of 201314
21,306 tonnes' levels of

21306

tonnes

Wastesent 202 Not to exceed Not to exceed
to landfill tonnes 2013/ 14 Jevels 2014715 levels
of 27 8 tonnes? of 20 2 tonnes

1 The target for 201415 has been adjusted to reflect the restated comparatives for 2013414
The restaternent 15 to show the 2013/1 G emissions as calculated using the same methodolegy
ond assumptions as i 2014415 which are fully compliant with the UK Gevernrment conversion
factors for company reporting for the relevant years

2 Thus number reflects actual tonnes of waoste sent to landfill rather than CO,e tonnes which
can be subject to changes in assumptions of metheds of ealcuiction year on year The target
for 2014/15 wos previously shown in CO;e tonnes

The impact of chmate change

There has been a significant amount of flooding across the country over
recent years and we take the nisk of flooding senously Over the last few
years we have installed power ful water pumps and flood alarms at the sites
we have identified as having a potential fleod nsk as well as nstalling flood
barriers to basement doors and replacing air bricks at selected sites During
the year none of cur buldings or equipment have been affected by flooding
but we continue to monitor the nisk and regularly practice our business
continuity procedures to ensure we are prepared should an ncident occur

We report our environmental
performance internally and
a network of volunteer Green
Champions raises awareness
of environmental matters
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Strategic report

Corporate responsibility continued

Community

Supporting the local economy in Hull and East Yorkshire

The Hull and East Yorkshire region is the birthplace of owr business ond we
are proud to play our part in local ife in the area We employ 957 pecple

In Hull representing 53 per cent of our Group and we contribute over
£150 million to the local economy each year' We make our business
decisions with the potential impact on the local communsty very much in
mind both i Hull and £ast Yorkshire and in the other communittes in which
our people are focated We have no matenal social issues

Unemployment rates in Hull have fallen over the last year but continue
ta be bugh in comparison to England as a whole? this has strengthened
ouf resolve to support the local economy wherever we can Our KC brand's
buy local approach when purchasing goods and services has resulted
in us directly supporting over 175 local suppliers over the last year

Our KC Invest fund whach was launched in 2011 to provide start up
and growth financing for local businesses in the digital and technology
sectors continues to operate During the year we also became a key
partner of a community interest company called For Entrepreneurs Only
which s based in Hull and seeks to help boost the local economy by
creating more private sector jobs for the future We have provided
financial support and our people have acted as guest speakers at events
to help entrepreneurs learn more about the reality of runrung a business

We continue to support the Hull s John Cracknell Youth Enterpsise Bank
which has provided grants to 14 young people to help them set up and
develop therr businesses over the last year We believe that supporting
young people at the outset of their careers helps to develop the employers
of the future thereby supporting the long term local economy As part
of thiswe support the Hull Employability Charter and have taken on

12 apprentices over the past year te demonstrate our commitment
Duning the year we have also engaged with 23 primary schools eight
secondary schools and three colleges to support the development of
employability skdls provide one to onereading support take part in careers
events and inspire interest in science technology engineering and maths

1 DTZConsulting 2015

2 For the 12 months b 30 Septernber 2014 unemployment in the Hull City Counal area was
12 75 per cent compared 10 6 61 per cent for Englanyd as a whole Data taken from the
Humber Dot Observatory

Increasing broadband penetration in Hull and East Yorkshire
The government has highlighted ‘digital exdusion as ¢ key rsk facing the UX
atthe current iime People may be digitally excluded due a lack of nternet
access or a lack of digital skills Digital inclusion results n people feeling more
connected with their farmilies and communities increases the job opportuniies
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available and even enables people to save money through shopping online,
and to access government senices that are ncreasingly moving online

We are looking to help tackle digital inclusion in a number of ways

= we are making a significant Investment in the provistan of superfast
broadband to enable people to communicate and do business ontine
ot download speeds including 250Mbips Qur fibre deployment began
in 2012 and has continued throughout the year with more than
45 000 premises passed as at 31 March 2015 and a commitment
10 have passed 100 000 premises by 31 March 2017

« we have ntroduced new products and packages that provide
low cost PCs tablets or laptops to new customers We have also
launched our cheapest ever broadband package to encourage
more people to get online and

» we are working with local councils and other organisations to provide
equipment and volunteers to run courses and drap n sessions to teach
digital skils, including in local community centres

Improving wellbeing in Hull and East Yorkshire

Durning the year we announced a partnershup with Hull 2020 to introduce a
number of Safe at Home services to be used across the region Hull 2020
15 a group of mine public service organisations committed to enabling the
people of Hull to wnprove therr own health and wellbeing

In October 2014 we began tnalling a ‘cold alarm which 1s a wireless
device that monitors the temperature in a home and sends an alert via
the internet to an alert centre or family member if the temperature falls
below an agreed threshold The devices can be used in the homes of
people at nsk from the cold induding older people and those with

long term health problems

By launching technology enabled case services such as the cold alarm
we aim to heip give vulnerable people and therr relatives peace of mind
and give people an opportunity to live independently in therr own homes
forlonger

Volunteering

QOur people are keen to volunteer to help withlocal community activities
We continue to operate formal partnerships with schools charities and
projects n the areas local to our of fices across the country [n total our
people denated 1 570 hours to community volunteenng dunng the year
to 31 March 2015

We have cantinued this year In our patronege of The Prnce s Trust the
UK sleading youth charity The Trust aims to change lives by offenng
traiming personal development business start up support mentorng
and advice to young people This year we have hosted and supported
events to help The Trust expand its work in Hull and East Yorkshire

Group chanty partner

For the last e years we have focused employee fundraising around
achanty partnership Every three years we work with a chanty partner
chosen by our peaple from a shortiist of UK registered national chanties
In Apnil 2012 we began a partnershup with Sparks a chanty dedicated
to funding ploneering research into conditions affecting babies children
and mothers to be In the theee years to 31 March 2015 our people raised
over £235 000 for Sparks through a vartety of sporting challenges dress
down days, auctions cake bakes and many other activities

From 1 April 2015 our new charity partner is Teenage Cancer Trust
selected again by our people Teenage Cancer Trustis dedicated to
ensuring that young people diagnosed with cancer recerve the very
best care and support from the moment they are diagnosed




Customers and suppliers

Ethical sourcing

We believe that we have responsibilities in relation to our customers
and suppliers te treat them fairly and to do business with themn
the nght way

We also have a responsibility to make sure that our suppliers operate with
the same ethics and standards as us All of our suppliers are expected o
siga up to our Supplier Code of Conduct this sets out our expectations in
relation to laws and ethical standards labour practices risk management
and business continuity We have regular meetings with our key suppliers
and work closely with them to ensure that we understand the way In
which their business eperates and their approach to sustasnability

and their own corporate responsibility

We also know that we have aresponsibility 1o our customers to ensure
we tackle the issues that are yimportant to thern beyond the products
and services that they buy fromus

Online safety

One area in which we believe we have a corporate responsibility to our
customers s In relation to enline safety In October 2014 we launched
free parental controls on our broadband service whitch any consumer
customer may sign up for We are applying these controls automatically
for all new customers with customers able to opt out if they wish to

We have also provided funding to a local theatre group to develop
and perform plays addressing cyber bullying and online grooming
These plays have been performed in primary schoals across the region
to teach chidren about the importance of online safety

Continuity of supply

We believe that continuity of supply 1s essential for many of our
customers who rely on us for ther business communications or for
access to online services We therefore continually review our partners
and suppliers to ensure that we are able to have continuity of supply,
or a vigble alternative should one of our key suppliers unexpectedly fail

We are reliant on electricity across much of our business and therefore
the threat of a significant power outage has been identified as a potential
nsk to the business Te mitigate this sk each of our key sites has an on site
dedicated power supply back up, with either permanent or mobile
generator support 1n the event of long term power autages These are all
tested at reguiar intervals We have also invested signficantly in recent
years to ensure that our internal systems have resilience and back up
support should any of our key systems fail

Signed on behalf of the Board

WrSMmIIN

Kathy Smith
Company Secretary
17 June 2015

We have a responsibility to our
customers to ensure we tackle the
issues that are important to them
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Directors report

Board of Directors

Graham Holden (55)

Non-Executive Chairman

Tarm of office

Liz Barber (49)

Non Executive Director

Bill Halbert {67)

Chief Executive

Tony Ilisley (53)
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Graham joined the Board as
aNon Executve Director in
November 2007 and became
Non Executive Chairman on
1 April 2014

Previous experience

Liz joined the Board in April 2015

Bill joined the Board as a

Non Executive Directorin
September 2006 before stepping
up to become Executive Charrman
in July 2009 Bill then was
appointed as Chief Executve

on 1 Aprl 2014

Tony joined the Board in
June 2009

Graham is a Chartered
Accountant and graduate of the
Harvard Advanced Management
Pragramme He was Chief
Executive of Marshalls plc from
2001 until hus retirement In
October 2013, having previously
been the Group Financial Director
from 1992 to 2001

Board Committees

Liz1s a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants qualifying
with Ernst & Young in 1991 and
being promoted to Partnerin
2001 She was then Head of Audit
for the North of England from
2006 to 2010, when she joined
Kelda Group as Group Drrector

of Finance

Bl has worked in the information
technology industry for over

40 years and brings a wealth of
expenence and strategic insight
te the KCOM Group PLC Board
During his time in the industry

he founded and was the CEQ for
13 years for Syntegra BT sglobal
consultancy and systems
integration subsidiary

Teny has held a vanety of serior
business positions including

Chief Executive of Telewest
Communications PLC President of
Pepsi Cola Asia Pacific and Senior
Independent Non Executive
Dhrector of easylet plc

Graham s the Chairman of
the Nominatlon Committee
and a member of the
Remuneration Committee

External appointments

Liz becarme a member of the
Audit Rermuneration and
Nomination Committees on
appaintment and will becoame
Chairman of the Audit Committee
from the AGM on 31 July 2015

Bill s not a member of any
of the Board Committees

Tony s currently Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and 1s
also a member of the Audit and
Nomination Committees

Graham is a Visiting Fellow in the
School of Management at
Cranfield University

Other Directors

Liz works full-time as the Group
Director of Finance, Regulation and
Markets for Kelda Group Shersa
Non Executive member of the
Board Counail fos Leeds University
a member of the Prince of Wales
Accounting for Sustainability Group
and a Steenng Group member

of the Two Percent Club which
seeks to support more balanced
board memberships

Biti s other directorships include
Excelsys Ltd Jade Solutions
Limsted and Taat Connexions Ltd

Tony 1s a Non Executive Director
of Quindell Plc Camelot Global
Services Limited and Camelot
UK Lottenes Limited

Kevin Walsh was an Executive Director of the Board from May 2004 until his retirement from the Board on 29 July 2014 Kevin did not sit on any
Board Committees whilst with the Group Kevin ceased to be an employee of the Group on 31 October 2014
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Paul Simpson (46)
Chief Financial Officer

Term of office

Peter Smith (57)

Non-Executive Director

Martin Towers (62)

Non-Executive Director

Kathy Smith (41)

Company Secretary

wodas siopang

Paul joined the Board in May 2004
when he was appointed Chief
Financial Officer having joined
the business in September 2000

Previous experience

Peter jomned the Board in
January 2015

Martin joined the Board in

June 2009 He has indicated his
intention to retire from the Board
at the AGM on 31 huly 2015

Kathy took on the role of
Company Secretary in July 2010

Paul1s a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales qualfying with Price
Waterhouse Prior to joining the
Group Paul worked in transaction
services at Ernst & Young which
included working on the flotation
of KCOM Group PLC

Board Committees

Peter has worked for LEK
Consulting LLP for 27 years Prior
to Joming LEX Peter worked for
Schiurmberger Wireline in the
Middle East for seven years as

a field engineer and line manager
in the oIl industry

Martin is a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and has held
anumber of senior finance roles
including Greup Finance Director
at Kelda Group PLC Allied Textile
Group PLC and the Spring Ram
Corporation PLC

Kathy 15 a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Acceuntants in
England and Wales qualfying
with Deloitte She joined KCOM
Group PLC in September 2005 as
Head of Internal Audit and 15
now Directos of Riskalongside
her Company Secretary role
She s a Graduate member

of the Chartered Institute of
Secretaries and Administrators

Paulis not a member of any
of the Board Committees

External appointments

Peter became a member of
the Audit Nomination and
Remuneration Committees
on appointment

Martin s the Charman of the
Audit Committee but will step
down from this role at the AGM on
31 July 2015 He 1s olso a member
of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committees and
wilt remain so until his retirement
from the Board in July

None

Peter works full time for LEK
Consulting LLP as a member of
the Global Leadership Team

Martin 1s Chairman of Norcros PLC
and 1s a Non Exacutive Director of
RPC Group PLC and Tyman PLC

Kathy 1s the secretary for all of
the Board Comrmttess
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Directors’ report

Corporate governance

Board length of service

Director Appointment

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20117 2012 2013 2074 2015

Graham Holden 27 November 2007

Liz Barber 7 Apnl 2015

Bill Halbert 1 Septernber 2006
Tony Iifstey 2 June 2009

Paul Simpson 24 May 2004

Peter Smith 5 lanuary 2015

Martin Towers 2 June 2009

Appointment and replacement of Directors
it s the policy of the Board that all Dwectors wishing to continue in
office will stand for election of re election each year at the AGM

The Articles of Association allow the Board to appoint a new Director at
any time however the Artucles state that the new Director will only hold
office until the next AGM at which point he or she must stand for
election or vacate the office

The Nemination Commuttee and the Board as a whole have reviewed
the performance and contribution of Graham Holden, Bilt Halbert

Tany liisley and Paul Stmpson and has no hesitation in proposing the

re gppointment of each of these Board members We beleve we have a
diverse and balanced Board which meets the current needs of the business
and therefore all of these Directors are recommended for re election on the
basis of their contribution to this Martin Towers has indicated his intention ta
retire from the Board at the AGM and therefore will not stand for re electien

In addition the Nomination Commuttee 1s pleased to recommend both
Peter Smith and Liz Barber for appointment to the Board Peter Joined the
Board on S January 2015 and brings with him a vast amount of expenence
across a number of industries where he has helped many businesses from
astrategic perspective The Nomination Commuttee believes that Peter
will be able to use his experience to make o sigmificant contribution to the
Group particularly as it goes through a peried of strategic change Liz Barber
Joned the Group on 7 Apnl 2015 and brings with her sigrificanst financial
expertise as a previous audit partner for Ernst & Young and as the current
Group Duector of Finance for Kelda Group Further biographical detals
for each of the Directors can be found on pages 28 and 29

Afl Board members
contnbute to all aspects
below Here are their
key areas of expertise

Graham Holden
Liz Barber

Bill Halbert
Tony llisley
Paul Simpson
Peter Smith
Martin Towers

Financial

Sector

Regional

Regulated environment

Strategic

PLC Board
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The Articles of Association also state that the Company may remove a
Director by ordinary resolution with special notice before the expiration
of their period of office There have been no Oirectors removed from
office during the year

Independence

The Board reviews the independence of the Non Executive Directors
each year teking into account the length of tenure, relationships and
arcumstances as well as considenng the behaviour of each Director

at Board meetings and whether or not they contribute to unbiwased
and mdependent debate Ali of the Non Executive Dhrectors at the
time of this report and the Non Executive Chairman were independent
upon appomntrment and the Board believes that all five remain wholly
independent in relation to the criteria set out 1n Prowision B 11 of the
UK Corperate Governance Code

Comrmitments of the Non-Executive Chairman
Our Non Executive Chairman Graham Holden, dees not currently have
any other significant commitments

UK Corporate Governance Code

From 1 Apnl 2014 to 29 July 2014 the Board was non compliant with
provision 81 2 of the UK Corporate Governance Code which requires
at teast half of the Board excluding the Chasrman to be independant
Non Executive Directors Dunng this period there were two Non Executive
Directors and three Executive Directors The risk created by this
imbalance was mitigated by the Chairman consciously ensuring that
the views of the Non-Executive Directors were given appropriate
prominence in the Board meetings The retirement of Kevin Walsh

as Executive Director on 29 July 2014 rectified this non compliance
and the Board has been compliant with this provision ever since

with three ndependent Non Executive Directors and just two
Executive Directors as at 31 March 2015

In addition the Board was non compliantwith provision € 3 1 of the
Code from 1 April 2014 to 5 January 2015 which requires the Audit
Committee membership to be made up of at least three independent
Non Executive Directors This was rectified on 5 January 2035 when
Peter Srruth was appeinted to the Board and becarme a member of
the Audit Committee The nisk created by this non compliance was
mitigated through the Commiitee members spending additional time
meeting with members of the business and the external auditars to
ensure maiters for discussion were fully explored and all potential
viewpoints taken into consideration At the end of the year there were
three independent Non Executive Directars on the Audit Committee

Other than the exceptions noted above the Board considers that it
has complied with all the detalled provisions of the September 2012
UK Corposate Governance Code thiaughout the year ended 31 March 2015



UK Corporate Governance Code continued

The UK Corporate Governance Code was updated in September 2014
and the revised version applies to financial years beginning on or after
1 October 2014 We wili therefore report against the revised Code

i our reporting for the year ending 31 March 2016

The Board as a whole 1s committed entirely to the principle of
achieving and maintaining a high standard of corporate governance

The UK Corporate Governance Code 1s available on the Financial
Reporting Council website at www frc org uk

Board Committees

The Board has established and delegated speofic responsibibties te the
following Committees Each Commuttee reports back to the Board after
each meeting and menutes of Committee meetings are irculated to ali
Board members, where approprigte ta ensure that the whole Board 1s
aware of the matters considered by the Committees

Each Committee has its own report which sets out the membership
and attendance gt the Committee meetings dunng the year cs well
o3 further information on the role of Committee The Audit Committee
report can be found on page 36 the Nomination Committee report
on page 34 and the Remuneration Committee report on page 42

How the Board operates

The Board has eight scheduled meetings a year with other ad hoc meetings
held as needed Dunng the year the Board met 10 times The two addibonal
meetings were specifically held to consider the appointment of a new
Non Executive Director and to receve an update on an internal project
Attendance at the meetings during the year 1s shown in the table on the
nght Six of the meetings were preceded the evening before by an informal
meeting allowing more time te debate 1ssues in depth

The Board agenda is set for each meeting by the Charman with input
from the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary Inaddition
any of the Non Executive Directors can request @ maiter to be added
to the agenda at any time At each meeting the Board considers
business performance including reviewing past performance and
considering the future long term success of the Group Theretsa
standing agenda item in relation to strategy and this forms the basis
for discussion and debate around all aspects of strategy along with
updates on progress 10 relation to the strategic aims of the business

The Board receives reports each month on financial perfarmance
people matters investor relations governance compliance and nisk
These reports are circulated every month regardless of whether or not
a Board meeting 1s scheduted There are also regular updates an key
projects and strategic programmes and regular reports on cyber nisk
health and safety and corporate responsiblity

Board meetings are hetd at various KCOM Group PLC sites throughout the
year and the Board seeks to regularly meet both formally and informally
with sersor management from the four brands and the supporting

Group functions to gan fusther insight into the day to day operation of the
business and the key risks and opportunities facing each part of the business

There s a schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board which 1s reviewed
and updated each year Thus schedule requires that speciic matters
retating to budgets strategy performance against objectives financial
reporting internal cantrols communications remuneration and
governance along with any proposed changes to business operations
or the structure and capital of the Company are referred to the Board
for consideration and approval

The Board also reviews contractunl clauses escalated to the Board
through owr Cantracting Risk framework and business cases escalated
in accordance with our Group wide delegations of authonty

The Board considers the role of the Cormpany Secretary to be key in
ensuring that the Group and the Board have the nght govemance in place
and that Board processes follow best practice The Company Secretary
meets with each of the Directors individugclly as necessary to discuss
governance related ratters and provides a governance report to the Board
on a monthly basis The Directors are able also to obtain ndependent
professional adwice ot the Group s expense whenever necessary

Attendance at Board meetings

yodas si0pa00

Number of Out of
Director meetings possible
Graham Holden (Charrman} 10 10
Bil{ Halbert 10 10
Tony llisley 10 10
Paul Simpson 10 10
Peter Smith 3 3
Martin Towers 10 10
Kevin Walsh 3 3

Training and development

The Board receives monthly updates on governance related matters
and more formal training where appropnate Potentual training needs
are discussed as part of indwvidual performance evaluation plus each
Director 1s given the oppertunity to flag any additional traning
requirements which they may have identified as part of the annua!
Board evaluation process

New Directors joining the Group are given a broad and comprehensive
induction to the business consisting of site visits meetings with key
personnel and detailed information relating to each brand and the
Group as a whole as well as training speafically in relation to the
dutres of Directors and therr role on the Board

Relations with shareholders

It 15 essential that we cemmunicate effectively with our shareholders
and understand their views Qur Chief Executive and Chief Financial
Officer meet regularly with our institutional shareholders to discuss the
strategy performance and governance of the Company and to obtain
feedback During the year meetings have been held with 30 such
shareholders There are also general presentations following the half
year and final results announcements each year

Feedback from meetings with shareholders 1s included as part of the
monthly report to the Board and discussed at each Board meeting
along with detars of any analyst reports to ensure that each of our
Directors has a dear understanding of the vtews of our shareholders
Qur Non Executive Chairmars and Non Executive Directors are available
to meet face to face wath cur institutional shareholders if requested to
doso although no such requests have been received during the year

A large number of our indwidual shareholders live in the Hull and East
Yorkshire region and as a Group, we are very much iavolved in local
Iifein the area More information about our community activities 1s
detailed i our CR section on page 26 We believe that being a part of
the community enablées us to Yearn more about our local shareholders
and the issues that maiter to them

KCOM Group PLC 3 ‘I
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Directors report

Co rporate governance contnued

Performance evaluation

Area identified

What have we done?

More debate and discussion around future There is now a standing agenda item at each Board meeting on strategy which hasled to
strategy and the review of past decisions  detalled and robust debates throughout the year A formal process has also now been put In
place to review past decisions and present the outcornes back to the Board which was previousty

covered informally

More frequent discussion specifically
In relation to nsk
deemed useful

Specific discussions around risks and the risk appetite of the Group have been held
during the year both as part of the Boord meetings and in separate meetings where

A clear defimtion of roles for the
Chairrman and Chief Executive

Clearly defined role profites are now n place for the Chalrman and Chief Executive as well
as for the Semor Independent Director

More formal individua!
performance reviews

Regular formal performance rewews have now been put in place for each of the Directors
with the Non Executive Charman and for the Non Executive Chairman with the Senior
Independent Director

Relations with shareholders continued

We consider cur AGM to be an important means of communication
between our shareholders and Directors All of our Directors are
availlable at the AGM te answer questions and we seek to encourage
shareholder participation by inviting questions in advance

We use electronic voting at our AGM each year The results of voting
ncluding the proxy votes lodged are shown to shareholders in the
meeting and are made available subsequently on our website

All of our Company announcements are published on our wehsite
www kcomplc com together with presentation materials and
financial reports so that oll of our shareholders can keep up

to date with our news

Performance evaluation

In the summer of 2074 an externally faclitated Board evaluation was
performed by Independent Board Review a division of Independent
Audit Limited which does not provide any other services to the Group
The review cavered the Board and its Comrmittees and the results

of the review were very positive with no areas of major concern

There were a few areas noted for possible improvement which are
noted in the table above

In 20735 the intention 1S to return to using an internal evaluation process
facthitated by the Company Secretary This has proved extremely useful
in the past and has therefore been scheduled for the first quarter of the
financial year

As noted in the table above the Non Executive Chairman meets with
each Board member individually at least on an annual basis to discuss
their own performance and to identify any areas for development or
potential treining needs En addition the Non Executive Directors meet
separately to discuss the performance of the Non Executive Chairman
The feedback from this meeting 1s then passed on to the Non Executive
Chairman by ihe Senior Independent Durector

The Non Executive Directors have regular dialogue with each other
concerning Board matters and the Non Executive Charrman met
with the Non Executive Directors without the other Directors present
at regular intervats during the year

3 2 KCOM Group PLC
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Business model and key performance indicators
Details of our business model can be found on pages 10 and 11
and our key performance indicators are on pages 18 and 19

Proposal to re-appoint the external audstors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have advised of their willingness to
continue in office and have confirmed ther continued independence
Following consideration of the relationstup with the external auditors
as described on page 38 the Audit Commuttee has recommended to
the Board that PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP are re appomnted and a
resolution to re appoint themn will be proposed at the AGM They have
provided an independent audit opinion on these accounts which can
be found on pages 58 to 63

Powers of the Directors

The business of the Company 1s managed by the Directors who may
exercise all the powers of the Company subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association relevant statutes and any specual resolution of
the Company

The Articles of Association give the Directors the power to authorise
conflicts of interest in relation to transactions or arrangements with
the Company in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 Conflicts
of interest are a standing agenda itemn at Board meetings and each
Director proposes any potential conflicts for consideration as scon as
they become aware of them The Director with the potential conflict
15 excluded from the vote to authorise the transaction or arrangement

Any contflicts that are authonsed are then logged on aregister along
with detals of any specific terms imposed upon authonsation [nternal
controls are in place 1o ensure that transactions or arrangements which
may lead to a potential conflict of interest are conducted cnanarm s
length basis




Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 Maich 2015 the Company had been notified of the following interests amounting to three per cent or more of the voting nights in the
1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company As at 17 June 2015, there had been no additional disclosures received

% of total
voting rights

Number of shares with
voting rights

Invesco Asset Management 7199967 1394
Aberforth Partners LLP 25113106 4 86
Fidelity Worldwide Investment 22503530 436
Hargreave Hale 20512 246 397
Aviva Investors 20095616 389
M&G Investments 18 803 266 364
Norges Bank Investment Management 15494141 300

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are respensible for preparing the annual report and the
financial statements (in accordance with apphcable low and regulations
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
fo: each inancial year Under that law the Directars have prepared
the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union (EU) Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In prepanng these financial statements the Directors are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

« state whether applicable [FRSs as adopted by the EU have been
followed subject ta any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless (LS
inapproprigte te presume that the Company will continue in business

The Directors are respansible for keepmng adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Cempany s transactiens and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the Diwrectors Remuneration report comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group financal
staternents Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the
Group s website www kcomplc com Legislation 1n the Urited Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other junisdictions

Directors’ statement pursuant to the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules

Each of the Directors as at 31 March 2015 whose names and functions
are isted on pages 28 and 29 confirrmn that to the best of their knowledge

« the financial statements which have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true and farr view of the assets
habilities finanaal pesition and profit of the Group and Company and

= the Strategic report and Directors report contained 1n the annual
report includes a fair review of the development and performance
of the business and the position of the Group and Company together
with a description of the pnncipal nsks ond uncertainties that they face

Conclusion on the annual report

The Board is responsible for reviewing the annual report and after
consideration has concluded that the annual report taken as a whole
1s faur, balanced and understandable and that it provides the necessary
information for shareholders to assess performance business model
and strategy In reaching this conclusion the Board has considered
the different types of sharehotders that the Group has the reports
and presentations that the Board has recerved dunng the year and
the reports submitted to the Audit Committee duning the year by both
the internal and externa’ auditers and combined this with the Board s
collective knowledge of the business gained through both formal

and informa! meetings and personal interactions across the Group
atall tevels Further information on the reports submitted to the

Audit Commuttee can be found n the Audit Commitiee report an
pages 36 to 38

Amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association
Any amendments to the Company s Articles of Association may
be made by passing a special resolution at a general meeting

of the shareholders

Gosing concern

The Directors confirm that howving reviewed the Group s budget and
forecasts along with the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the
Group they are sctisfied that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly
the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis In prepanng the
financiat statements

KCOM Group PLC 3 3
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Directors’ report

Corporate governance continued

Nomination
Committee
report

Graham Holden

Chairman
Number of Out of
Director meetings possible
Greham Holden (Chairrman) 3 3
Tany Hisley 3 3
Peter Smith 1 1
Martin Towers 3 3

The membership and attendance at Committee meetings durning the
year 15 shown 10 the table above

The Nommation Committee is a sub committee of the Board and
meets as often as required 1t 1s responsible for reviewing the structure
size and composition of the Board and ensunng that the balance of
skills, knowledge and experience of the Board 1s nght for the Group
both for the current challenges and opportunities facing the Group
and the skills and expertise that are expected to be needed on the
Board In the future

Balance of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors (os at 31 March)

Executive Directors
333%

Non-Executive Directors
66 6%

Board of Directors
page 28
A
Board Appointments policy
We have a Board Appointments pelicy which sets out the procedure
that will be followed In the event of a Board vacancy being identified
along with our approach to diversity on the Board

The key principle set aut in the policy ts that the Board will always seek
to appomt on ment The Board recognises the benefits of diversity of
all types including gender professional and ethnic diversity and will
always aim to develop the diversity of the Board in order to promote o
diversity of perspective in the boardraom while remaining true to the
key principle of appointing on ment

The Board Appointments policy alse states that the Nominatien
Comimittee will only use firms that have signed up to the Executive Search
Firms Voluntary Code of Conduct addressing gender diversity and best
practice that female applicants are given the same consideration and
opporturuty as male applicants and that gender diversity 15 considered
specifically when drawing up a list of potential candidates
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In addition through the Board Appointments policy the Beard has
committed to

» continue to seek to identify and develop the talented individuals
in the Group regardless of gender

« review regularly the propartion of women at each level in the
orgamsation to ensure that equal opportunities are being presented
to mdwiduals at every level and

« always ensure that there 15 a confidential way in which concerns can
be rarsed without fear of repercussion «f anyone regardless of gender
has a concern about the oppartunities available to them

When Board vacancies arise the Nomination Committee is responsible
for prepanng a description of the role and capabihities required for a
particular appointment and then identifying and nominating candidates
for the approval of the Board [n order to identify suitable candidates
the Committee uses open advertising or the services of external
advisors to facilitate the search where appropnate

Appointments dunng the year

Since the last annual report, two new Non Executive Directors have
Joined the Board Peter Smith on 5 January 2015 and Liz Barber on
7 Aprl 2015 For each appentment the Nomination Committee set
out the quabtigs that the Board required and an external executive
search firm was appointed to lead the search The firm chosen was
Hanson Green which provides no other services to the Group

The Nomination Committee believes that both Peter and Liz were
the outstanding candidates for the roles that were described by
the Committee Peter brings extensive experience of working with
a wide range of businesses on their strategles and jons the Beard
at a tirne when there 1s significant work ongeing in refation to the
strategic direction of the Group When Martin Towers indicated his
intention to retire from the business at the AGM in July 2015 the
Nomination Committee sought a new Non Executive Director with
significant financial expertisé Liz brings this to the Group as well as
expenence of working in a large business with similar charactenistics
to KCOM Group PLC

Other Commuttee responsibilities

The Commuttee 1s also responsible for considenng succession planning
for the Directors and for key sentor management across the Group
although this 15 a matter alse considered by the full Board This includes
identifying future tatent within the business and providing expenence
and training as appropriate to enable Individuals to be ready to step up
to the next level

The Nomination Committee reviews annually the time required from
each of the Directors to perform their roles effectively Following this
review the Commttee is satisfied that each of the Directors has
commiited sufficient time duning the year to fulél therr duties as
Directors of the Company

The Committee reviews the re appointment of al! of the Directors
standing for re election at the AGM gving regard to their performance
and ability to continue to contrnbute te the requirements of the Board
The Nomunotion Comruttee then makes recommendations to the
Board on whether each Director should be put forward for re election
Information on the recommendations forre election this year can be
found oni page 30

The Committee s Terms of Reference are in ine with the
recommendations in the UK Corporate Governance Code and the 1CSA
Guidance on Terms of Reference for Nomination Commuttees Copies of
the Terms of Reference are available from the Company Secretary and
are on our website www kcomplc com




Risk management and internal controls

Risk management s key to all that we do as a business both in
managng and mitigating risks where appropriate and also in
ensuring we take risks where necessary and do so with a clear
understanding of the nisk that we are taking We believe that
knowingly taking some level of nisk 1s necessary to enable the
business to remain competitive and to maximise benefits 1o our
shareholders while ensuring we do not take risks that adversely
impact cur other stakeholders

Risk management is built into all of aur processes We also have
ansk team which has specific responsibility for health safety
envtranmental and legal risks insurance, governance and all
matters relating to standards and compliance

We recognise that our internal control systems can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss

Risk management framework

We have arisk management framework in place to help us to identify
assess measure manage and monitor our key risks In a consistent way
We define key nsks to be anything that may prevent us from meeting
our objectives The framework 1s regulary reviewed by the Board and
has been developed in accordance with guidance from the Financial
Reporting Councail to provide us with a single picture of the threats and
uncertainties we face This enables the Board and senior management
to make appropriate decisions to manage the key risks The framework
has been in ptace throughout the year under review and up to the date
of approval of this annual report

Risk management responsibilities

The Board

The Board has overall responsibikty for deciding the acceptable level

of nisk that the Group may take to achieve its objectives and has held
specific discussions around this during the year to ensure that the level
of nisk being taken across the Group 1s appropriate It is also responsible
for ensuring that the Group maintains sound internal control and risk
management systems as well as reviewing the effectiveness of those
systems Inorder to do this the Board receives regular reports from
senior management the internal auditors and the external auditors
via the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the systems of internal
contrel and nsk management The Board 1s satisfied that the systems are
embedded within the day to day activities of the business and cover all
maternial controls including financial operational and comphance centrols
and that the Group continues to be compliant with the provisions of the
UX Corporate Governance Code relating to internal control

Senior management

All of ourkey risks are now recorded and regularly updated on an online portal
and senior managers are responsible for reviewing the portal to ensure that
all relevant nsks are recorded and that the nsks are being appropnately
mitigated within reasonable timescales There are also a number of forums
for senior management such as a Securty Forum where senior managers
get together on a regular basis to discuss specific nsks and trends and to
review the work being done across the Group to mitigate any 1ssues

Audit Committee
The responsibilities of the Audit Committee in relation to nisk management
are set out Iin the Audit Committee report on pages 36 to 38

By our people

Risks are added to our nisk register
and rated for probabiity and impact

Auditing
Audit 1ssues management
Audit 1ssues are assigned
Ifanskisauditable tis  a semormenagement ;eﬁ:ffa?gg pg’r?srzsr:: .
added to the internal owner to determine the (rjeport odto thg Audit
audit plan action ?rl‘znlst:u:ntlgute Committee three bimes
ayear

Risk identrfication

By our whistleblowing
process

Risk recording

By external or
interncl audits

Risks are assigned a senior

management owner who is
responsible for documenting a

mitrgation plan on the nsk register

Risk reporting

The nskregisters are

The nisk registers are reviewed by the Risk
reviewed ur?d updated Cammitiee t)lt"ee times The r;slérleg'l;‘teg ared
bythenskownersona & year for completeness re{a:r el © the Boar
regular basis and consistency ree imes a year
nratngs

Financal sk management

uodas 51019

Each part of our business produces an ennual budget which s
reviewed by seruor management and ultimately approved by the Board
A longer term five year plan is alsoin place which 1s updated annually
and appraved by the Board to enable 1t te have a clear longer term
view of inanciat projections

We also prepare a quarterly forecast performance against budget
and quarterly forecast 1s monitored at monthly semor management
meetings and reviewed by the Board each month Further information
about the inancial nsk management policies in place and in particular
the way In which credit sk Liquidity nisk interest rate nsk and foreign
currency nisk are managed 1s in Note 27 to the financial statements

Controls around consolidation

The basis of consolidation for the financial statements 1s detaled

In Note 2 to the Anancial staterments Strong controls are in place
around the process for prepanng consohdated accounts The work
of consalidation is performed by expefienced qualified accountants
and a review of the consolidation ferms part of the audit work
performed by our external auditors

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainbies facng the business are set out
on pages 20 and 21 of the Strategic report
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Directors report

Corporate governance continued

Audit

Committee

report

Martin Towers

Charrman

Number of Qut of

Director meetings possible
Martin Towers (Chairman) 3 3
Teny llisley 3 3
Peter Smith 1 1

The membership and attendance at Committee meetings durning the
year is shown in the table above

The Audit Committee is a sub committee of the Board and 1s responsible
for reviewing all aspects of the financial reporting of the Group and all
aspects of internal control In doing so the Commuttee represents the
interests of the shareholders of the Group in relation to the integnity

of information and the effectiveness of the audit processes in place

Composition

The Audit Commuttee during the year under review has consisted of two
Non-Executive Directors up to 5 January 2015 at which point Peter Smith
joined the Committee as a Non-Executive Director From 7 Apnl 2015
Liz Barber also joined the Committee upon her appomntment as

Non Executive Director

The Committee 1s chared by Martin Towers who has significant
recent financigl experience He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountanis in England and Wales and has held o number of senior
finance roles mcluding working as Group Finance Director at Kelda
Group PLC until 2008 The Board considers therefore that he has the
relevant finangial experience to fulfil the role of Chairman of the
Audit Committee

Martin has indicated that it 1s his intention to retire from the Board at
the AGM In July and at that potnt Liz Barber will become the Chairman
of the Commuttee Liz currently works as the Group Dwrector of Finance
Regulation and Markets at Kelda Group PLC and was prevtously the
Head of Audit for the North of England at Ernst & Young She therefore
brings a wealth of recent financial experlence to the role

Committee meetings are also attended by the Executive Directors
the Director of Group Finance Services the Company Secretary and
representatives from the internal and external auditors The external
auditors meet alse with individual members of the Audit Committee
dunng the year without the other attendees present The internal
auditors also meet separately with the Chairman of the Audit
Commiitee without the other attendees present
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Meetings

There were three meetings held in the year in June November and
March The June meeting was used to review the year end external
audit and year end financial reporting the November meeting to
consider the half year review and financial reporting and the March
meeting to consider the planming for the year end

Each meeting included agenda 1tems relating to internal audit Ananclal

reporting and external audit The areas discussed under each item are
noted in the table below

Areq Descnption

Interna! audit The interna) audit agenda item focuses on the audits
performed in the penod including any significant
1ssues identified A report setting out previpus audit
1ssues raised and the progress made to mitigate the
1ssues is also discussed at each meeting A review
of the internal audit plan for the period to the next
Audit Committee meeting also takes place

Financia! reporting  The Director of Group Finance Services talks through
the key judgement areqs i relation to financial
reperting and sets out the decislons made and the
rationale behind these These are covered in more
detalon page 8

External cudit The representatives from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
set out the audit approach the key audit nisks an
overview of internal controls and a view on the key
audit and accounting matters as well as how
PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP ensures its continuing
independence from the Group

Each year the Audit Committee is also responsible for
= seekng the view of the externat auditors on any accounting
Judgements made in the year

« considering the consistency and appropriateness of the accounting
policies adopted

« reviewing the financial statements of the Group and the darnty of the
disclosures made although the ultimate responsibiity for reviewing
and approving the annual report and fAinancial statements remains with
the Board

« reviewing the adequacy of the whistleblowing procedures in place
to enable employees and third partles to raise concerns N confidence
as well as the effectiveness and independence of any investigations
undertaken as a result of such concerns being rassed

« reviewing the procedures in place for the detection of fraud and the
prevention of bribery across the business and

» overseeing the relationship with the external auditors

The Commuittee s Terms of Reference arein line with the
recommendations in the UK Corporate Governance Code and the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators Guidance
on Terms of Reference for Audit Committees Coples of the Terms
of Reference are avaltable from the Company Secretary and are
on our website at www kcomplc com




Significant issues relating to the financial statements
The specific Issues considered by the Audit Commttee in the year under review i relation to the finanaial statements are shown in the table below

Nature of the 1ssue

How the Commuttee was satisfied with
the treatment adopted by management

Any changes arising from discussion
by the Committee

Pension accounting assumptions

Pension accounting 1s complex and there
are a number of assumptions that have

to be made which can have a sigmificant
impact on the valuation of scheme liabilities

Thisis a recurnng matter

The approach to the assumptions made
was consistent with previous years and
the Commiitee was satisfied that this
was satisfactory given the reasonable
nature of the previous assumptions

and the fact that there had been no
requirements for change identified

Capitalisation of intangible assets on internal projects

There 15 a significant internal project
currently ongoing to implement a new
back office system Costs refating to
this are being capitahised in line with
cccounting standards but there have
been judgements made in relation to
the proportion of internal salaries that
should be capitalised for thus project
and the recoverability of the carrying
value of the asset

This will be a recurrning matter while there
are significant interncl projects ongoing

The appreach adopted by management
inrelation to the capitabisation of internal
salarnies was consistent with that previously
adopted for other 1T projects

Management noted that the expected
benefits of the project were sull n ine with
the onginal business case with the benefits to
date exceeding those included in the business
case In addition management remained
committed to the delivery of the remainder
of the project There was therefore no tngger
to indicate a potenticl :mpairment of the
asset carrying value

Valuation of goodwill and other intangible assets

Testing goodwill and other intangible
ossets for potential impairment I1s complex
and reguires a number of managernent
estimates and sensitivities to be applied
which inevitably require judgement

This 1s a recurnng matter

Exceptional costs

Management judgement around when
costs should be treated as exceptional
1s always an area for review

A full impairment assessment was performed

at the year end and this was discussed in
detall by the Commuttee along with the
assumptions made and the sensitivities in
relation to the assumptions [t was conduded
that an impairment of £33 9 million should

be recognised tn relation to the Kcom Cash
Generating Unit Further information on this can
be found in Note 14 to the financial statements

There s an established and well defined policy
in place in relation to the classification of
costs as exceptional and this has not changed
in the year Management had followed this
policy and therefore the Committee was
satisfied with the treatment adopted

by management

The assumptions were debated by
the Committee

No changes were made as the Committee
concluded that it agreed with the treatment
adopted by management

The Committee discussed at length the
approach to the capitahisation and the
proposed useful economic hie and concluded
that it was in agreement with the treatment
adopted by management

The Committee challenged the assumptions
and sensitivities and concluded that no
changes were required

No changes were made as the Committee
was tn agreement with the treatment
adopted by management
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Directors report

Co pPo rate governance continued

Audit Committee continued

External audit

The Audit Committee 15 responsible for overseeing the relationship wath
the external auditors to ensure that the external auditors continue to be
ndependent objective and effective in their work and also considers
the re appointment of the auditors each year

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed as auditors in 2006
following @ comprehensive tender process The current audit partner,
fan Mormison was appointed to the audit in 2017 following a partner
rotatton Each year the Commuttee considers the continued ndependence
of the external auditors and the effectiveness of the external audit
process, to determine whether to recommend to the Board that the
current quditars be re-appointed also taking into consideration the
desire to comply with the requirement of the UK Corporate Governance
Code to tender the external audit at least every 10 years and the
transitional arrangements in place in relation to this

There are ne contractual obhigations in place which would restrict the
choice of external cuditors by the Commuttee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the externai
audit process In the year through meetings reviewing the reports from
the external audit team and the close working of the internal oudit team
with the external auditors The Committee has concluded that the
external audst process was effective and is satisfied that the scope of
the audit 1s approprate and that significant jJudgements have been
robustly challenged

In addition PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has formally confirmed its
continued independence and the measures they have taken o ensure
that they comply with best practice and professional and regulatory
requirements in this area The Committee believes that audit partner
rotation 1s a significant factor in ensunng continued independence
and objectivity by reducing the nisk of familianty while retaimng the
detaited understanding of the business which the external auditors
have gained over time

We have an Engagement of External Auditors palicy which covers
the selectron of firms to perform non audit work This policy excludes
the auditors from prowiding certaim services such as internal audit
services litigation support remuneration advice and legal advice
services All other non audit work is assessed separately and 1s
owarded to the irm considered best suited to perform the work Any
such work with a fee greater than 25 per cent of the annual audit fee
must be approved by the Chairman of the Audit Committee before
the external auditors may be appointed

Dunng the year the fee for the external audit of the Group and 1is
subsidiaries along with other services pursuant to legislation was
£387000 (2014 E£245 000} In addition to this, the external auditors
provided services to the value of £90.000 (2014 £111000) relating to
tax adwvisory services and Group structunng advice work [n these areas
the auditors were considered the most appropnate firm to perform

the work
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Risk management and internal control

The Audit Committee reviews the Group s internal controls and nsk
management systems through the work performed by the internal and
external auditors and reports to the Board on the effectiveness of such
systems The internal control and risk manogemnent systemns have been
improved duning the year through the implementation of an SAP system
resulting 1n an increase in the arnount of automation in place acioss our
Finance systems The Commuttee is satisfied that any audit 1ssues raised
by either the internal or external auditors are being adequately followed
up and closed down on a timely basts

Internal audit

In November 2014 we took the decision to outsource aur internal audit
work and following o setection process, Deloltte were appointed as our
internal auditors The decision to outsource was taken to enable the
internal audit work performed to cover a broader scope and to give
us access to subject matter experts which we did not have with an
In house team Up to Novernber 2014 our internal audit teamn consisted
of two qualified accountants both with a Big Four background The
team performed financial operational and comphance audits and
assessed each potential audit area according to the nsk associated with
it and the level of assurance already in place Thas then enabled audits
to be appropriately priontised and built into the audit plan as necessary

Going forward a simitar approach 1s being adopted by Deloitte, of
pnoatising audits in relation to the risk associated with the audit area
as well as by looking specifically for what must go right rather than
simply the risk of something going wrong The audit plan is brought to
each Audit Committee meeting where it1s discussed and approved

The internal aud:itors report to the Audit Committee at each meeting
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the financial ¢eperatignal and
comphance controls in place across the Group The Audit Committee

15 responsible for monitonng and reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal audit work and does this through reviewing the internal audit
reports presented to the Committee and through the Chairman of the
Audit Committee meeting separately with the internal auditors outside
of the Commuttee

The Commuttee also reviews the adequacy of management responses
to the cudit issues raised and momitors the dosure of 1ssues on a timely
basis through a regular report from the intemal auditors

The internal and external audit teams work closely together to ensure
that all key nisk areas are covered and that the work performed by one
team feeds into the work of the other




Other disclosures

General information
General infermation 1s provided in note 1 of the financaial statements

Disclosure of all relevant information to auditors

The Directors who approved this report are satisfied that as far as they
are aware there ts no relevant audit information {as defined in the
Companies Act 2006) of which the Company s ouditors are unaware
Each of the Directors has taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make themnselves aware of any refevant
audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are
aware of that infermation

Directors

The names of the Directers who served during the year are on
pages 28 and 29 along with the biegraphical details of the Directors
serving at the date of sigming of this report Further infarmation
regarding the Directors who served during the year can be found

on pages 42 to S7 in the Remuneration report

Political donations
No political donations were made by the Group durning the year
(2014 ENI)

Employees

Qur people are a key asset and enable us to differentiate

ourselves from our competitors We therefore take great care to
have employment strategies in place to help our people develop

to ther full potential whiist also driving our business performance
Qur emgloyment policies are designed to provide equal cpportunities
irespective of age disability, ethmaty gender gender reassignment
marital status and civil partnership nationality pregnancy and
maternity race, religion and belief and sexual orientation

All employees whether part time or full time temporary or parmanent
are treated fairly and equally We select employees for employment,
promotion, training or other matters affecting their employment on
the basis of aptitude and ability

We take every opportunity to involve and consult with our employees
and we believe that employee involvement 1s an essenttal contributer
to the development of our business Cur Executtve Directors regularly
visit our different office locations to meet with our employees
provide updates on the perfarmance of the business and to recewve
suggestions and feedback through both roadshow presentations
and informal meetings

Regular video and news updates are provided to all employees through
our intranet and a weekly round up email 1s sent to keep everyone
informed of activities and developments across the business There (s also
amonthly briefing document for managers to share with ther teams
We encourage our employees to become shareholders by offenng

a Share [ncentive Plan {S1P) as we believe this i1s one opportunity

to encourage greater employee engagement More information

about this can be found on page 56

Share capital
The Comipany has a single ctass of share capital which 1s divided mnto
ordinary shares of 10 pence

Rights and obligations attaching to shares
In a general meeting of the Company voting 15 as follows

» onashow of hands every member present in person shall have
one vote

= onashow of hands every proxy present who has been duly appointed
by one or more members shall have one vote and

» onapoll every memberwhao s present in person or by proxy shall have
one vote for every share of which he or she 15 the holder

Amember s not entitled to vote in respect of any share in the capital
of the Company held by him or her «f there are sums payable to the
Company in respect of such share which remain unpaid

yodai s1033@Q

Full details of the deadline for exercising voting nghts in respect of the
resolutions to be considered at the AGM to be held on 31 July 2015 are
set out In the Notice of Meeting

All dividends are paid proportionately to the amounts paid up on the
shares and are paid to those members whose names are on the share
reqister at the date at which the dividend 15 declared or at such other
date as determined by the Directors or by an ordinary resolution of
the Company

If the Company is wound up the igwdator with the sanction of a
special reselution of the Company or any other sanction required by
law may divide the whole or any part of the assets of the Company
ameng the shareholders and may determine how the division of the
assets will be carmed out

Transfer of shares

All transfers of uncertificated shares must be made in accordance with
and be subject to the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 as
amended by the Uncertificated Secunties (Amendment) Regulations
2013 and in accordance with any arrangements made by the Board

All transfers of certificated shares must be inwriting in a form which has
been approved by the Directors thisis known as the Instrument of
Transfer The [nstrument of Transfer must be signed by or on behalf of
the transferor and the transferor will remain as the holder of the share
unty the name of the transferee 1s entered into the share register

The Directors may refuse to register the transfer of any share which s
not fully paid or which 1s i favour of more than four persens jointly The
Directors may alsc refuse to recognise an Instrument of Transfer if it s
not lodged at the Company s reqistered office or at any other place
which the Directers hove deterrmined

If the Directors refuse to register a transfer they will send to the transferee
a notice of the refusal and the Instrument of Transfer within two months
of the date on which the transfer was lodged with the Company
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Directors’ report

Other disclosures contnued

Acquisition of own shares

Atthe AGM in 2014 the Company was authorised by members to
purchase its own shares up {0 @ maximum of 51,660 391 Duning the
year the Company did not purchase any of its own shares

The Company funds Employee Share Trusts (ESTs) to meet 1ts
obligations under the Company s share schemes During the year the
ESTs purchased 4,170 000 (2014 2 043 000) shares on the London
Stock Exchange at a cost of £4 058 000 (2014 £1778 000) witha
nomunal value of £417000 (2014 £204 300) These shares represent

0 6 per cent of the called up share capital and are held in trust until they

vest therefore the purchase of these shares does not reduce the share
capitalinissue The total number of shares held in trust to meet
obligations under the Company s share schemesas

000's of shares

Asat 1Aprd 2014 205

As at 31 March 2015 165

Further details around the purchase of shares in the year are set out In
Note 26 to the financial statements

Requirements of Listing Rule 9 B 4R

Shares held by ESTs

The trustees of the Kingston Communications 2000 EST and the
Kingston Communications All Employee Share Plan vote any shares
held in the ESTs as they wish having due regard to the interests
of the employees as potential beneficiaries

There are two other ESTs the Kingston Commurnucations Qualifying
Employee Share Ownership Trust and KCOM Group PLC Employee
Benefit Trust that are currently dormiant and hold no shases

Ferfinancial years ending after 31 August 2074 the Listing Rules require certain specific disclosures to be provided in a single identifiable
section unless the annual report includes a cross reference table indicating where that information is set out

Section of LR 9 B4R Topic Where it 1s included
1 Interest capitalsed Not applicable
2 Publication of unaudited financicl informateon Not applicable
4 Details of long term incentive schemes with Not applicable

Directors or future Directors as sole participants

Send b Waiver of emoluments or future emoluments Not applicable
by a Director

7and 8 Non pre emptive 1ssues of equity for cash by the Not applicable
Group or major subsidiary undertakings

9 Parent participation sn a placing by a listed Not applicable
subsidiary

10 Contracts of significance in which a Director has ¢ Not applicable
material interest or between the Group, or a
subsidiary, and a controlling sharehofder

1 Prowision of services by a controlling shareholder Nat applicable

12 and 13 Shareholder waver of dividends or future dividends  Not appticable

14 Agreements with controlling shareholders Not applicable
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Significant agreements - change of control

The following significant agreements contain provisions entitling the
counterparties to exercise tesrmnation or other nghts in the event of
a change of control of the Company

» under our £200 million mult currency revalving facility agreement
dated 4 June 2014, the Company must notify Lioyds Bank PLC the
Agent of the agreement within seven days of becorming aware of a
change of control of the Company Any bank or financial nstitution
named within the facility agreement may then notify the Agent within
seven days that they wish to cancet theirr commitments The Agent
must then give at !east 21 days’ notice to the Company of this and
all outstanding ameounts due to that bank or inancial institution will
become immediately due and payable For these purposes a change
of control occurs If any person or group of persons acting in concert
gains cantrel of the Company and

« the Company's share schemes details of which are contained in the
Remuneration report on pages 42 1o 57 contan provisions which take
effect in the event of a change of contro! as a result of which options
and awards may vest and become exercisable The provisions do not
entitle participants to a greater interest in the shares of the Company
than that created by the nitial grant or award under the relevant scheme

The Company does not have any agreements with any Director
or employee that would provide compensation for loss of office
or employment resulting from a takeover

Strategic report

Pursuant to Section 414¢ of the Compantes Act 2006 the Strategic report
on pages 2 to 27 contains disclosures in relation to future developments
dividends financal nsk management and the disclosure of the
Greenhiouse Gas emisstons for which the Company 1s responsible

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Cur AGM will be held ot the KC Stadium Hull on Faday 31 July 2015
at 11 00am The Notice of Meeting accompanies this annual report
and s also avaitable on our Group website at www kcomplc com Five
resolutions will be proposed as special business Explanatory notes
on these resolutions are set aut in the Notice of Meeting

The Directors consider that all the resolutions proposed are In the
best interests of the Company and 1t 1s theirr recommendation that
shareholders support these proposals as they intend to do so inrespect
of theirr own holdings

This report has been reviewed ond approved by the Board
of KCOM Group PLC

Signed on behalf of the Board
Kathy Smith

Company Secretary
17 June 2015
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Directors’ report

Remuneration report

Statement from the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee

Tony Ilisley

Chairman

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the Board, [ am pleased to introduce the Directors
Remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2015 which sets
out details of the Rermuneration policy describes how the policy 1s
implemented and disctoses amounts paid for the year under review

Thus report includes an Annual report on remunerabion which describes
how the policy was implemented for the year ended 31 March 2015
and how we intend to implement the palicy in 2015/16 The Annual
report on remuneration together with this annual statement will be
put to an advisory shareholder vote ot the AGM on 31 July 2015
Inadditien to aid clarity we have mcluded an abndged version of our
policy which recerved binding shareholder approval at the 2014 AGM

The Committee has continued to review the Remuneration policy n
place to ensure that this incentivises the night behaviour and objectives
in the Directors ahgns with the expectations of our shareholders and
promales the long termn success of the Company and remains satisfied
that it continues to be fit for purpose

Structure of pay

It 15 the Committee s aim to reward farly for good performance with
the opportunity for greater rewards for extroordinary performance
whilst ensurning that we do not provide addibonal reward for
performance that is below expectations

The remuneration of the Executive Directors 1s made up of base sclary
a benefits package and pension provision plus subject to performance
cond:tions allied to the business strategy the opportunity to receive
cash payments under an anpnual bonus plan and shares under a

Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)
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In looking ot performance we constder both the current performance

of the Group and the longer term sustainability of the business This

1s reflected through operation of the annual bonus linked to the profit
performance of the Group in the year and the LTIP that rewards Total
Shareholder Return (TSR} performance relative to a comparator group
over a three year period We ensure that the Remuneration Commitiee
has final discretion aver the vesting of LTIP awards so that even when
vesting would be triggered by the TSR performance measure the Commuttee
must decide whether the three year performance 1s indicative of the
likely continued success of the business into the future

Incentive pay 1s subject to clawback provisions and share ownership
guidelines apply to ensuse that there is further alignment of interests
between Executive Directors and shareholders

Decisions made

As detaited in the Remuneration report last year, the Executive Directors
receved a pay increase of 2 75 per cent from 1 July 2014 This decision
was reached after looking at the performance of the Group and the
Drrectors mdividually as well as the pay conditions and awards made
across the Group This year the Remuneration Commuttee has again
reviewed the pay conditions across the Group the overall performance
of the Group and the benchmark information for ssmilar roles in similar
sized companies Taking all of this into consideration it has been
deaded that there wilt be no pay rise awarded to the Executive Directors
at this time Thus is consistent with the rest of the Group where pay
awards are only being made for employees in exceptional cases

The annual bonus scheme for the forthcoming year has been reviewed
by the Commttee and it has been agreed te retain the metrics operated
for the 2014415 year which are set out in more detall on page 49
During the year the Group did not achteve EBITDA above the target
level required to tnigger a bonus payment and therefore there are no
bonus payments proposed for the Executive Directors Further
information on this can be found on page 50




No LTIP awards were due to vest based on performance ending In
2014/15 Dunng the year new awards were granted under the LTIP
scheme to each of the Executive Directors equivalent to 100 per cent
of base salary This is consistent with awards made in the previous year
and was considered by the Committee to provide a longer term
incentive to the Executive Duectors as these awards will not vest
until 2017 and are dependent on relative TSR measured over a three
year performance peniod from the date of grant

The Committee plans to make further awards 1o the Executive Qirectors
under the LTIP scheme in July 2015 and plans to increase the level of
reward made for 2015/16 to 150 per cent of base salary this s withan
the existing policy and 1s to reflect the fact that the Group 1s embarking
on a penod of significant stiategic change and the Commttee beleves
that the level of reward should reflect the additional challenge that Les
ahead and that successful delivery of the planned transformation wall
reposition the business and enable the Company (o deliver increased
returns ta shareholders The Commuttee has taken into consideration the
total remuneration package of the Executive Directors in 1ts deciston
making process and such an increase 1n the LTIP award does not
Increase total remuneration above the market rate for simitar roles

at similar sized companies

The Commuttee 1s happy that relative TSR remains appropriate as the
perfermance measure for the LI IP scheme The business changes are
being implemented to improve total shareho!der returns and hence the
use of relative TSR provides strong alignment with this obyective There
15 also an underpin in place such that the Committee must be satisfied
that the financial and non financial performance of the Company
warrants the levef of vesting

The combination of relative TSR plus the underpin will ensure that the
delvery of returns takes into account the market context as well as
ensuring consistency between the relative TSR and the absolute
measures of the health of the Group

Views of the shareholders

The wiews of our shareholders in relation to remuneration are of great
importance to us and we believe that they can add real value to the
process of polcy formulation Any feedback would therefore be
welcomed and may be directed to me or to our Company Secretary
Kathy Smith

I hope that we canrely on your support for the resotution relating
to rermuneration at the 2015 AGM

Tony llisley
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
17 June 2015

This Directors Remuneration report sets out details of the Remuneration pohicy for Executive and Non Executive Directors describes the
implementation of the policy and discloses the amounts paid for the year ended 31 March 2015 The report complies with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large and Medwm sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) {Amendment)
Regulations 2013 and has been prepared in line with the recommendations of the UK Corporate Governance Code and the requirements

of the UKLA Listing Rules

Policy report

The Directors Remuneration pohicy of the Group was put to a binding shareholder vote at the AGM on 2% July 2014 1in accordance with
Section 439A of the Companies Act 2006 and was approved It therefore became effective from that date The current intention is to

operate the policy as approved for the full three years to the 2017 AGM ond we therefore do not propose to resubrmut it to shoreholders for
approval at the AGM in July 2015 This part of the Directors Remuneration report sets out an abridged version of the approved policy A full
verston of the Remuneration pohicy can be found on pages 46 to 51 of the Annual repart and accounts 2013/14 which can be found on our
website at www kcomplec com
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Directors report

Remuneration report continued

Policy report continued

Executive Directors’ policy table

Element and how it supports
the KCOM Group PLC strategy

How does this operate and what is the maxamum that may be paid?

Base salary

Setung the base salary at the aight
level enables us to attract and retain
the nght indnidual for the role whitst
reflecting appropriately the status
responsibility and expenence of

the individual

Base salaries are normally reviewed at least annually Salaries are typically set following comparison with Industry
based peer companies and companies of a similar size We aim to pay salanes around the median however we also
take into account a number of other specific factors sncluding the experience and performance of the individual the
criticality of the individual to the success of the Group pay and conditions throughout the Group and the wider
economic chmate

Increases wilt not ordinarily exceed the genera! level of mcrease for the Group s employees however increases
beyond those awarded to the Group s employees may be awarded in certain circumstances for example where
there 15 & change in responsibility progression in the role experience or whese there s a significant increase in the
scale of the role or the size and/or complexity of the Group

Details of the base salary for each of the Executive Directors are shown in the Annual report on remuneration
on poges 49 and 50

Benefits

Paying the right amount of benefits
hefps us to attract and retan the
right indmdual for the role

The provision of benefits s set based upon market practice at sumilar companes taking nto account also the benefits
available to other employees across the Group

The benefits ovailoble to both Executive Directors are

» private medical insurance for the Executive and thewr immediate family
» income protection

+ Ifeassurance

» car allowance of upto £16 000 per annum for the Chief Executive and £14 000 per annum for the
Chief Financial Gfficer

« fully expensed fuel card
+ medical screening and
+ the opportunity to participate inany all employee share plans operated by the Company 1 ine with HMRC guidelines

The cost of insured benefits may vary from year to year and there 1s nomaximum level set Additional benefits can be
purchased wia a deduction tn salary through the flexible benefits arrangernents available to all employees

Retrement benefits

Retirement benefits are paid as part
of @ market competitive package
which nturn helps usto attract and
retain high calibre indwiduals

Both Executive Directors are entitled te receive an employer pension contribution of up to 20 per cent of base salary
This can either be paid s a contribution direct to the Group Stakeholder Pension Plan or as cash to the individual
Contributions to the Group Stakeholder Pension Plan are dependent on a rminimum employee pensien contrbution
of three per cenl per annurn

Annual bonus

The annual bonus is designed to
reward the achievement of stretching
Group objectives and therefore drive
operational excellence

Al payments are at the discretion of the Committee Payments are considered and approved by the Committee
and are payable annually following publication of the Group s fult year results Up ta 10 per cent of maximum
banus 1s dependent on achieving the thrashold hurdle with shiding scale targets set for payments above thus level

Target performance receives up to 50 per cent of salary Performance above target results ina higher percentoge
up to a meximum of 100 per cent of salary

Long-term incentives

LOHg term incentive schemes are
used to drive growth in shareholder
value and to ensure that there isa
direct ink between reward and
superior shareholder returns

Awards are normally made annually and performance 1s measured over a three year period

The plan rules state that a maximum of 150 per cent of salary per annum may be awarded (200 per cent of salary may
be made in exceptional arcumstances) Actual award levels are disclosed each year in the Annual report on remuneration

Discretion retained in operating incentive plans

The Committee will operate the Group s annual bonus plan and LTIP according to the rules of each respective plan and consistent with normai
market practice and the Listing Rules including flexibility in a number of regards

KCOM Group PLC
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What performance measures are used and why?

Are there any provisions to recover sums paid?

No specific perforrmance measures are used in relation to deterrmining base salary but ndmiduai and
business performance are considered as part of the discussion when setting the base salary levels

Thereare no provisions to recover any sums paid

Benefits are not performance related

There are no provisions to recover any sums paid

Retirerment benefits are not performance related

There are no provisians ta recover any sums paid

The performance measures will be financial measures such as EBITDA The measures chosen will be
those that the Cornmittee believes most dosely align Executive Director and sharehotder interests and
are impoertang to the long term success of the Group The measures in place for 2014/15 are set out in
more detail on page 50

Clawback may be invoked for the annual bonus for
« rmaterial nisstaternent of the accounts
s eror In assessing performance conditions or

= gross misconduct

The performance measure used in the LTIP is Total Sharehoider Return {TSR) The Committee believes
that a relative TSR measure offers a robust measure of performance over the long term as it takes

into account changes in the econemic cycle while maintaining a focus on shareholder returns KCOM
Group PLC s TSR must rank at least median to the TSR performance of the companies withina
comparatos group Performance at median would resuttin 25 per cent of the awards vesting with
performance between median and upper quartile resulting in vesting of awards on a straight line basts
with 100 per cent vesting at upper quartile performance Inaddition, there 1s an underpin that the
Committee must be satisfied that the Group s financiat and non financial performance over the
performance penad warrants the leve! of vesting having regard to anumber of factors suchas

share price progression dividend policy and Earnings Per Share (EPS) performance

Clawback may be invoked for the LTIP for
= matenda misstatement of the accounts
= afror In assessing perfarmance conditiens or

= gross misconduct
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Directors report

Remuneration report continued

Policy report continued

Non-Executive Directors’ policy table

Element and how it supports
the KCOM Group PLC strategy

How does this operate and what is the maximum that may be paid?

Fees

Feesare set to recognise the
respansibiity and experience of
the individual and enable us to
attract and retain the nght calibre
of indiv.dual

Fees are normally reviewed ot least annually and may be adjusted as necessary to align with market rates

in companies of @ comparable size and to take account of factors such as the time commitment of the role

The Chawrman s paid an all encompassing fee te take account of all Board responsibilities The other

Non Executive Directors receive a bose fee with additional fees paid for additional responsibility such

as the chaning of a Committee and performing the sole of Senior Independent Director

No Non Executive Directors participate in any of the Company s incentive arrangements and no benefits or other
remuneration are provided Non Executive Directors will be reimbursed for any normal business related expenses

What performance measures are used and why?

Fees are not performance related however performance 1s addressed through regular one to one meetings
between the Chairman and each Non Executive Director

Are there any provisions to recover sums paid?

There are ne prowisions to recover any sums paid
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Recruitment policy

Ths table sets out the Company s policy on recruitment of new permanent Executive Directors for each element of the remuneration package

Executive Directors

Remuneration element

Policy on recruitment

Base salary

The Remuneration Committee will typically offer salanes around the median market level
for comparative roles but salaries above or below this level may be set to recognise the
experience of the indivmdual the wider economic chimate and pay and conditions
throughout the Group

Where it 1s appropriate to set a lower salary imtially, g senes of increases above the level
awarded to the wider workforce may be given over the proceeding few years untd the
desired positioning s achieved subject to indmdual performance This may apply to
those promoted internally in the Group as well as to those recruited from outside

yodas siopang

Benefits

The Remuneration Committee will offer a benefits package that will be set in line with
its policy for existing Executive Directors

In addition to the benefits currently available to existing Executive Directors the
Commuttee may also offer an allowance to cover relocation expenses as appropriate

Retirement benefits

The maximum pension coninbution will be set in ine with the Company s policy
for existing Executive Directors at 20 per cent of base saiary

Annual bonus

The Remuneration Committee wiil offer an annua! bonus inline with its policy for existing
Executive Duectors of up to 100 per cent of salary

Different performance measures may be set initially depending on the pointin the
financial year at which the indwidual joined The eppaortunity for an annual benus will
be pro rated for the penod of employment

Long-term incentives

On an ongoing basis awards will be made in ine with the policy for ather Directors 1In the
year of recruitment a higher award may be made within the approved mits of the ptan
{200 per cent of salary in exceptional circumstances such as recruitment)

‘Buy-outs’

The Committee may offer additional cash and/or share based elements when it considers
these to be in the best interests of shareholders and the Company Any such payments
would be based solely on remuneration relinquished when leaving the former employer
and would reflect (as far as possible) the nature and time honizons attaching to that
remuneration and the impact of any performance condiiions

The Remuneration Commutiee s policy on the buying out’ of existing incentives granted
by the Executive s previous employer will depend on the circumstances of recrutment and
will be negotiated on a case-by case basis There will not be a presumption in favour of
buy out but it will be considered if necessary to attract the nght candidate

In total the maximum vanable pay level i the year of appointment — excluding the value of any buy-out awards — will be 300 per cent of salary

For an internal executive appointment any variable pay element awarded in respect of the prior rofe would be allowed to pay out according
toits terms adjusted as relevant o take into account the appointment In addition any other ongoing remuneration obligations existing

prior to appointment would continue

Non-Executive Directors

On the appointment of a new Non Executive Chairman or Non Executive Director fees wall be set to take account of the calibre and expenence
of the indnvrdual prevailing market rates in cornpanies of a similar size and the expected time commitment essociated with the rofe
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Directors’ report

Remuneration report continued

PO'ICy report continued

Service contracts

[t1s the policy of the Group that the notice period for Executive Directors is set at six months for either party Prior to 2008 the notice penod
for Executive Directors was set at 12 months The decision has been taken not to retrospectively atter the notice perlod for those Drrectars
appointed with a 12 month notice pertod

Letters of appointment

Non-Executive Directors are appomted by letters of appointment rather than service contracts and the notice peniod in all letters of appointment
is set at six months for either party

Copiesof the Directors service contracts and letters of appomtment are available for inspection during of fice hours at our head office at 37 Carr Lane
Hull HU1 3RE There are no obligations on the Group in any of the service contracts or letters of appomntment to make payments beyond those
disclosed in this report

Payments for loss of office
This table sets out the policy on exit payments i relation to each remuneration element for Executive Directors

The Commuttee is clear that there will be a cansistent approach to exit payments and no reward for poor performance No amount is payable
If an Executive Director 1s dismissed for serious breach of contract senous misconduct or under performance or acts that bring the Executive
Director or Group into serigus disrepute

The Non-Executive Directors letters of appeointment do not include any compensation for loss of office

Executive Directors

Remuneration element Treatment on exit

Base salary Salary will be pad over the contractuc! notice period In all cases the Company will seek
to mitigate any payments due and the Executive Directors have a contractual duty to
use reasonable endeavours to obtain alternative income which can then be used to
recuce the salary If betng paid by instalments However the Company has discretion
to make a lump sum payment on termination in hey of notice

Benefits and retirement Benefits and retirement benefits will normaliy continue to be provided over the natice

benefits perod In all cases the Company will seek to mitigate any payments due However the
Company has discretion to make a lump surn payment on termination equal to the value
of the benefits payable during the notice pencd

Annual bonus Whether an annual borus payment Is made Is entlrely at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee and would be pro rated to the time of active service inthe
year of cessation The decision of the Committee would toke into consideration the
performance of the indwvidual the circumstances of the departure and the financiat
performance of the Group

Long-term ncentives Normally awards will lapse on cessation of employment unless the Company determines
and the Remuneration Committee agrees that the Executive is a good leaver Good leaver
status 15 usually conferred for one of the following reasons deoth il health injury
or disability retrement redundancy or other circumstances at the discretion of the
Committee Good leavers will be treated in accordance with the rules of the LTIP, as
approved by shareholders In these circumstances a partiopant s awards vest on a time
pro rata basis subject to the satsfaction of the relevant performance cnitena over the
original penod with the balance of the awards lapsing The Commiitee retains discretion
to decide not to pro rate to alter the basis of time pro rating and to alter the date
on which performance is calculated if 1t feels such declsions are appropriate in
particular crcumstances

Payments on a change of control where a Director s employment 1s adversely changed will be as on termination There will be no enhanced
prowisions on a change of control
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Annual report on remuneration

This part of the Directors Remuneration report sets out the amounts paid to Directors for the year ended 31 March 2015 and describes

how policy will be impleme
Remuneration Commitlee

nted in 2015/16 The Annual report on remuneration along with the statement from the Charman of the
will be put to an adwisory shareholder vote at the AGM on 31 July 2015

Implementation of policy for 2015/16

The table below sets out how the Remuneration policy will be implemented for the 2015/16 financial year

Executive Directors

Bill Halbert Pout Simpson o
Base sulqry Bill Halbert's base salary for the year will remain Paul Simpson s base salary for the year will rematn g
at £396 872 at £262126 3
3
3
Benefits The benefits to be provided remain unchanged from 2014/15 These include private medical nsurance for the Executive =2
and his immediate farmily income protection hife assurance a cor allowance of £16 000 per annum for Bill Halbert
and £14 000 per annum for Paul Simpson a fully expensed fuel card, medical screemng and the opportunity to
participate in the all employee Share Incentive Plan The Executive Directors are also able to purchase additional
flexible benefits which are available to all employees
Retirement Each Executive Director 15 entitled to an employer pension contribution of 20 per cent of base salary
benefits

Annual bonus

The performance measures for the annual bonus scheme are growth in EBITDA and growth in revenue measured
for the 2015/16 financal year Both Bill Halbert and Paul Simpson have a reaximum annual bonus entitlement of
100 per cent of base salary Up to 10 per cent of the maximum entitlement 1s tnggered upon exceeding a specific
targeted level of EBITDA If the EBITDA achieved in the year is greater than that required to trigger the full 10 per cent
payment then further bonus payments begin to accrue however payment of any bonus beyond the 10 per cent
15 dependent on an underpin of revenue growth in the year The exact targetsset are commercially sensibve and
therefore cannot be disclosed here but will be disclosed in the Annual report on remuneration next year

Long-term
incentives

1t is proposed to grant LTIP awards to Bill Halbert and Paul Simpson in July 2015 under the current scheme which
will be equivalent to 150 per cent of thewr base salary at the date of grant These awards will have a three year
performance period and therefore will be due to vest n July 2018 subject to the achievement of relative total
shareholder return performance conditions The rationale for this level of award 1s described further on page 43
The performance conditians attached to the LTIP awards are described on page 51

Non-Executive Directors

The fees of the Non Executive Directors were reviewed 10 June 2015 and have not been increased for 2015/16 from levels set i July 2014

E'000
Chairman fee 125
Base fee 43
Senior Independent Duector fee 1
Audit Committee Chawman fee 6
Remuneration Committee Chairman fee '

1 Tony Msley does not recenve a fee for hes role o5 Chamcan of the Rermunerabion Committee as hs fee for the rofe of Serwor [ndependent Directos is deemed to be indusive of ony Cormmuittee Chaman fees.
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Drrectors report

Remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued

Single total figure table (audited)

Executive Directors

Bili Halbert Paul Simpson Kevin Walsh Total
FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014
£ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E'000 E£'000 E'0CO £'000
Fixed pay
Base salary 394 386 260 255 81 241 735 882
Taxable benefits 16 16 23 24 & 7 45 57
Retirement benefits 66 66 50 49 14 47 130 162
Sub-total 476 468 333 328 101 305 10 130
Performance related pay
Annual bonus — 27 — 18 — 17 — 62
Long term incentives —_ - 77 413 &77 43 954 826
Sub total —_ 27 477 431 477 430 954 888
Total 476 495 B10 759 578 735 1,864 1,989
Non-Executive Directors
Graham Holden Tony llisley Peter Smith Martin Towers Total
FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014
£°000 E£'000D E 000 £ Q00 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'00C £'000
Fees 125 47 54 52 10 _ 49 47 238 46
Total 125 47 54 52 10 _ 49 a7 238 146

Explanatory notes

Base salary
The salary for Kevin Walsh was paid up to the date of his retirement
from the Board on 29 Juty 2014

Taxable benefits

8ill Halbert received a car allowance of £16 000 but elected not te
receive any other benefits from the Group The taxable benefits for
Paul Simpson and Kevin Walsh include private medical insurance
incorne protection life assurance medical screening a company car
equivalent to a £14,000 per annum car allowance fully expensed
fuel cards and membership of the all employee Share Incentive Plan
The benefits ncluded above for Kevin Walsh ceased on the date of
his retirement fraom the Board on 29 July 2014

Retirement benefits

Bill Halbert has elected not to be a member of the Group pension
scheme and, accordingly the Group made no contributions on

his behalf Instead he received cash payments totalling £65 905
{2014 £65905) which are disclosed above within retirement benefits

Paul Simpson and Kevin Walsh elected to receive part of their
pension contribution entitlement in cash due to therr Pension Lifetime
Allowance contributiens being reached These amounts were £17,000
(2014 £15000) ond £14 00Q (2014 £12 000) respectively and are
included in the table above withen retirement benefits The retirement
benefits payable to Kevin Walsh included above ceased on the dote of
his retirement from the Board on 29 July 2014

None of the Directors have any prospective entitlernent to defined
benefits or cash balance benefits in respect of qualifying services
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Bonus receivable for the year

The annuat bonus was dependent on the achievernent of Group financial
perfarmance targets around growth in pre exceptional Group EBITDA and
Group revenue Up to 10 per cent of the maximur bonus entitlement of
100 per cent of salary was dependent on exceeding pre exceptional Group
EBETDA of £76 5 milion in the year Over performance agamst this target
would have created a bonus pot with a propertion of profits above this level
being shared amongst all employees in the scheme as well as the Executive
Drrectors up to the maximum level of bonus for all partiopants Any
additional bonus above the 10 per cent would also be dependent on

an underpin of year on year Group revenue growth

The level of pre exceptional Group EBITDA achteved in the year was
£74 3 milion which was not encugh to trigger a bonus and therefore
no bonus 1s payable

Kewvin Walsh dd not partiaipate in the annual bonus plan for 2014715

Long-term incentives

In the current and prior year shares were released from the Executive
Incentive Plan to Pau! Simpson and Kevin Waolsh the amounts of which
have been included in the table above Further details on this scheme
are included on page 51

Included within the EIP vesting figures were dividends of £78 000
{2014 £58 000) for Poul Simpson and £78 000 (2014 £58 000)
for Kevin Walsh

The first awards under the LTIP were made in July 2012 and the
performance period for these awards endson 19 July 2015 Based
on performance up to Aprd 2015 it did not appear that any vesting
of awards would be tnggered but the actud figures once confirmed
will be included in the single total figure table for 2015/16



Explanatory notes continued

Payments for loss of office
No paymenis for loss of office have been made

In November 2013 Kevin indicated that it was his intention to retire
from the Group in the summer of 2014 He stepped down from the
Board ot the AGM on 29 July 2014 and signed a new service contract
reducing his notice period to just three months therefore ensuring
that the notice penod for which he was paid did not extend beyond
12 months from the date of his imtial iIndication

Kevin therefore retired as an employee on 31 October 2014 and his

fixed pay ceased on that date Kevin received awards under the LTIP
scheme 1n Muly 2012 and July 2013 The performarice period for these

Share awards outstanding at the year end

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

schemes ends in July 2015 and July 2016 respectively and, as a good
teaver Kevin will be entitled to receive any shares that vest under the
scheme pro rated to the date of his retirement to the extent
determined by the Remuneration Committee

Non-Executive Directors

The fees for the Mon Executive Directors were increased from £42,000
per annum to £43 000 per annum with effect from 1 July 2014 with an
additronal £6,000 per annum from 1 July 2014 previously £5 000 per
annum for the responsibility of chainng the Audit Committee and an
additional £11 000 from 1 July 2014, previcusly £10 000 for the role

of Senior Independent Director

On 19 luly 2012 a new long term mcentive scheme the LTIP was approved by shareholders The scheme authonses the Remuneration Committee
to grant nil cost share options to the Executive Directors and selected senior managers on an annual basis

Awards made under the LTIP scheme (audited)

Nil cost Nil cost

options Nil cost Nil cost options Award that

outstanding option aoptions outstanding Face would vest at

an 1 Apnl  awarded in lapsed due on 31 March value of threshold
Share price 2014 theyecr  toretirement 2015 maximum performance? End of
Date of atdate of 000'sof Q00 s of 000's of 000's of award’® 000 sof performance
grant grant options options aptions options £'000 options penod
Bill Halbert, 19 luly 2012 76 35p 518 — — 518 396 130 19 July 2015
17 July 2013 8250p 468 —_ - 468 386 g7 17 July 2016
17 July 2014 9500p —_ 618 — 418 397 105 17 July 2017
Paul Simpsen 19 July 2012 76 35p 342 — — 342 261 86 19 July 2015
17 July 2013 8250p 309 —_ — 309 255 64 17 July 2016
17 July 2014 9500p — 276 —_ 276 262 69 17 uly 2017
Kevin Walsh 19 July 2012 76 35p 325 — (78) 2473 189 62 19 July 2015
17 July 2013 82 50p 293 — (167) 1267 104 32 17 July 2016

1 Foce value has been colculated using the share price at the date of grant.

2 25 per cent of the award vests at threshold performance

3 Kewin Walsh has been deerned by the Committee to be o good leaver and therefore remains entitled to receive these shares which have been pro-rated to the date of his retirernent. subject

to vesting concitions being met

The scheme measures TSR performance over a three year performance
period from the date of grant relative to the TSR performance of each
company within a comparator group, compnsing those companies
within the FTSE 250 (excluding investrnent trusts) as at the start of
the performance period

No part of the awards may vest untess the Company s TSR performance
ranks at least median to the TSR performance of the comparator group
Performance at median would result in 25 per cent of the awards vesting
with performance between median and upper quartile resulting N a
vesting of awards on a straight line basis with 100 per cent vesting at
upper quartile performance

In addition regardless of TSR performance no awards shall vest unless
the Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the Company s financial
and non finanaial performance over the performance penod warrants

the level of vesting set out in the vesting schedute The Committee will
consider the Company s share price progression dividend policy and
EPS performance as part of this review

On the exeraise of an award particpants receive an amount in cash or
extra shares equal to the dividends that were declared dunng the period
from grant to exerase but only In respect of the shares that vest

The first awards under the scheme were made on 19 July 2012 with further
awards made in each of the subsequent two years The maximum
award allowed under the Remuneration policy 1s 150 per cent of base
salary at the time of the award For each of the three grants to date the
award granted to each Director has been equivalent to 100 per cent of
base salary at the time of the award
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Directors report

Remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued

Shares awards released dunng the year

Executive Incentive Plan (EIP)

The EIP was introduced in 2009 at the request of shareholders as the Group’s main long term incentive scheme All the Executive Birectors
participated in this scherne and were granted a conditional night to a number of ordinary shares in the Group which would vest after three years to
the extent that the associated TSR performance condition was met The scheme has now closed and there are no further shares to vest or be released

The maximum awards and amounts vested for the EIP {audited)

Actual

award Valug of Value of Value of
vested at Released shares Released shares Released shares
Market  Maximum 2u4July  Market on2h4uly releasedon  on24luly  releasedon on 24 July released
priceat award 2012 prceat 2012 24 Juty 2013 24 uly 2014 on 24 July
Dateof dateof 000 s of 000sof  dateof 000 s of 2012 000's of 2013 000 sof 2014
grant grant shares shares vesting shares E£'C00 shares E 000 shares £'000

Current Directors
Biil Halbert 24 uly 2009 28 25p 7480 5187 74 0p 5187 3838 — —_ —_ —
Payi Simpson 24 July 2009 28 25p 2420 1678 74 0p 839 621 420 355 420 399
KewinWalsh 24 July 2009 28 25p 2420 1678 74 0p 839 621 420 355 420 399

Previous Director
Paul Renucct 24 July 2009 28 25p 1028 n3 74 0p 357 264 178 15 178 167

For fultvesting KCOM Group PLC s average TSR over any three month
period In the three years to 24 July 2012 had to equal or exceed

130 pence This reduced to 10 per cent vesting on a straight line basis
for a TSR of 45 pence with no vesting below 45 pence During the
performance pertod the highest rolling three manth TSR achieved was
81 26 pence which meant that 69 34 per cent of the maximum awerds
vested on 24 July 2012

Vesting was also subject to the Remuneration Commuittee being satished
that there had been a demonstrable and sustainable improvement in the
Group s financial and nen financial performance over the performance
period This was considered and the Remuneration Committee took
into account the increase in shareholder value over the same penod
comparing the market capitalisation of the Group at 24 July 2009 of
£145 9 milhon with the market capitalisation of the Group at 24 July 2012
of £382 3 million, showing a 162 O per cent increase
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In addition over the performance period dividends of £48 3 million

had been paid resulting in a total increase in sharehelder value over
the performance pernied of £284 7 milllon The awards granted to the
Executive Directors on the vesting of the scheme on 24 July 2012 had a
market value on vesting of £6 8 million, representing just 2 4 per cent of
the total increase in sharehaolder value overthe three years of the scheme

The vested shares were released in full to Bill Halbert at the end of the
performance period as at the time the scheme was introduced this
timescale was better ahigned to his expected tenure in his role




Relative Group performance

The graph below shows for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 and for each of the previous six financial years the TSR on a holding of the
Group's ordinary shares compared with a hypothetical holding of shares in the FTSE Fixed Line All Share and the FTSE 250 These indices have
been chosen as appropniate comparators because they reflect the performance of other companies most similar te KCOM Group PLC 1n terms of

product and service offenng and market capital

TSR performance since 31 March 2009

Value of £100 invested at 31 March 2009

KCOM Group PLC vs FTSE Fixed Line All-Share and FTSE 250
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Remuneration of the Chief Executive

Bill Halbert becarmne the Chief Executive of the Group on 1 Apnl 2014 having previously been the Executive Chairman and perforrming a dual
role of both Chief Executive and Charrman The table below sets out the remuneration for Bill Halbert in hus role as either Executive Chairman

or Chief Executive in each of the last six years

FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 FY2012 FY201m FY2010

£ 000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total remuneration 476 495 4791 522 476 523
Annugl bonus peid against maximum epportunity 0% 7% 0% 0% 0% 40%
Long term incentave vesting against mMexumum oppostumty’ N/A N/A 69 34% MNIA NIA NIA

1 There was no long tem incenteve schame scheduled to vest Bosed on perfarmance ending in any of the financial years other than the yeor ended 31 March 2013

The table below sets out the increase in the remuneration of the Chief Executive from the prior year in comparison to the average percentage

change in respect of the employees of the Group as a whole

Average per

Bill Halbert employee!

Percentage change in the year to 31 March 2015

Base salary

Increase of 21% Increase of 2 2%

Benefits

Increaseof 17% Increase of 3 2%

Annual bonus

Reduction of 100% Increase of 71%

1 The average per employee has been calculated on a per head basls using cfl of the emplayees In the Group who heve remained in the same role theoughout the year excluding the Executre

Directors. This group has been selected to enable a lke-for-like comparson with the Chief Executive
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Directors’ report

Remuneration report continued '

Annual report on remuneration continued
Relative spend on pay
The table below sets out the relative spend on pay for the entire KCOM Group PLC in comparison to distributions to shareholders

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£'000 £'000 Percentage change
Total remuneration cost for allemployees' 68 360 85953 (20 5%)
Dividend payments to shareholders 26057 23764 96%

1 The total remuneration cost for ait emplayees is taken from Note 8 to the financiod statements on page 77 and ndudes wages and salanes, sacidl security Costs other pension costs and share scheme costs

Service contracts and letters of appointment

Date of Board Date of current service contract Notice peniod
appelntment or letter of appontment (months)
Executive Directors
Bill Halbert 1 September 2008 7 June 2011 6
Paut Simpson 24 May 2004 20 June 2011 12
Non Executive Directors
Graham Halden 27 November 20072 13 May 2014 6
Liz Barber 7 Apnl 2015 30 March 2015 6
Fony lisley 2 lune 2009 29 May 2009 6
Peter Smith 5 January 2015 26 December 2014 &
Martin Towers 2 June 2009 1 June 2009 13

1 8ill Halbert was a Nan Executive Director of the Group from the date of his Boord appointment until 25 November 2008 when he becarne Executive Deputy Charman On 24 July 2009 he moved
nto the rofe of Executive Charman From 1 Apnl 2014 the role of the Executive Chairman was spht and Bill moved into his current role as Chief Executive

2 Graham Holden was a Non Executive Director of the Group from the date of his Board appomiment untid T April 2014 when he was appointed as Non Executve Charman
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Remuneration Committee

Number of Out of
Durector meetings possible
Tony lilsley (Chairman) 3 3
Graham Holden 3 3
Peter Smith — —
Martin Towers 3 3

The membership and attendance at Committee meetings durning the
year 15 shown in the table cbove Meetings were also attended dusing
the year by the Non Executive Chairman, the Chief Executive the Group
HR Director and the Company Secretary, although none were present
when thair own reward was under discussion

The Remuneration Committee 1s a sub commuttee of the Board and has three
scheduled meetings a year and meets for additional meetings as and when
required For the year under review there were no addibonal meetings held

Duning the year under rewiew the Commuttee received advice on all aspects
of remuneration from independent remuneration consultants New Badge
Street atrading name of Aon Hewitt Limited an Aon plc company which
was appointed by the Committee in August 2011 following a comprehensive
tender process New Bridge Street 1s a signatory to the Remuneration
Consultants Group Code of Conduct and any advice receved is governed by
that code The fee paid to New Bnidge Street duning the yecar for this advice
was £41 537 (2074 £45 000} which s charged as a fixed annual fee for
recurring work with separate fees agreed as appropriate for additional
adhocwork

The Committee has reviewed the way in which New Bridge Street operates and
its relationship with the Group and remains satishied that the advice it receves is
independent and objective Aon Hewitt also prowvides actuanial and investment
consultancy odvice to the Trustees of the Group s two defined benefit pension
schermes which the Committee considers does not result ina conflict of interest

In accordance with its Terms of Reference the Committee
1s responsible for

determining and agreeing the Remurieration policy for the Chief
Executive the Executive Directors and senior management across
the Group

having regard to remuneration trends acress the Group and remuneration
in other companies when setting Remuneration policy as well as to
environmertal socdl and governance matters when appropriate

selecting appointing and setting the Terms of Reference for any
remuneration consuitants who advise the Committee

approving the design of and determining targets for any performance
related pay schemes operated by the Group and approving the total
annual payments made under such schemes

review:ng the design of all share ncentive plans for approval by the
Board and shareholders and determining each year whether awards
will be made and f so, the overall amount of such awards the
individual awards and the performance targets to be used

deterrmining the policy for and scope of pension arrangerments
for each Executive Director and senior management and

ensurng that contractudl terms on termination and any payments
made are farr to the indmdual and the Group that failure 1s not
rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss is fully recogrused

The Commuttee s Terms of Reference are in ine wath the
recornmendations in the UK Corporate Governance
Code and the Institute of Chartered Secretanes and
Adrministrators Guidance on Terms of Reference for
Remuneration Committees Copies of the Terms of
Reference are avallable from the Company Secretary

or on our website www kcomple com

The specific matters considered by the Committee during the year were

Description

What the Committee has done

Reviewing the Executive Directars’
remuneration packages

The Commuttee reviewed benchmark analysis of the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and the senior management team against comparable roles and

considered market trends 1n remuneration across the industry and in similar sized companies,
as well as considering the performance of the Group and of the individuals

Reviewing the proposed annual
boenus scherne for the 2014/15

financial year and performance
agarnst the scheme for 2013/14

The proposed scheme for 2014/15 was reviewed by the Committee wath particular emphasis
on the need to ensure that the bonus scheme incentivised those with the greatest ability to
have a direct impact on the performance of the Group

The Committee reviewed the financtal perfarmance of the Group that had triggered a banus
poyment of 14 per cent of the maximum for 2013/14 and agreed that it was appropnate

that this should be paid

Reviewing progress on the LTIP
scheme and deterrmining the awards
for 2014

The awards made in July 2014 under the LTIP scheme were reviewed and approved
by the Committee There was also a review at each meeting of progress against the
performance measures

Reviewing the Directors’
Remuneration report in the annual
report and accounts

The Directors Remuneration report in the 2014 annual report and accounts was reviewed
by the Commutiee dunng the year Following the year end the Committee reviewed and
approved the current Remuneratian report

Reviewing remuneration trends and
up-to-date gurdance from
governance institutions

The Committee spent ime considering trends in relation to remuneration and considered
matters such asintroducing defeiral to the bonus scheme and LTIP scheme [t was agreed
that this would be considered going forward as new schernes were ntroduced

KCOM Group PLC 5 5
Annual report and accounts 2014/15

vodal 510133110




Directors’ report

Remuneration report continued

Directors’ interests in shares (audited)

As at 31 March 2015

Actual share

Nil cost share ownership as a Required share

options subject percentage of ownership as
Shares cwned to performance salary ¢n o percentoge
outnight conditions? 31 March 20152 ofsalary  Requirement met?
Executive Directors
Bill Halbert 248230 1404 397 570 8% 100% Yes
Paul Simpson 525 89%° 927576 1831% 100% Yas
MNon Executive Directors
Graham Holden 50000 — - — —
Tony Ilisley — — — — —
Peter Smith — — — — —
Martin Towers 237990 — — — —

1 These are awards made under the LTIP scheme further detouls of winch can be found on page S1

)
2 Cakukated using the dosing mid market price of KCOM Group PLC shares on 31 March 2015 and only those shares owned outright by the Executve Oirectors and thewr connected persons
3 Thus indudes matching shiares awarded under the SIP which may be subject to forferture in certain circurnstances

The table above sets out the interests of all the Directors as at 31 March 2015 (as listed on pages 28 and 29) and their connected persons in the
Group s shares

The Group Share Incentive Plan (SIP) 1s open to all employees and offers free matching shares on a shiding scale from 2 1 for monthly contnbutions
of £20te 1 3 for monthly contributions over £51 Currently 980 employees participate in the scheme Including one of the Executive Directors

Since the end of the year shares in the SIP have continued to be awarded each month for which we make menthly announcements as required
under Section 5 6 1 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules This has resulted in Paul Simpson holding 705 additional shares which incdludes
matching shares awarded under the SIP which may be subject to forfeiture in certan arcumstances

Shareholder views -

At the 2014 AGM there were shareholder votes taken on both the Remunemation policy and the remainder of the Remuneration report
The cutcomes of the vates are shown in the charts below

Remuneration policy Directors’ Remuneration report

(excluding the Remuneration policy)

Votes for Votes for
329,872,924 (94 89%) 334,635,449 (97 44%)
Votes against Votes against
17,770,426 (511%) 8,798,672 (2 56%)
Votes withheld’ Votes withheld’

160 438 4,374,119

1 A votewithheld 15 Mot & vote in law and 15 therefore not counted in the calculation of the proportion of votes for and against

56
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Outside appointments

In 2014415 Bili Halbert received no direct remuneration for his external non executive positions Kevin Walsh acted as Chairman of Manx Telecor Plc
whilst also working as Executive Director at KCOM Group PLC His remuneration for the penod from 1 April 2014 up to his retrement on 31 October
2014 was £46 667 which the Board agreed he should retain

General information {audited)

The closing mid market price of KCOM Group PLC shares on 31 March 2015 was 91 25 pence The lugh and low closing rmud market share prices
during the year were 104 10 pence and 79 0 pence respectively

Stgned on behalf of the Board

: @
Wrswin 2
a

t-]

]

Kathy Smith 3
Company Secretary §

17 June 2015
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Financial statements

Independent auditors’ report
to the members of KCOM Group PLC

Report on the financial statements
Our opmion
In our opinion

« KCOM Group PLC s group financial statements and parent company financial statements {the ‘finanaial statements ) give o true and farr view
of the state of the group s and of the parent company s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of the group s profit and the group s and the parent
company s cash flows for the year then ended

« the group financal statements hove been properly prepared in accordence with Intesnational Financial Reporting Standards { TFRSs7)
as adopted by the European Urnion

= the parent company financial staternents have been properly prepared 0 accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the group
financial statements Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited
KCOM Group PLC s financial staterments comprise

» the consohdated and parent company balance sheets as at 31 March 2015

« the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive ncome for the year then ended
« the consohdated and parent company cash flow statements for the year then ended

« the conselidated and parent company statement of changes in shareholders equity for the year then ended and

»+ the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

The financiat reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial staternents 1s applicable law and 1FRSs as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union and as regards the parent company financial statements as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Compamies Act 2006

Certain disclosures reguired by the finanaal reporting framework have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report and accounts {the Annual Report )
rather than in the notes to the financial statements These are ¢ross referenced from the financial statements and are identified as audited

Our avdit approach
Overview
Mateniahty
« Overall group matenality £2 5 milhon which represents 5% of profit before tax and the
impairment of goodwill

Materiahity Audit Scope

» The group engagement team performed audits of the complete financial infermation of all

trading entities

Audit scope
Areas of focus

s Valuation of goodwill
« Valuation of defined benefit pension scheme habiities
Areas of

focus « Capitahsation of internal project costs

o Clossification of costs as exceptional

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus }
We conducted our audit in accardance with International Standards on Auditing {UK and Lreland) { ISAs (UK & Ireland) )

We designed our audit by determimng matenalty and assessing the nisks of matenial misstatement 1 the financial statements In particular we looked
at where the Directors made subjective judgements for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and
considering future events that are inherently uncertain As in all of our audits we clse addressed the risk of management overnde of internal controls
tncluding evafuating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud

The nisks of matenial misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit including the allocation of our resources and effort are sdentified as
aregs of focus™ in the table below We have dlso set out how we tailored our audit to addiess these specific areas 1 order to provide an opinion on the
financa! statements as @ whole and any comments we make on the results of our procedures should be read in this context This 1s not a complete hist
of all nsks identified by our audit
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Report on the financal statements continued
Qur audit approach continued
The scope of our audit and our areas of focus continued

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of fecus

Valuation of goodwill

We focused on this area because the deterrmination of whether or
not goadwill 1s imparred involves complex and subyjective judgements
by management about the future results of the relevant parts of

the business

On an annual basis management calcutate the amount of headroom
between the value in use of the group’s Cash Generating Untts { CGUs )
and thew carrying value to determine whether there is a potential
impairment of the goodwill relating to those CGUs The determination
of the amount of headreom 1s dependent on the value in use of the CGU
which in turn 15 dependent on estimates of short term and long term
profit growth from operational improvements

Opening goodwill of £85 3m was split between 3 CGUs, Eciipse (E7 9m)
Keom (£72 3m) and Smart421 {£5 1m) We focused our audit efforts
initially equally across the three CGUs before directing our attention

to the Kcom CGU where management s assessment of value inuse
indicated an imparment of £33 9m to the £72 3m of goodwill Asa
result of the imparrment headroon s reduced to zero Any further
changes 1n assumption may give rise to a potential further imparment

[n testing management’s assessment of the value in use In each of the
CGUs we focused on the following key assurmptions

» Budgeted cash flows for the next 5 years

= Thelong term (terminal) growth rate applied beyond the end of the
5 year budget penod

¢ Thediscount rate applied to the model

We also focused our audit attention on the sensitivity analysis and
alternative scenarios prepared by management and assessed the
likelihood of these scenarics occurring

See the accounting policies section within the financial statements for
disclosure of the related accounting policies judgements and estimates
and Note 14 for detalled goodwill disclosures

We evaluated the appropriateness of the key assumptions including
discount rates and long term growth rates and performed a range of
sensitivity analyses acrass all CGUs In particular

» We evaluated the reasenableness of management s forecasts
by challenging assumed revenue growth strategies and
planned operational improvemnents attsibutable to the angoing
transformation of the group based on growth and savings
achieved in prior years

* We compared the terminal growth rates in the forecasts to third
party economic and mdustry forecasts noting that those used by
the Directors were within an acceptable range

» We assessed the discount rate {weighted average cost of capital
{ WACC )) for the cormpany egainst comparable organisations
nating that the balances used across the group by the Directors
were within a reasonable range and

* We evaluated management's sensitivity analysis and performed
additional sensitivity analysis to ascertain the extent of change in
those assumptions that either indmwidually or collectively would be
required for the goodwill to be impaired noting that in both Eclipse
and Smart421 1t would require a significantly adverse change to
occur and set of arcumstances that we consider remote before
the balances would be impaired

In the Kcom CGU the 5 year forecasts are based on the 2016 budget
prepared by Kcom and approved by the Beard of KCOM Group PLC
We challenged management s budgeted growth rates over the S year
period evaluating the accuracy of management s forecasting process
by comparing previous budgets to actual results and assessing the
current budget in light of our knowledge and understanding of current
business plans and the economic climate The leng term growth rate
1s based on a country specific terminal growth rate We assessed this
long term growth rate by reference to growth rates produced by third
parties and determined that the planned level of profit growth both

in the short and long term 1s achievable based on the previous
performance of the business

Based on the evidence obtained we determined that the imparment
booked (0 the Kcom CGLY and the assessment that no impairment
15 required 1n either the Smart421 or Ecipse CGU were reasonable
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Financial statements

Independent auditors’ report continued
to the members of KCOM Group PLC

Report on the financial statements continued
Our audit approach continued
The scope of our gudit and our areas of focus continued

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Valuation of defined benefit pension scheme liabilities

We focused on this area as the pension scheme valuation 1s highly
sensitive to changes in the assumpttons used within the model
which calculates the valuation and the subsequent charge or credit
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (*OCI )
At 31 March 2015 the net pension defiot amounted to £31 4m

The key assumptions to which the hability 1s most sensitive and which we
therefore paid particular attention to in evaluating the valuation of the
net deficit were

« Discount rate Under International Accounting Standard ( 1AS ) 19
- Employee Benefits the discount rate is set with reference to the
yield on high quality corporate bonds of term approprrate to the
duration of the llabihties

= Inflation rate the level of future pension payments i1s inked to price
inflation indices Various investment market statistics are used to
form a view on the long term average rates of retall price and
consumer pnce inflatien and

+ Mortality Scheme specific base tables should be used with
an allowance for future improvements in life expectancy based
onrecent projections These projeciions will depend on future
expectations of improvements in life expectancy and are
therefore uncertan

See the accounting policies section within the financial statements for
disclosure of the related accounting policies judgements and estimates
and Note 29 for detalled pension disclosures

We tested the actuanal valuations used by management in the
preparation of the financial statements as follows

We tested the completeness and accuracy of the pension scheme
membership data provided to management’s actuary cn which the
pension liability I1s calculated by recenciling mavements it membership
data to supporting documnentation We noted no material exceptions
from our testing

We ossessed the appropnateness and consistency of the methodology
used by management including the key assumptions used to value the
pension labilities

« Discount rate We considered the appropriateness of the
3 25% discount rate assumption used by reference to the yields
available on AA corporate bond indices and the duration of the
Scherne s habilities

« Inflation rate We considered the approprniateness of bath the CPI
and RPI rates used by reference te the Bank of England smplied
inflation spot curve and the duration of the Scheme s habilities

» Mortality We considered the appropriateness of the base tables
selected for use by management by reference to those
provisianally adopted for the most recent actuanal valuation
of the Scheme and also market practice

Based on the evidence obtained from our testing of the assumptions
outlined above we considered the assumptions used to be in ine with
recognised market practices

Capitalisation of internal project costs

We focused on this area because the group has been investing
significantly in 1ts back office systems and core 1T applications In the year
this has resulted in the capitalisatien of £2 3 millien of internal salary
costs In relation to this project There is a degree of judgement involved In
determiming the element of internal salanes that may be considered to be
directly attributable to this project and as such should be capitalised in
line with the prowvisions of IAS 38 (Intangible Assets)

There 1s also judgement involved in assessing the recoverability of the
carrying value of the asset created from the project given the difficulty in
forecasting and measuring the financial benefits of the project over its
forecast ife

See the accounting policies section within the finanaas statements for
disclosure of the related accounting policies judgements and estimates

We tested caprtalised sclary costs to supperting payroll records to
agree the existence of individuals and hours charged and evaluated
the nature of the costs to determine whether these costs were
appropriately capitalised

In evaluating the recoverability of the carrying value of the capitalised
osset the Directors prepared a moded to evaluate the forecast benefit
of the asset over sts 10 year ife

We evaluated the Directors’ model by testing costs capitahsed to

date agreeng these to our work performed on capitalised internal
salary costs and to third party adwisor costs and by testing the benefits
received to date to reductions in staff and IT costs We challenged
the forward looking spend and benefit assurmptions in the model
by examining the original business case challenging the Directors
on their commitment to the project and on how benefits would

be derwved in future years based upon the current business model
We also challenged the discount rate applied and the Iife of the
project to check these were approprniate

We did not identify any mdication of incorrectly capitalised internal
costs or indicators of Impairment of the carrying value of the asset
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Report on the financial statements continued
Our audit approach continued
The scope of our audit and ows areas of focus continued

Area of focus How our audit addressed the area of focus
Classification of costs as exceptional We tested exceptional costs across all trading entities by evaluating
Exceptional items consist of a number of one off costs relating to the therr treatment for cornphance with the group accounting policy
impairment of goodwill (£33 9m} restructuning and redundancy costs noting that the policy had been cpphied consistently for all itemns
(£7 5m) as well as one off credits relating to daims (£5 3m} and other across the group
items (£7 4m) Given the mognitude of these items we focused additional
audit effort i this area to determine whether these items were We tested the underlying transactions by agreeing redundancy costs
appropnately classified as exceptional and did not in fact relate to the to payments made and tested outstanding redundancy costs to
underlying trade of the business and that exceptional costs and credits payrall records and notification to the employees by agreeing third
were treated consistently with prior periods party costs to third party nvoices and by testing outstanding third
party provisions to commitrents and post year end payments
See the accounting policies section within the financal statements for We tested exceptional credits to the comesponding cash recetpts
disclosure of the related accounting policies, judgements and estimates Through these procedures we checked that these items had been
and Note 7 for detailed exceptional costs desclosures recognised withun the correct penod
Our work in relation to the goodwill impairment is described in the
areq of focus above

How we tailored the audit scope
We tallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opmion on the finanaal statements as a whole
taking into account the geographic structure of the group the accounting processes and controls and the industry in which the group operates

The group 1s structured along two business segments being KC and Kcom Within these segments are five indwidual trading subsidiary entities
(the ‘trading entities ) Together with the group s centralised PLC function these trading entities form the consolidated financial statements

SJUILIBID]IS |DIUDUIL4

We performed an audit of the complete finanaial information of each of the trading entities together with the group s centralised PLC function
including the consolidation All work was performed by the group engagement tearmn This work including the consolidation gave us the evidence
we needed for our opimion on the group financial statements as a whele

Matenality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of matenality We set certa:n quantitative thresholds for materality These together with
qualitative considerations helped us to determine the scope of our oudit and the nature timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate
the effect of misstaternents both sndmidually and on the financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Overall group matertahty £2 5milion (2014 £2 5 rullion)
How we determined 1t 5% of profit before tax and the impairment of goodwill
Rationale for benchmark applied We believed that profit before tax cdjusted for the goodwill impairment charge provided us with

an appropriate basis for determiming mateniality by elminating the non recurring disproportionate
impact of thisitem This 15 a change from the benchrmark used in 2014 where profit before tax was
considered the most approprate benchmark only by vistue of the fact that no imparrment charge
was recorded in 2014

We also believed that this measure reflects the fact that shareholders measure the performance
of the group on a pre exceptional basis

We agreed with the Audit Comimittee that we would report to them russtatements wentified dunng our cudit above £0 1 milhion (2014 £0 1 mulfion)
as well as misstatements below that amount that in our view warranted reporting for gualitative reasons

Going concern
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors staternent set out on page 33 1n relation to going concern We have nothing to report
having performed our review

As noted in the Directors statement the Directors have concluded that it 1s appropniate to prepare the financal statements using the going concern
basts of accounting The going concern basis presurmes that the group and parent company hove adequate resources to remain in operation and that
the Directors intend them to do so for at least one year from the date the inancial statements were signed As part of our audit we have concluded
that the Directors use of the going concern basis (s appropriate

However because not all future events or condions can be predicted these statemnents are not a guarantee as to the group s and parent company s
ability to continue as a going concern
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Financial statements

Independent auditors’ report continued
to the members of KCOM Group PLC

Other required reporting
Consistency of other information
Companies Act 2006 opinion

I our gpimion the informabion given in the Strategsc Report and the Directors Report for the finanaial year for which the inanaal staterments are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

[5As (UK & Ireland) ieporting
Under [SAs (UK & [reland) we are required to report to youif, in our opimon

« I[nformation mn the Annucl Report is We have no excepttons to report ansing

from this r nsibil
« materially inconsistent with the Information In the audited financial statements or rom this responsibility

« apparently matenally incorrect based on or materially inconsistent with our knowledge
of the group and parent company acquired in the course of perfarming our audit or

+ otherwise misleading

= the statement given by the Directors on page 33 10 accordance with provision € 11 of the UK We have no exceptions to report ansing
Corporate Gavernance Code ( the Code') that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole  from this responsibility
to be far batanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for members te
assess the group s and parent company s performance business model and strategy 15 matenially
inconsistent with our knowledge of the group and parent company acquired in the course of
performing our audit -

the section of the Annual Report on poge 36 as required by provision C 3 8 of the Code We have no exceptions to report arising
descnibing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters from this responsibility
communicated by us to the Audit Committee

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if In our opinicn

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit or

» adequate acceunting records have not been kept by the parent company or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not visited by us or

= the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are not inagreement with
the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration
Directors remuneration report — Companies Act 2006 opinion
In our opinion the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we re required to repert to youf in our opinien certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law
are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from these responsibilities

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the Corporate Governance Staterment relating to the parent company s compliance
with ten provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report having perfarmed our review
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Responsibilities for the financiaf statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibiliies Statement set out on page 33, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Qur responsbility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 15As (UK & Ireland} Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethica! Standards for Auditors.

This report, inctuding the opinlons has been prepared for and only for the company s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, ingiving these opimions accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose of to any
other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

What an audit of financial statements involves
An audit involves cbtaining evidence about the amounts and drsclosures In the finanaal statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
finanaal statements are free from materlal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

9 whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group s and the parent company’s arcumnstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed

© the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and
D the overall presentation of the financlal statements

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors Judgements against available evidence forming our own judgements, and
evaluating the disdosures In the financial statements

We test and exarmine information using sampling and other auditing techniques to the extent we consider necessary to provide a reasonable basis for
us to draw conclusions We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls substantive procedures or @ combination of both

In addition we read all the financial and non financialinformation in the Annual Report to identify material imconsistencies with the audrted financial
statements and to rdentify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based en or matenally inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistenaies we consider the implications
for our report. -

lan Morrison (Senior Statutory Audrtor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Leeds

17 June 2015
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Financial statements

Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
Notes £ 000 E 000

Revenue 4 347984 370697
Operating expenses 5 {325,579} (315090)
Operating profit 22,405 55607
Analysed as
EBITDA before exceptional items 4 74,304 75291
Exceptional credits 7 6,658 2587
Exceptional charges 7 {41,446} (1999}
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4 (12,033) (16882)
Amortisation of intangible ossets 4 {5,078) {3390}
Finance costs 9 (5,725) (5075)
Share of profit/{loss) of assocrates 13 (2)
Profit before taxation 16,693 50530
Taxation 10 (4,149} (11 760)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 12,544 38770
Earnings per share
Basic 12 247p 7 64p
Difuted 12 2 44p 7 55p

The Company has elected to take the exempuon under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the Parent company incorne statement

or statement of comprehensive mcome

The profit for the Parent corpany for the year was £26 057 000 (2014 £23 764 000)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
Notes £ 000 E 000

Profit for the year 12,544 38770
Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or 1oss
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations 29 (7,263) (16630)
Tax on items that will not be reclassified 1,528 2997
Total items that will not be reclossified to profit or loss (5735} (13633)
[temns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Cash flow hedge farr value movernents 27 1,428 1,377
Tax on items that may be reclasslfied (285) (275)
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 1,143 1102
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to owners of the parent 7,952 26239

The Notes on pages 69 to 94 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statementis

6 L| KCOM Group PLC
Annual report and accounts 2014/15




Balance sheets
as at 31 March 2015

Lorsolidated Parent compxany
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwil 14 51,372 85272 —_ —
Other intangible assets 15 41,903 22,669 — —
Property plant and eguiprnent 16 127,078 123839 —_ -—
[nvestments 17 33 20 494,461 494 461
Deferred tax assets 25 16,292 15,408 _ —
236,678 247 208 494,461 494 461
Current assets
Inventories 18 2,235 2,647 —_ —
Trade and other receivables 19 78,790 74135 5 5
Cash and cash equivalents 22 11,701 9441 -— —-—
Derlvative financial instruments 27 328 — _— —
93,054 86223 5 5
Total assets 329,732 333431 494,466 494 466
Liabtlities T
Current liabilities g
Trade and other payables 20 (112,969) (128,317) — - %
Current tox liabilities 25000  (1391) - - §
Bank overdrafts 22 {691) —_ —_ —_ g
Derivatuve financial instrurments 27 {706) {137) —_— —
Finance leases 23 {1,743) —_ _ —_
Provisions for other habilities and charges 24 {2,579) (365) — —
Non-current habilities
Trade and other payables 20 - -_— (7.484) (2865)
Bank loans 21 (103,460) (84,417) — —
Retirement benefit obligation 29 {31,435) (26500) — —
Deferred tax abilitles 25 (4,589} (5057} —_ —
Derivative finanaal instruments 27 —_ (1669) —_ _
Finance leases 23 (5,155} — - —_
Prowisions for other habilities and charges 24 {26) {425) - -
Total habihities (265,853) (248 278) (7,484) {2,865)
Net assets 63,879 85,153 486,982 491,601
Equity
Capital and reserves attrnbutable to owners of the parent
Share capital 26 51,660 51660 51,660 51660
Share premiurm account 353,231 353231 353,231 35323
Hedging and translation reserve 27 442 (986) — —
{Accumulated losses)iretained garnings (341,454) (318752) 82,09 86710
Total equity 63,879 85153 486,982 491601
The Notes on pages 69 to 94 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
The finanoal statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 17 June 2015
They were 5|gn7j oni f by
Bill Halbert Paul Simpson KCOM Group PLC
Chief Executive Chief Finanaial Officer Registered number 2150618
17 june 2015
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Financial statements

Consohdated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
for the year ended 31 March 2015
Share prefsr':‘vﬁ:ri Het?gins%:‘oﬁ Accumulated

Notes oo “Fow ‘600 Eo0 €00
Al 1 Apnt 2013 51660 353231 (2363) (319886) 82 6432
Profit for the year — — — 38770 38770
QOther comprehensive Income/(expense) — — 1377 (13908) (12,531)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year ended 31 March 2014 — — 1377 24 862 26239
Deferred tax charge relouing to share schemes — — —_ 134 134
Current tax credit relating to share schemes —_ —_ — el 301
Pur¢hase of ordinary shares — — —_ (1764) (1764)
Employee share schemes — — — 1,365 1365
Biidends 11 — — —  {23,764) (23 764)
Transactions with owners — — — (23728) {23728)
At 31 March 2074 51660 353 231 (986) (318752) 85153
Profit for the year —_ —_ — 12544 12544
QOther comprehensive Income/{expense) — — 1428 {6020) (4,592)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2015 — — 1,428 6,524 7,952
Deferred tax charge relating to share schemes — — —_ (270) (270)
Current tax credit relating to share schemes — — —_ 184 184
Purchose of ordinary shares — — _ (4058) (4 058)
Employee share schemes — -— — 975 975
Dividends 11 — — — (26 057)  {26057)
Transactions with owners — — — (29226) (29226)
At 31 March 2015 51,660 353,231 442 (341,454) 63,879

The Notes on pages 69 to 94 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staterments
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Parent company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

for the year ended 31 March 2015

Share

Share premum Retaned

Notes Thoo  “fhwe  “Tod £ 00
At 1 Apnl 2013 51660 353231 88,773 493 664
Profit for the year — — 23764 23764
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2014 — — 23764 23764
Purchase of ordinary shares — —_ {1764) {1764)
Employee share schemes —_ — (299) (299)
Dmidends 1 — —_ (23764)  (23764)
Transactions with owners — - (25827)  (25.827)
At 31 March 2014 51660 353 231 86710 491 601
Profit for the year — — 26057 26057
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2015 — — 26,057 26,057
Purchase of ordinary shares — — (4058) (4058)
Employee share schemes — —_ (561} (561)
Dwidends 11 — — {26057y  (26057)
Transactions with owners — -_— {30676) (30676)
At 31 March 2015 51,660 353,231 82,091 486,982
The Notes on pages 69 to 94 are an integral port of these consolidated financal statements

KCOM Group PLC

Annual report and accounts 2014715

67

£1UBWAIDYS |D{SUDUYS



Financial statements

Cash flow statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Consohidated Parent company

Motes  £006  i0% oo {500
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating proft 22405 55607 — —
Adjustments for
- depreciction and amortisation 17111 20272 -_— —_
= impairment of goodwill 33,900 — - —_
—{increase}/decrease in working capstal (14,686) 1537 4,619 2,065
— restructuning ¢ost and enerous lease payments (62) (3375) - —
- pension defict payment (4,270) (788) - —
Tox pad (3,424) {1531 — -
Loss/{profit} on sale of propesty plant and equiprnent 429 (456) _— -
Profit on sate of Investments (624) — — —
Net cash generated from operations 50,779 71266 4,619 2065
Cash flows from iavesting activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment (17,356) (16207 —_ —_
Purchose/generation of intangible assets (14,666)  (11705) —_ —
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment —_ 633 — —
Proceeds fram sale of investments 429 — — —
Dnadends receved — — 26,057 23764
Net cosh {used in)/generated from investing activities {31,593) (27279) 26,057 23764
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid 11 {26,057) (23764) (26,057} (23 764)
Dividend equivalent pand {o participants of share schemes (561) (301) {561) (301
Interest paid {5,574) (4436) - —
Capital element of finance lease repayments (1,367) — — —_—
Repayment of bank loans 21 (45,000  (85000) — -
Drawdown of bank loans 21 65,000 65000 - _
Purchase of ordinary shares 26 (4,058} (1,764} (4,058) (1764)
Net cash used in financing activities (17,617)  (50265) {30,676} (25829)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,569 (6278) — —
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9,441 15719 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 11,010 9441 — —

The Notes on pages 69 to 94 are an integral part of these consolidated financlat statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

01 General information

KCOM Group PLC 15 a public imited company which is listed on the London Stock Exchange and incorperated and domiciled in the United Kingdom
The address of the registered office is 37 Carr Lane Hull HU1 3RE The nature of the Group s operations 1s described within the  Strategic report on
pages 2 to 27

02 Acceuntirg policies
The pnnapal accounting policies applied in the preparction of these consolidated financial statements are set out below These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of accounting

The consolidated and Parent company financial statements have been piepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) IFRIC interpretations and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting
under iFRS The consolidated finanaial statements have been prepared under the histonical cost convention s mod fied by the revaluation of financial
assets and finanaal habilities (iIndluding denvative instruments) at fair value through profit and loss The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis

The preparation ef financial staterments in conformity with 1FRS requires the use of certain cntical accounting estmates It also requires management
Lo exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group s accounting policies The areas invohving a higher degree of judgement or complexity
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated inanaal staternents are disclosed in Note 3

There were na new standards amendments and interpretations that were adepted by the Group and effective for the first time for the financial year
beginming 1 April 2014 that were matenal to the Group

A number of new standards amendments and interpretations are effective for annual penieds beginning after 1 Apnil 2015 and have not yet been
applied in prepanng these financial statements Nane of these are expected to have a significant effect or material iImpact on the financial statements
of the Group

The Directors are considenng the impact of other standards and interpretations such as IFRS 15 and are assessing whether these will have a
significant impact on the Group s financial resuits

Basis of consohdation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company Control exists when the Company 1s exposed or has nights to vanable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity In assessing coatrol potential voting rghts that are
cusrently exeraisable or convertible are taken into account The consclidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company
and its undertakings made up to 31 March 2015 The results of new subsidiary undertakings are induded from the dates of acquisition using the
purchase method of consolidation Where a company has ceased to be a subsidiary undertaking during the year its results are included to the date

of cessation

On acquisition the assets [iabilities and contingent habilitses of a subsidiary are measured at therr fair values at the date of acquisition Any excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recogrised as goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition
below the far values of the identifiable net assets acquired (1 e discount on acquisition) 1s credited to the income statement in the penod of acquisition

Where necessary adjustments are made to the finanaal statements of substdianes to bnng the accounting policies used into ine with those used by
the Group Allintra Group transactions balances tncome and expenses are elimunated on consolidation

Associates are entities over which the Group has sigrificant influence but not contro! generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting nghts [nvesiments in associgtes are accounted for using the equity rmethod of accounting and are mitially recognised at cost
The Group s share of 15 associgtes profits of lesses 1s recogmised in the Income statement. The cumulative post acquisition Mmovements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment.

Partnerships are contiolled when the Group has the power directly or indirectly to govern the financial and operating policies of the partnership so
as to obtain benefits from its activties In assessing control potentlal voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are taken into account
The consohdated financial staterments include the financial statements of the KCOM Central Asset Reserve Limnited Partnership and its undertakings
made up to 31 March 2015 The results of new partnership undertakings are included from the dates of acquisition using the purchase method of
consolidation Where a company has ceased to be a partnership undertaking duning the year 1ts results are included to the date of cessation

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported N a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) The
CODM who 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessmq performance of the operating segments has been identtfied as the KCOM Group PLC
Board of Directors As described in Note 4 the Board assessed that the Kcom Smart421 and Eclipse brands are aggregated tegether and reported as
the "Kcom segrment, The remaining brands of XC and the PLC function are reported respectively in the KC segment and the PLC segment
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‘jmc\nciul statements

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2015

02 Accounting pohicies continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the farr volue of the consideration receved or receivable and represents amounts recevable for goods supplied stated net

of discounts returns and value added taxes The Group recognises revenus when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured when it is probable
that future ecanomic benefits will flow to the entity and when speaific critena have been met for each of the Group s actvities as described belew
The Group bases its estimate of return on histoncal results taking into consideration the type of customer the type of transaction and the specifics

of each arrangement

Revenue from calls 1s recogrused in the Consolidated income statement at the time the call 1s made over the Group s netwark Revenue from rentals
1s recognised evenly over the rental period

Revenue from product sales Is recognised at the point of effective transfer of risk and reward Revenue from production of directones is recogrised
at the point when the directory 1s published For large long term annuity and muluple element customer contracts the Group 15 able to distinguish
between the installation and the in life service phases of a contract Revenue is allocated based on the farr value of the consideration, which represents
the market value of such services or amounts per contracts, and will be recognised on the following basis for each phase

+ installation —within this phase revenue relating to resources and services 1s accounted for on a stage of carnpletion basis where revenue s
recognised with reference to the proportion of tota! costs incurred to date Revenue related to equipment 15 accounted for based on the point
of effective transfer of nsks and rewards (shipment) and

« 1n life service - revenue for this phase 1s recogmised in ine with the ebligation to provide service as dictated by customer contracts
Pre contract costs such as bid costs on key contract wins are expensed as and when incurred

Revenue anising from the provision of ather services including maintenance contracts 1s recognised in the accounting penod in which services are
rendered by reference to stage of completion of the specific transaction and assessed on the basis of the actual servece provided as a proportion
of the total services 1o be provided

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide better understanding of the inancial
performance of the Group They are matenial itemns of incorme or expense that have been shown separately due to the significance of their nature or
amount [n particular costs assoaiated with organisational restructuning costs and provisions associated with onerous contracts profits or losses on
the sale of an operation and one off pension costs and credits are treated as exceptional items

Intangible assets

Goodwall

Goodwill represents amounts arising on acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and is the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair
value of the net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition

Goodwill 15 stated at cost less any accumulated iImpairment losses and 1s tested annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
ndicate potential impairment Impaliment losses on goodwill are not reversed

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash generauing umits (CGUSs) for the purpose of impasment testing The allocation 1s made to those CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwall arese Each unit or group of units te which the goodwll is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill 1s menitored for internal management purposes

Development costs
An intemally genesated intangible asset arising from the Group s Internal developrnent activities 1s recogmised only If ol of the following conditions are met

+ an asset Is created that can be identified (such as new processes)
= 1t 1s proboeble that the asset created will generate future economic benefits and

« the development cost of the asset can be measured refrably

Internally generaied intangible assets are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and are amortised on a straight ine basis over they useful
lives Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised development expenditure 1s recogrused as an expense in the period i which
itis incuired Research costs are expensed to the income statement as and when they are incurred

Customer and supplier relationships

Contractual customer and supplier refationshups acquired In a business combination are recogrised at far value at the acquisition date

The contractual customer and supplier relations have a firite useful hfe and are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation Amortisation
1s catculated using the straught ine method over the expected life of the relationship These intangible assets are amortised on a stratght line
basis over therr useful hives
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02 Accounting policies continued

Intangible assets continued

Technology and brand

Technology and brand acquired through business combinations are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition Assumptions are used
esumating the fawr values of acquired intangible assets and indude management s estimates of revenue and profits to be generated by the acquired
businesses These intangible assets are amortised on a strasght lIne basis over therr useful hves

Software
Software comprises computer software purchased from third parties and also the cost of internalty developed software Computer software purchased
frorm third parties and internally developed software 15 imtially recorded at cost.

Software development costs that are directly atinbutable to the design and testing of identifiable and umigue software products controlled by the
Group are recogmised as ntangible assets when the critena detailled opposite 1s met. These intangible assets are amortised on a strasght ine basis
over their useful ives .

Other software development expenditures that do not meet these criterna are recagnised as an expense as incurred Software development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset In a subsequent perod

Amortisation
Amortisation of intangible assets 1s charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each intangible asset

Intangible assets are amoriised from the date they are available for use

The estimated useful lives are as follows

Customer and supphier relationships up to 8 years
Technology and brand up tc 10 years
Software up to 10 years
Development costs 3 years

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment Cost includes the oniginal
purchase pnice of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working conditton for its intended use Network infrastructure and
related equipment (included within exchange equipment and external plant) is recorded at cost induding iabour costs directly attributable to the cost
of the network construction Depreciairon is provided so as to wnite off the cost of assets to residucl values on a strarght line basis over the assets
useful estimated lwes as follows

Freehold buldings 40 years
Leasehold buildings and improvements penad of lease
Exchange equipment 10 years
External plant 10 to 20 years
Vehucles other apparatus and equipment 3 to 10 years

Freehold land is not depreciated
Exchange equupment indudes assets and equipment which relate to the network Extemat plant relates to assets which connect the network to our customers

The jesidual value if not insignificant 1s reassessed annually Depreciation of network infrastructure and related equipment is prowvided for from
the date the network comes into operation

Assets held under inance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or where shorter over the term
of the refevant lease

Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less proviston for impatment. They are reviewed at each reporting date for possible reversal of the imparrment.

Imparment of non-hnancial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful Lfe - for example goodwill - are not subject to omortisation and are tested annually for iImpasment, Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for imparment whenever events or changes in arcumnstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

Recoverable amount 15 the higher of fair value less selling costs and value in use Tn assessing value muse the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to therr present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money and the nsks
speafic to the asset for which the estenates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

An impairment loss 1s recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised in the
income statement Impairment dosses recognised n respect of cash generating urits {CGUs} are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to CGUs and then to reduce the camying amount of other assets in the unit on a pro fata basis
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Financial staternents

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2015

02 Accounting policres continued

Inventonies

Inventaries are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value Cost 1s determined using the werghted average cost method Costs indude raw materials
and where appropnate direct overhead expenses. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estmated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing sefling and distnbution Prowvision 1s made for obsolete slow moving or defective items where appropniate

Trade receivables

Trade recevables are recognised Intally at far value and measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method less any
impanment. A provision for impatrment of trade receivables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the oniginal tesms of the recevables Sigruficant financial difficutties of the debtor probability that the debtor will enter
barkruptcy o financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicaters that the trade receivable 1s impaired The
amount of provision 15 the difference between the asset s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
origingl effective nterest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss

5 recognised in the income statement within operating expenses When a trade receivable 1s uncollectsble i 15 written off against the allowance
account for trade recevables Subsequent recovenes of amounts wnitten off are credited against operating expenses in the Income statement

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents indudes cash in hand short term deposits and other short term highly hiquid investments with onginal matunities of three
months or less and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current hatulities on the balance sheet, unless a night of offset exists

Trade payables
Trade payabtes are recogrised initially at fair value and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Taxation
The tax expense represenis the sum of the current tax and deferred tax expense

The current tax 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from profit before tax os reported in the income statement because 1t
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and/or items that are never taxable or deductible The Group s
habihity for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities i the financal
staternents and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable proft and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method
Deferred tax llabiities are recognised generally for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it s
probable that taxable profits will be availoble against which deductible temporary differences can be utibsed Such assets and habilibes arg not
recognised If the temporary difference anses or from the imitial recognition {other than in a business combination} of other assets and habihiies

in a transacticn that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced or increased to the extent that sufficient taxable
profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax liabilities are recogmised for taxable temporary differences ansing on invesiments in subsidiaries and assoaates and mterests in joint
ventures except where the Group 15 able to contro! the reversal of the temporary difference and it i1s probable that the temparary difference wilt not
reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the iability 1s settled or the asset 1s realised Deferred tax s
charged or credited in the Income statement except when it relates to stems recogrused in other comprehensive Income of directly to equity In this
case the defemred tax 15 also recogmsed in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively

Financial instruments and hedge accounting
Financial assets and liabilities are recogrised in the Group s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate nsks ansing from operational financing
and investment activities In accordance with its Treasury policy the Group does not hold or Issue denvative finanoal instruments for trading purposes

Denvatve financial Instruments are imtially and subsequently recogrused at fair value Any gain or loss on remeasuremnent to far value s recogrused
immediately in the income statement. However where dernvatives qualify for hedge accounting recognition of the resultant gain or loss depends on
the nature of the item being hedged

The farr value of the interest rate swaps 1s the estimated amount that the Group would receve or pay to ternunate the swap at the balance sheet date
taking into account current interest rates and the current credstworthiness of the swap counterparties The fair value of forword exchange contracts
15 their quoted market prece at the balance sheet date being the present value of the quoted forward price
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02 Accounting policies continued

Financial instruments and hedge accounting continued

Changes in the fair value of denvative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly
in other comprebensive iIncome and the ineffectrve portion 1s recognised immediately in the income statement If the cash flow hedge of a firm
commitment ors forecasted transaction results in the recogrition of an asset or lability then at the ime the asset or hability is recognised the
assoaated gans or losses on the denvative that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are induded in the initial measurement
of the asset or hability For hedges that do not result in recognition of an asset or a labiity amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the income
staterment In the same period in which the hedged item affects net profit or loss

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or s sold terminated or exercised or ng longer quahfies for hedge accounting
At that time any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging snstrument recogrised in equity is retamed in equity untl the forecasted transaction occurs
If o hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur the net cumulative gasn or loss recogrised in equity 1s transferred to the ncome statement

n the penod

Forelgn currency translation
These finanoial $tatements are presented in Pounds Sterling which is the currency of the primary ecenomic environment in which the Group operates

Transactions in farexgn currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the dete of the transactton Monetary assets and llabihties denominated in foreign
currencies are retransiated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Leasing and hire purchase commitments

Leases where the Group assumes substantially al of the nisks and rewards of ownership are dassified as finance leases Assets held under finance
leases and hire purchase contracts are capitalised 1n the balance sheet at their fair value or if lower the present value of the future mimmum lease
payments and are depreciated over ther useful economic ives The capital elements of future obligations under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts are Included as habilities in the balance sheet The interest elements of the rental obhigations are charged to the income statement over the
penods of the leases and hire purchase contracts The finance charge is allocated to each period duning the lease 5o as to produce a constant penodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the llability

Rentals payable under operauing leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basts over the lease term

SIUaUIID]S {DIJUDULY

Bank borrowings and issue costs

Bank borrowings are stated at the amount of proceeds after deduction of 1ssue costs which are amortised over the period of the loan Finance
charges induding direct 1ssue costs are accounted for in the iIncome statement on an accruals basis and are added to the carmyng amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the penod in which they anse

Borrowings are carried subsequently at amortised cost and any differences beiween the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
are recogrused i the sncome staternent over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Pensions
Defined contnbutien
Obhgations for contnbutions to the defined contnbution {money purchase) scherme are charged o the iIncome statement in the period they fall due
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available

~
Defined benefit
For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits 1s determined using a bullding block approach with actuanai valuations being
carned out at each balance sheet date Remeasurements are recogmsed in full in the peniod in which they occur and are recogrused in equity and
presented in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

The current and past service costs of the scheme (the increase in the present value of employees future benefits attributable to the cument or pnor
periods) are charged to the income statement In the period The cost or benefit of committed settlements and curtailments 1s recogrised immediately
in the income statement The interest cost of the scheme 1s recognised In the income statement in the period to which it relates

The retirement benefit obligation recogrised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation 1s krmited to past service
cost plus the present value of available refunds and reductions 1n future contnbutions to the plan

Employee share schemes and share-based payments
The Group has apphed the requirements of [FRS 2 In accordance with the transitional provisions IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity
instruments after 7 Novernber 2002 that were unvested as of 1 Apnl 2005

The Group 1ssues equity settled share based payments to certain employees
Equity settled employee schemes induding employee share options and discretionary long term ncentive schemes provide employees with

the option to acquiie shares of the Company Employee share options and long term incentive schemes are generally subject to performance
or service condilions
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02 Accounting policies continued

Employee share schemes and share-based payments continued

The fair value of equity settled share based payments 1s measured at the date of grant and charged to the ncome staterment over the penod dunng
which performance or service condhtions are required to be met, or immediately where no performance or service crtena exist The farr value of
equity settted share based payments granted i1s measured using esither the Black Scholes or Monte Carlo model depending on the terms under which
the options were granted The amount recognised as an expense Is adjusted to reflect the actual number of employee share options that vest except
where forfeiture 1s only due to market based performance critena not being met

At the end of each reporting peniod the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
conditions It recogrises the impact of the revision to anginal estimates if any in the income statement wath a corresponding adjustment to equity

The Group alsa operates a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) under which employees have the opticn to purchase shares in the Compeany each month and
offers employees free matching and partnership shares on a sliding scale of between 13 to 2 1 The Group secognises the free shares as an expense
over the period of any applicable service conditton or immediately when no service condition exists

Dividends
Dividend distnbution to the Company s shareholders 1s recogrised as a lability in the Group s inancial statements in the penod in which the dividends
are gpproved by the Company s shareholders or, in the case of intenm dividends paid

Dividend income 1s recognised when the right to recewve payment 1s established .

Provisions

A provision 1s recogrused in the balance sheet when the Group has a present, legal or constructive obligation as aresult of a past event and 1t 1s probable that
an outflow of econoruc benefits will be required to settle the obligation If the effect s matenal provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and where appropnate the risks speaific to the ability

03 Cnitical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of non-current assets

Determining whether a non current asset 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value in use andfor the estimated recoverable amount of the asset derved
from the business or part of the business CGL, to which the non current asset has been ollocated The value 1n use calculation requires an estimate of the
present value of future cash flows expected to anse from the CGU by applying an appropriate discount rate to the timing and amount of future cash flows

The Directors are required to make judgements regarding the timing and amount of future cash flows apphicable to the CGU based en current
budgets and forecasts and extrapolated for an appropnate penod taking into account growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and
operating costs The Directors estimate the appropriate discount rate using pre tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the nsks specific to the indwidual CGU For further disclosure see Note 14

Post-employment benefits

The Group operates two defined benefit schemes Al post employment benefits associated with these schemes have been accounted for in
accordance with 1AS 19 Employee Benefits (revised) As detalled within the accounting policies note In accordance with [AS 19 all actuanal gains
and losses have been recognised immediately through the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

tor all defined benefit pension schemes pension valuations have been performed using specialist advice obtained from independent qualified actuanes
In performing these valuations Judgements assumptiens and estumates have been made These assumptions have been disclosed within Nate 29

Capitalisation of internal costs
The Group capitahses internal costs (which relates prinapally to 1T salary costs on significant projects) from the devetopment of intangible assets If
and only if It can demonstrate all of the following

« the techrical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
« (ts intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it
« its ability to use or sell the intangible asset

« how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits

the avallability of adequate technical financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset and

1ts ability to measure reliably the expenditure attrnibutable to the intangible asset during 1ts development

The Directors are required to make judgements regarding whether an intangsble asset has met all of the critena above and are requtred to ensure
the correct treatment has been applied in accordance with TAS 38 Intangible Assets  For further disclosure see Note 15

04 Segmental analysis

Management has deterrined the opesating segments based on the reports reviewed by the KCOM Group PLC Board that are used 10 moke strategic
deasions, The chief operating decrsion maker of the Group 1s the KCOM Group PLC Board The Board considers the performance of the four brands and the
PLC function in assessing the performance of the Group and making deasions about the allocation of resources These are the Group s operating segments.

The KC brand addresses the needs of our Hull and East Yorkshire customers and the Eclipse Kcom and Smurt421 brands seecve enterpnse public sector
organisations and small business markets across the UK
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04 Segmental analysis continued

The Board assessed that the Edipse Kcom and Smart421 brands have similar profiles offening similar products and seriices and similar production
and distribution processes and are operating tn a consistent regulatory environment In line with [FRS 8 the Eclipse Kcom and Smart421 brands are
aggregated together and reported as the Kcom' segment for the year ended 31 March 2015 The remaining brands of KC and the PLC function are
reported respectively n the KC segment and the PLC segment This reporting is also consistent with the reperting to the KCOM Group PLC Board

The segment information provided to the KCOM Group PLC Board for the reportable segments. for the year ended 31 March 2015 and for the year

ended 31 March 2014 15 as follows

Revenue EBITDA
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Before exceptional items
kC 104,751 105021 56,368 56,155
Keom 248,593 270891 25,687 28714
pLC! (5,360) {5215) (7,751) (3578)
Activities before exceptional items 347,984 370697 74,304 75291
Exceptional items
KC -— — 5,027 {499)
Kearn — —  {37,435) 1864
PLC! —_ — (2,380) {777
Total 7 — —  {34,788) 588
Total 347,984 370697 39,516 75879
3 PLC compnses shared seswice functions share scherne expenses and administration costs associated with the Group s defined benefit pension schemes
A reconciliation of total EBITDA to profit before tax Is provided as follows
2015 2014
Notes £ 000 £ 000
EBITDA post-exceptional items 39,516 75879
Depreciation 16 (12,033) (16882)
Amortisation 15 (5,078) (3.390)
Finance costs 9 (5.725) (5075)
Share of profit/{loss) of associate 17 13 {2)
Profit before tax 16,693 50530
Disclosure has not been made of segmental assets and habilitues This 1s 1n accordance with IFRS 8 as this meosure 15 not prowided regularly to the
KCOM Group PLC Board
The split of total revenue between external custorners and inter segment revenue 1s gs follows
2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000
Revenue from external customers
KC 99,597 99573
Kcom 248,033 270470
pLC! 354 654
Total 347,984 370697
Inter-segment revenue
KC 5,154 5448
Kcom 560 421
PLC! (5.714) (5 869)
Total — —
Group total 347,984 370697

1 PLC inclydes Publx: Company central and share scheme expenses inter segment eliminations and the tosts, excuding current and past service costs associctad with the Group s defined benefit

pension schemnes and the related assets and abilities
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04 Segmental analysis continued
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices

None of the revenue operating profit or net operating assets ansing outside the United Kingdom are matenal to the Group
The Group 1s not dependent upon a single or small number of external customers

The analysis of the Group s revenue between sale of goods and the provision of services Is as follows

2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000

Sale of goods 7,018 11,606
Provision of services 340,966 359091
Group total 347,984 370697
05 Operating expenses
Cons:hdutedg ’ Notes Ezgt;g 228(1)8
Staff costs 68,360 85953
Restructuring costs relating to employees 7 7,546 1121
Total staff costs 8 75,906 87074
Own work capitalised 8 (8,347) {5 906)
Other external charges' 208,996 209937
Non employee related pension chasges 29 500 500
Operating lease rentals 3,265 5,022
Auditors remuneration 6 477 356
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 16 12,033 16882
Amertsation of iIntangible assets 15 5078 3,390
Loss/{profity on disposal of property plont and equipment 429 (456)
Impairment of goodwill 7 33,900 -
Network rates rebate 7 (5,278} —_
Recovery of previously provided debt 7 {756) —
Profit on sale of Investments 7 (624) —
Credit on termination of contracts 7 —_ (2587)
Strategic pensions advice costs 7 — 700
QOnerous lease costs 7 — 178
Total 325,579 315090
1 Other external charges manly relate ta costs from key partners such as BT Wholesale
Non employee related pension charges represent the cost of edministrating the pension schemes as set ¢ut in Note 29
06 Auditors’ remuneration
Duning the year the Group obtained the following services from the Company s Auditors
Consolidated 53&3 izg(\)g
Fees payable to the Company s Auditors for the audit of the Company s annual finanaicl statements and the consolideted
financial statements 62 62
Fees payable to the Company s Auditors and its associates for other services
- the audit of the Company s subsidiaries 267 163
— audit related assurance services 58 20
- tax advisory services 15 35
— other ncn audit services 75 76
Total 477 356
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07 Exceptional items

Consolidated Notes 523&51 Ez%
Network rates rebate (5,278) —
Recovery of previously provided debt (756) —
Profit on sate of nvestments (624) —
Credit on termination of contracts — {2587)
Credited to income statement {6,658} {2587}
Impairment of goodwill 14 33,900 —_
Restructuring costs 7,546 127
Strategic pensions advice costs _ 700
Onerous lease costs —_— i78
Charged to income statement 41,446 1999
Net chargef{credit) to income statement 34,788 {588)

Network rates rebate relates to a settlement agreed during the year

Recovery of previously pravided debt relates to a settlement of the Group s wntien off debt due from Lehrman Brothers which was previously charged
as an exceptional item

The profit on sale of investments relates to the sale of the Group s previously impaired shareholding in Spectium Venture Management Fund
Cradit on termmnation of contracts arose from a notfication of termination following the dosure of aregional government sponsored network nfrastructure
In accordance with accounting standards the Group s goodwill balance 1s tested annually for impairment As part of this review the goodwill

in the Group s Kcom brand was deemed to be imparred and as such a charge of £33 9 milhon has been recognised in the consolidated income
statement This s a non cash item and s treated as exceptional in ine with our accounting policy

As set out In our accounting poligy restructunng costs are shown as exceptional items Duning the year the Group incurred £4 4 mullion i reletion

to the Keom brand in the first half of the year £1 7 mullien relating to strategic [T investment and £1 4 million supporting the Group s move towards
a single operaiing model

Strategic pensions advice costs related to the costs incurred for the agreements reached with the Trustees of the Group s defined benefit pension schemes
ta provide the Group with an efficient mechanism of funding the Schemes current deficit position The level of costs reflected both Company and
the Schemes adwisor costs

Onerous lease costs arose os a result of continued ratienalisation of the Greup s property portfolio

The combined tax effect of these items 15 a credit of £318,000 {2014 chorge of £135000) inrespect of current tax and a credit of £2 921 000
{2014 ENil} invrespect of deferred tax

08 Employees and remuneration
The average monthly nurnbers (including Executive Directors) employed by the Group during the year were as follows

- Nurmber of employees
2015 2004
KC 499 650
Keom 847 984
PLC 430 273
Total 1,776 1907

The costs incurred n respect of these employees were

2015 2014

Notes £ 000 £ 000

Wages and salanes 54,882 71746
Social secunty costs 7.765 8,357
Other pension costs 29 3,867 3937
Share scheme costs 13 1,846 1919
Restructunng costs relating to employees 7 7.546 1121
Total 75,906 87074

Less own work capitalised 1516 (8,347) (5 906)
Charged to the iIncome statement 62,559 81168
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08 Employees and remuneration continued

All of the Group s employees are employed by the Company with the exception of 336 (2014 371) employees employed by KC Contact Centres

Lirnited and Smant421 Lirmited

Disclosures required by the Comparies Act 2006 on Directors” remuneration, including salarnes performance reloted bonuses, pension contributions

and pension entitlements induding disclosure in respect of the lighest pard Diector are to be found in the tables on pages 50 to 57 within the
Remuneration report and form part of these financial statements

09 Finance costs

Consolidated Notes Ezg;g g’%
Bank loans overdrafts and other loans 4,234 4195
Retirement benefit obligations 29 1,067 400
Finance lease and hure purchase contiacts 120 —
5,421 4595
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees 304 480
Total 5,725 5075
10 Taxation
Analysis of tax charge in the year
The charge based on the profit for the year compiises
Consalidated Notes Ezg;: Ezgt])g
UX corporation tax
- current tax on profits for the year 4,938 3223
- adjustment in respect of prior years {409) (651)
Total current tax 4,529 2572
UK deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of timing differences in respect of
- profit for the year 4154 8527
- change in rate 56 912
— adjustment in respect of prior years (497} (193)
- charge n respect of retirement benefit obligation 87 (58}
- recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset (4,180) —
Total deferred tax 25 (380) 9,188
Total taxation charge for the year 4,149 11760
Factors affecting tax charge for the year
Consolidated Ezg;g Ez%
Profit before toxction 16,693 50530
Profit before taxation at the standard rate of corporation tax Inthe UK of 21% (2014 23%} 3,505 11622
Effects of
- Income nat subyect to tax {131} —
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5,805 69
~ recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset {6,180) —
- adjustments relating to pnor year tax (906} {843)
- change n rate reflected in the deferred tax asset 56 912
Total taxation charge for the year 4,149 11760

The current tox charge of £4 529000 {2014 £2 572 000) ncludes a charge relating to the vesting of the share schemes of £184 000 (2014 £301 000)
which 15 a redussification from the reserves on the unwind of the deferred tax asset. The recognition of o previously unrecogmsed deferred tax asset

relates to greater certaniy os to the avalabihty of future taxable profits

Factors affecting the curreat and future tax charges

The UK main corporation tax rate became 20% on 1 Apnl 2015 and as such the relevant deferred tax balances have been measured at this rate
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11 Dividends

2015 2014

£'000 £ 000
Arnounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the penod
— final dwidend for the year ended 31 March 2013 of 2 97 pence per share - 15343
- intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 of 1 63 pence per share —_ 84
- final dmdend for the year ended 31 March 2014 of 3 25 pence per shase 16,810 —
—intenm dwidena for the year ended 31 March 2015 of 1 79 pence per share 9,247 —
Total 26,057 23764

The praposed finat dwvidend for the year ended 31 March 2015 1s 3 58 pence per share amounting to a total dividend of £18 494000 In accordance with
IAS 10 Events after the balance sheet date  diwidends declared after the batance sheet date are not recognised as a lability in these finoncial statements

12 Earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 1s based on the following numbers of shares and earmngs

Consolidated Nurzrg:esr Nurzr?t:el:

Weighted average number of shares

For basic earnings per share 508,619,479 507 645664

Share options in 1ssue 5,169,178 5704438

For diluted earnings per share 513,788,657 513 350102 —
5
5

Notas E?g:)g Ezggg FEL

Earnings :‘:;

Profit attrbutable to owners of the parent 12,544 38770 g

Adjustments &

Exceptional items 34,788 {588)

Tax on exceptionat items {2,921) 135

Exceptional tax credit 10 {4,180} —

Adjusted profit attributable to owners of the parent 40,231 38317

Consolidated Pze?alci Pze?wL:

Earnings per share

Basic 247 764

Diluted 2 44 755

Ad)usted basic 791 755

Adjusted diluted 783 746

Basic earmings per share 1s calculated by dmding the profit attnbutable to equity holders of the Cempany by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in1ssue dunng the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held in trust

Adjusted basic earnings per share 1s calculated by adjusting the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the exceptionalitems net of
taxation and dviding this adjusted figure by the weighted average number of ardinary shares in 1ssue during the year excluding erdinary shares
purchased by the Company and held tn trust

Diluted earmings per share 1s calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
ordinary shares The dilutive potential ordinary shares are i the form of share options A calculation has been done to determine the number of shares
that would have been issued assurming the exercise of the share options

13 Share-based payments
The Group had five share based payment schemes {2014 five} in existence during the year ended 31 March 2015 The Group recognised a total
charge of £1 846000 (2014 £1 919 000} in the year relating to equity settled share based payment transactions

Share options and Long-Term Incentive Scheme (LTIS)
Share options including LTIS (issued after 7 Novernber 2002}

Weighted
average
exerqise

price
Options (pence)
Outstanding at the beginning of year and end of year 42189 Nil
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13 Share-based payments continued

The share options induding LTIS, outstanding at 31 March 2015 had o weighted average exerase price of NIl pence and a weighted average remaining
contractual Iife of Nil years {the Directars have assumed all shares will vest at the eariest available date) Optionswere granted at £Nil cost for this eguity
settled scheme No options were granted in the year ended 31 March 2015 The options become exercisable between three and 10 years from grant date
provided that the employee remains in employment, Out of the 42 819 outstanding options (2014 42 189) all were exerasable at 31 March 2015

The assumptions used in the Monte Carlo model for the options outstanding at the beginming of the year are as follows

2006 2005 2004 2003

grant gan giont grant

Share pnce {on date of official grant) {(pence) 659 604 648 543
Exercise price (pence) Nil Nil Nl 568
Expected dividend payments (%) 2 1 Nil NIl
Expected term (years) 3 3 3 65

Share Incentive Plan (SIP}

The SIP 15 open to all employees and offers partnership matching and free shares {the basis depends on the indwvidual s contribution into the scheme)
No performance critena are attached to these matching shares other than an employee must remain employed by the Group for five years fiom the date
of grant to be able to have therr free and matching shares In 2014715, 1 452 145 (2014 1 399 194) matching shares were granted dunng the year

Weighted
average
exercise

price

Number (pence}

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 8269 254 Nil
Granted during the year 1452145 Nil
Lapsed duting the year (2615 169) Nil
Outstanding at the end of the year 7,106,230 Nil

Smart421 Incentive Scheme {S15)

The SIS 1s an equity settled share based payment scheme open to senior management in the Smart421 brand The awards were granted at £NIl cost
on 1 August 2011 and vest dependent on speafic non market performance conditions over a three year performance period The plan s performance
target meosures annual and curmnulative profit before tax of Smart421 Lirmited for the 2012 2013 and 2014 finanaial years On 4 June 2014 the
Remuneration Commitiee agreed that all non market performance measures had been achieved and all awards would vest in full

Weighted
average
exeictse

price

Number (pence)

Qutstanding at the beqginming of year 1500000 Nil
Vested during the year {1494 8%0) Nil
Lapsed duning the year (5110) Nil
Outstanding at the end of the year e Nil

Executive Incentive Plan (EIP)
For the EIP the performance condition was based on the TSR of share price plus dradends paid and was measured on a roling three month basis during o three
year performance penod For further information on the performiance conditions and the vesting of the scherme see the Remuneration report on page 52

Qutstanding at Qutstanding at Far
Aword date releu:’:s :urzg Number du';’eu:f*;'uﬁ: the:\f mw-.r? and relvss:g med'hemyegi {pmsl
EIP awards
24/0772009 2440712013 1 7 480000 — — — 12
24/07/2009 24/07/2013 3 3630000 _ — — n
2410772009 24/0712014 3 1815,000 — — — 1
24/07/2009 2440712014 3 1815000 1017 268 (1,017,268} - 11
19/11/2009 19/11/2073 17 3038 364 —_ —_ — 27
19/11/2009 19/11/2014 17 1519182 -— — — 26
19/11/2009 19/11/2014 17 1519182 906902 (906 902) — 25
25/02/2070 25/02/12004 17 591636 — — — 32
25/02/2010 25/02/2014 17 295818 —_ _ —— 31
25/02/2010 25/02/2015 17 295818 168 478 (168 478) — 30
Total 22,000,000 2,092,648 (2,092,648) —_

The awards have been valued using a Monte Carlo simufation mode!
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13 Share-based payments continued
Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The LTIP 5 an equity settled share based payment scheme open to the Executive Directors and selected senior employees at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee The awards were granted at £Nil cost and vest dependent on TSR performance over a three year performance penod relatve to the TSR performance
of each company within o comparator group For further information on the grants and the performance conditions see the Remuneration report on page 51

Weighted
Number :pgﬁig)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3982093 Nil
Granted dunng the year 1669 640 Nil
Lapsed during the year (512,206) Nil
Qutstanding at the end of the year 5,139,527 Nil
The awards have been valued using a Monte Carte simulation model
The average assumptions used are as follows
Share price at date of grant {pence) 7635
Exercise price {pence) Nl
Volatility (%) 3328
Risk free rate (%) 018
Dividend yield (%) —
14 Goodwill
Consolidated ET&%
Cost
At 31 March 2014 and 2015 85,272
Amounts written off
At 31 March 2014 —
Impairment 33900
At 31 March 2015 33,900
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 51,372
At 31 March 2014 85272

Goodwill acguired in a business combination 1s allocated at the date of acquisition to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that business combenation
The Group tests goodwilt annually for impairment or mare frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired The recoverable amounts
of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions for these value in use calculations are those regarding discount rates
growth rates and forecast cash flows The Directors estmate discount rates using pre tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of maney and the risks specific to the ndvidual CGU Growth rates reflect long term growth rate prospects for the UX economy

The discount sate and growth rate {in perpetuity} used for value in use calculations are as follows

2015 2014
Discount rate {pre tax) % — Group 82 105
Discount rate {pre tax) % - Eclipse Kcom and Smart421 CGUs 20 1M1
Growth rate (in perpetuliy) % — Group 20 20

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts using the current operating budget approved by the Directors which covers a five year penod and an
approprate extrapolation of cash flows beyond thus The cash flow forecasts assume revenue and EBITDA growth in ine with our strategic prionties

At 31 March 2015 before the Group s impairment tests goodwill of £72 324 000 (2014 £72 324,000} was cllocated to the Kcom CGU The Kcom
CGU {which represents principally the Group s Kcom brand) has been affected by the decline of certan traditional legacy activities The estimates
used within our value In use calculation take into account that histortcal expertence and the Board s estimate of future events

The results of our imparrment test Indicated that an imparment of £33 900 000 (2074 ENII) was required The ossumptions within the volue
in use calculation which had the most sigrficant snpact related to movernents in cash flows pre tax discount rate and perpetusty growih rate
The imparment loss anses within the Kcom segment and has been treated as an exceptional item
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Notes to the financial statements continued
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14 Goodwill continued
As a result of this tmparment charge the level of headroom 1s now £Nil and the following changes would therefore impact the remaining carrying
value of the Kcom CGU goodwill

Sensitivity £ 000
0 1% decrease in growth rate {in perpetuity) (1 471)
0 1% increase in the discount rate (pre tax) (1 449)
£1m decrease 1n net cash flows (in perpetuity) {10885)

For the Eclipse and Smart421 CGUs management has considered the level of headroom resulting from the impairment tests ‘Where appropriate
further sensitivity analysis has been performed by changing the base case assumptions cpplicable to each CGU The analysis has indicated that no
reasonably possible changes in any indwidua! key assumption woutd cause the carrying omount of the business to exceed its recoverable amount

Following the Group s imparrment charge the carmying amount of goodwill of £51,372 000 (2014 £85,272,000) 1s allocated aoross multipte CGUs as follows

CGUs £500 £o00
Echpse 7.862 7862
Keom 38,424 72324
Smart421 5,086 5086
At 31 March 2015 51372 85272
15 Other intangible assets Customer

and suppher Technology
Consolidated Notes Et%% Saféw o'g(!! mmmsnggg um? ggg ETgédo
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 4,211 28,547 49257 6294 88303
Additions 587 6474 — — 7061
Own wark capitalised 8 1970 2674 — — 4 644
At 31 March 2014 6768 37,689 49,257 6294 100008
Additions 498 14292 — — 14790
Own work copitalised 8 3128 3850 — —_— 6978
Disposals — (7 666) — —_ (7,666}
Transfers 260 2289 — e 2549
At 31 March 2015 10,654 50,454 49,257 6,294 116,659
Accurnulated amortisation
At 1 Apri 2013 3057 15341 49257 6294 73949
Charge for the year 1328 2062 — - 3390
AL 31 March 2014 41385 17403 49257 6294 77339
Charge for the year 2518 2563 — — 5078
Disposals — (7 666) — — (7 666)
Transfers 377 {372) — — 5
At 31 March 2015 7,277 11,928 49,257 6,294 74,756
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2015 3,377 38,526 — — 41,903
At 31 March 2014 2383 20,286 — — 22 669
At 1 April 2013 1154 13 200 — — 14354

Development costs are predominantly copitalised staff costs assoaated with new products and services

Software costs Indude assets undes development., the most significant of which related to the Group s investment in a new IT system Asat 31 Mardh 2014
the cost of this project was £14 1 million and additions in the year totalled £11 0 mithion The project was completed during the year and the osset is
now being amortised
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Vehidles
appors
Land and Exchange External and
Consolidated Notes bu“fd% equlpemoegé spgltl)-g equmsmoeo% £T8c%
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 15952 200504 153336 35338 405130
Additions 101 6,077 4,371 9817 20366
Own work capitalsed 8 — 349 913 —_ 1262
Disposals (1,159 (2) {(2) (1695) (2858)
At 31 March 2014 14894 206928 158618 43,460 423900
Additions — 4343 5565 6,968 16876
Own work capitalised 8 — 936 433 — 1369
Disposals (163) (622) (147) (5654) (6 586)
Transfers (108) {6,468) 6959 (2932 {2 549)
At 31 March 2015 14,623 205,117 171,428 41,842 433,010
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2013 10777 152739 98575 23769 285860
Charge for the year 391 4 480 7767 4244 16882
Disposals {1002) — — (1679) (2681)
At 31 March 2014 10166 157219 106342 26334 300061
Charge for the year 359 3375 3,069 5230 12033
Disposals {162) (567) {43) {5385) (6157}
Transfers {109) (6 888) 6350 642 (5}
At 31 March 2015 10,254 153,139 115,718 26,821 305,932
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 4,369 51,978 55,710 15,021 127,078
At 31 March 2014 _ 4728 49 709 52276 17126 123839
At 1 Apnl 2013 5175 47 765 54761 11569 119 270

In line with 1ts accounting policy and in ight of market activity relating to network assets, the Group has assessed the appropriateness of the residual
value of Its network assets (held above within external plant) Ths has resulted in tugher residual values and a £4 9 mullion reduction 1n the

depreciation charge for these assets in the year

Asset classes have been reviewed as part of the implementation of @ new accounting system resulting in transfers between categories

17 Investments

Shares In
Consolidated OSSDE%%
Cost

A1 Apnl 2013 22
Share of net loss for the year (2)
At 31 March 2014 20
Share of net profit for the year 13
At 31 March 2015 33
Amounts written off

At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 _—
Net book value

At 31 March 2015 33
At 31 March 2014 20
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17 Investments continued

Shares
subsidiary
undertakings
Parent company £ 000
Cost
At 31 March 2014 and 2015 494,511
Amounts written off
AL 31 March 2014 and 2015 50
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 and 2015 494,461

Subsidiary undertakings {(as at 31 March 2015)

The shares in subsidiary undertakings are held in KCH (Holdings} Limited, an intermediary holding company registered n England In accordance with
Section 410{2)(a} of the Companies Act 2006 the details of the undertakings whose results or finoncial position in the opinien of the Directors
principally affect the figures shown in these accounts are listed below A full list will be appended to the Company s next Annual Return All of the
following companies are indirectly 100% owned by the Company via KCH (Holdings) Limited and are all registered in England

Name of company Business acbivity

Kingston Communications Limited Telecommunications services

Affiriti Integrated Solutions Ltd Supplier of integrated and converged communication services
Kingston Information Services Limited Publication of telephone directories

KC &onmct Centres Limited Prowision of call centre services

Smart421 Limited Prowision of 1T solubons and application service management

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consohdation of the Group

Associates

The Group s assoaate s Smartintegrator Technology Limited in which the Company indirectly holds 50% of the ordinary shares Under an agreement
between the shareholders of Smartintegrator Technology Limited nerther the Group not the shareholders are able to exerase control over the operational
and financial pohcies of Smartintegrator Technology Limited The assoaate 1s registered in England and its main business activity 1s software development

18 Inventories

R 2015 2014
Consohdated E'000 £ 000
Raw matenals and consumables 2,235 2269
Equipment for resale — 378
Total 2,235 2647
There 1s no materal difference between the carrying value and the replacement cost of iInventones
19 Trade and other receivables
Consolidated Parent company
2045 2014 2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Trade recevables (net} 46,082 36 266 — —_
Other receivables 1,382 820 —_ —_
Prepoyments 17,570 19400 s S
Accrued iIncome 13,756 17 649 — —
Total 78,790 74135 5 5

All of the Group s recenvables are due withim one year in both 2015 and 2014, An allowance has been made for estmated imecoverable amounts from the sale of
goods and services of £1 426000 (2014 £1489000) The Directors consider that the canying amount of trade and other recenvables approximate to thewr far value

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade recevables are as follows

2015
£'000
At 1 Apnl 2014 (1,489}
Wnitten off in the year 1,198
Amounts provided for in the year (1.135)
At 31 March 2015 (1,426)

The majonty of the Group s trade and other recevables are denorminated in Sterling
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19 Trade and other recervables continued
Note 27 provides further disclosures regarding the credit nsk of the Group s trade recevables

Asof 31 March 2015 trade recervabtes of £11 928 000 (2014 £5 817 000) were impaired The amount of the prowision was £1 426 000 as of 31 March 2015

(2014 £1 489 000) The ndimvdually imparred recewables mainly relate to custermers who are in unexpectedly difficult economic situations

It was assessed that a portion of the imparred balance 15 expected to be recovered There 18 no concern over the debt not yet due

The ageing of these recevables 1s as follows

2015 2014

£ 000 £ 000

0-3 months 10,222 421
3-6 months 1,706 3,689
6 months + — 1.707
11,928 5817

Asof 31 March 2015 trade receivables of £6 371 000 (2014 £8 994 000) were past due but not impaired These telate to a number of independent

customers of whom there ts no recent history of default The agemng analysis of these trade recevables is as follows

2015 2014
£ 000 £00C
0-3 months 2,719 4720
3-6months 3,652 3756
6 months + — 518
6,371 8994
20 Trade and other payables Corsoindated Porent company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Current N
Trade payables 34,292 40257 —_ —
Other taxes and social secunty costs 6,137 5178 - —
Other payables 7,443 3461 _ —_
Accruals 36,651 53 467 _— -—
Deferred income 28,446 25954 _— —_
Totat 112,969 128317 — —
Non current
Amounts due to subsidiary undertckings —_ — 7,484 2865
Total 112,969 128317 7,484 2865

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The Directors consider that the carrying

amount of current habilities approximates to their farr value

Amaounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are unsecured and have no fixed date of repayment. However the subsidiary undertakings have confirmed
that none of the amounts are due within one year [nterest at market rates 1s charged on amounts due to subsidiary undertakings ofter more than one

year except for amounts due to dormant entities where nil interest 1s charged

¢
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21 Bank loans

Consohdated
2015 2074
£ 000 £ 000

Bank borrowings
Amount falling due

— between two and five years

105,000 85000

Loan 1ssue cosis

105,000 85000
(1,540} (583)

103,460 84417

The toan facility was secured by guarantees given by all matenal subsidianes of KCOM Group PLC in favour of the lending banks

The bank borrowings are fully repayable in June 2019 and attract an interest rate of LIBOR plus a margm dependent on specific covenants For further
information on interest rate swaps see Note 27 The above bank facilities were refinanced in June 2014 See Note 27 for further detail

The farr value of bank borrowings 1 £91 6 muliion {2014 E80 7 mutlon) The fair value of cash fiows has been estimated using a rate based on the

weighted average borrowing rate of 3 2% (2014 39%)

22 Net debt
Consotidated
2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000
Cash 11,701 9441
Bank overdrafts (691) —
Cash and cash equivalents {including bank overdrafts) 11,010 9 441

Borrowings
Finance leases

(103,460}  (84417)

{6,898) —

Total net debt

(99,348) (74976)

Cash and cash equivalents which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet comprise cash at bank short term deposits

and other short term highly iguid investments with matunty of three months or less

23 Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Consoldated

2015 2014

£ 000 £ 000
Finance lease habiliires
MINIMum lease payments .
- within 12 months 1,743 —
-in1to5years 5,506 o

7,249

Future finance charges {351) —
Present value of finance lease habilities 6,398 —_
The present value of finance lease llabibties 1s as follows
—within 12 months 1,743 —_
= 1t05 years 5,155 —
Total 6,898 —
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24 Provisions for other habilities and charges

Onerous

Iieaﬁ Restruc;u[r):(r;g ETS:)%J
At 1 April 2014 S48 242 790
Established in the year —_ 7547 7547
Uulised in the year (139) {5593) (5.732)
At 31 March 2075 409 2,196 2,605
Total provisions for other habitities and charges 2015
Included in current habilities 409 2170 2579
Included in non current habilities — 26 25
At 31 March 2015 409 2,196 2,605
Total provisions for other habilities and charges 2014
Included in curient habilities 149 216 365
Included in non current habilities 399 26 425
At 31 March 2014 548 242 790

Provision has been made for the estimated fair value of unavoidable lease payments on unoccupied bulldings [t 1s expected that these payments will

anse over the next one to three years

The restructurning provision represents the future costs of the Group s ongoing restructuring programme which are committed to at the balance sheet
date The amounts included within current abilities above are expected to be utiised within the next 12 months

25 Deferred taxation assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets/(labilities) are attributable to the following

Assets tabihities Net

Consohdated Ezg;g £28<138 Ezg;g 52% Ezg::g {2383
Praperty plant and equipment 4,175 7978 _ — 4,175 7978
Other iming differences 1,064 2130 —_ — 1,064 2130
Retirement benefit obligation 6,287 5,300 —_ — 6,287 5300
Intangible assets on acquisition 4,766 — - (14} 4,766 (14)
Asset backed partnership —_ — (4,589) {5043) (4,589) (5 043)

16,292 15 408 (4,589} (5057) 11,703 10351

Movements in net deferred tax assets/{habilities) are as follows

Intangihle
Property Other Retirernent assets Asset
plant and ming benefit ansing on backed
egquipment differences obligatien acquisition partnerships Total

Consolidated Notes £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 April 2013 13840 2757 2245 (14) (2 300) 16528
(Charged)/credited to the iIncome statement 10 (5862 (484) 58 — (2900) (9188)
(Charged)/credited directly to equity and other
comprehensive income — (143) 2997 — 157 3,011
AL 31 March 2014 7978 2130 5300 {14) (5043) 10351
(Charged)/credited to the income statement 10 (3803) (510} 87) 4780 — 380
{Charged)/credited directly to equity and other
comprehensive Income — (556) 1074 — 454 972
At 31 March 2015 4,175 1,064 6,287 4,766 {4,589) 11,703

There are £Nil deferred tax assets in the Parent company (2014 £NJl}

The analysis of deferred tax assets 1s as follows

2015 2014

£'000 £000
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 10,185 93806
Deferred tax assets to be recovered withen 12 months 6,107 5602

16,292 15,408
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25 Deferred taxation assets and rabilities continued
The analysis of deferred tax habilities is as follows

2045 2014
£ 000 £ 000
Deferred tax habilities to be recovered after more than 12 months (4,169} (4 603)
Deferred tax abilities to be recovered within 12 months (420) (454)

{4,589) (5057)

The major components of the deferred taxation asset not recognised are as follows |

Not recognised
a
Losses 1,126 1126
Intangible assets ansing on acquisition — 4180

Deferred tax assets refating to property plant and equipment and short term tming differences of £9 2 million {2014 £8 3 mullion) have been
recognised in those subsidiary companies in which there is sufficient avallable evidence that suitable toxable profits wilt anse egainst which these
assets are expected to reverse There are additional deferred tax assets of £1 1 million (2014 £5 3 million) which have not been recognised as there
15 nsutficient evidence as to the generaticn of suitable profits against which these assets can be offset The utilsation of these assets would reduce
the Group s tax charge in future peniods All deferred tox assets and labilities are provided for at the future rate of corporation tax that 1s substantively
enacted ct the balance sheet date being 20% (2014 20%)

26 Called-up share capital

2015 2014
£ 000 £ DDQ
Allotted, called up and fully paid
516603 910 (2014 516 603 910) ordinary shares of 10 pence each 51,660 51 660

During the financial year the Company did not purchase any of its own shares (2014 Mil} however the Company funds Employee Share Trusts

to meetits obligations under the Company s share schemes Durning the year the Trusts purchased 4 170 000 (2014 2043 000) of the Company s
ordinary shares through purchases on the London Stock Exchange For o total cash constderation of £4 058 000 {2014 F1 778 000} in order to meet
future ebhigations under the Company s SIP £1P and LTIP schemes The total amount paid to acquire the shares net of expenses and cash received
for the exercise of share opvions of £4058 000 (2014 £1 764 000) has been deducted from retained earmings

As of 31 March 2015 the total number of ordinary shares held by the Trusts to meet obligations undes the Company s share schemes was
165000 (2014 205 000}

27 Financial instruments and risk management

The Group s prinopal financal instruments dunng the yeor compnised bank loans cash on short term deposits 1nterest rate swaps and forward foreign

exchange contracts The main purpose of these financial instruments 1s to finance the Group s aperations to manage the interest rate nsk ansing from

its sources of finance and to minirmise the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates on future cash flows The Group has vanious other financial

instruments such as short term recewables and payables which anse directly from 1ts operations I

The Group reqularly reviews its exposure to interest liquidity and foreign currency nsk. Where appropriate the Group will take action, n accordance
with a Board approved Treasury policy, to minimuse the impact an the business of movements in interest rates and currency rates

The Group only enters into dervative instruments with members of the banking group to ensure appropriate counterparty credit quality

Liquidity nsk
The Group keeps iis short mediwm and long term funding requirements under canstant rewiew [ts policy 1s to hove sufficent committed funds
available to meet medium term requirements with flexibility and headroom to make minor acquisitions for cash If the epporturity should anse

The Group s bank facilities were refinanced in June 2014 to replace exisung faciiies These bank faciities comprise a multl currency revolving credit

factlity of £200 0 millon provided by a group of five core relationship banks The facility matures in June 2019 The Group considers that this facility I
will provide sufficient funding to meet the organic and inorgamic investment needs of the business In addition short term flexibilty of funding is

availlable under the £10 0 million overdraft facility provided by the Group's cleanng bankers

The net debt position of £75 0 mullion at the beginning of the Ainancial year has increased dunng the year to net debt of £99 3 mullton The Group
generated positive cash flow after investing actvities of £19 2 milkion for the year {2014 £44 0 mulhon)

The table on page 89 analyses the Group s iinancial kabiliies which wall be settled on a net basis into relevant matunty groupings based on the
remaining penod at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date Notional interest is included for the pertod from the year end up to
the contractual maturity date of the debt calculated on the amount of debt drawn down at the year end
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27 Financial instruments and risk management continued
Liquidity risk continued

Less than One to COver
L N
At 31 March 2014
Borrowings 2604 85868 -
Trade and other payables 123,139 — -
Cash flow hedges 137 1669 —_
Totat 125880 87537 —
At 31 March 2015
Borrowings 1734 3465 107,146
Trade and cther payables 106832 - -
Cash flow hedges 706 — —
Finance leases 1743 5155 —
Total 111,015 8,620 107,146
The table below sets out the year end fair value of denvative financial instruments by category 2015 2014
i A
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges - 706 — 1806 -gﬂ
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges 328 —_ — — é
Total 328 706 — 1806 g_~
Less non current posiion g
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges - - — 1669 E
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges - — — —
—_ —_ — 1669
Current portion 328 706 — 137

Interest rate risks

Sterling interest rate swaps were held during the year that fixed approximately 65% (2014 80 %) of the year end net debt excluding finance leases

The welghted average fixed interest rate payable {including margin} was 3 6% {20%4 3 90%) The weighted average rate of current interest rate swaps
in place at the year end was 2 71% (excluding margin) Matunty dates of the current Interest rate swaps are all July 2015 and reflect the forecast profile
of net debt over the peniod The weighted average penod over which the interest rates are fixed 15 0 33 years (2014 1 3 years) [nterest rate exposures
will continue to be hedged in accordance with the Treasury policy

The impact of an increase in interest rates of 100 basis points 1s shown in the table below

2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000
Reduchion/{increase) in profit before tox 327 {150)

The sensitivity of profit before tax s calculated based on floating rate borrowings at the balance sheet date ofter deducting floating rate Ainancial
assets and amounts hedged into fixed rates by interest sate swaps

Fereign currency risk

Cash flow exposure

The Group s only major foreign currency risk anses due to the purchase of equipment invoiced in US Dollars Whenever possible the Group resells this
equipment in US Doltars The remaining exposure s managed principally through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts in order to minimise
the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates on future cash flows and gross margin

The Group also has some Euro cash flows bui these are not matenal on a net basis and are not hedged

Net asset exposure
The Dollar denominated trading descnbed above results in a batance sheet expesure since debtor days are longer than aeditor days [tis the Group s
policy not to hedge this exposure

Credit risk
Credit nisk anses from cash and cash equivalents and denvative financial instruments as well as credit exposures Lo business and retail customers

Credit ratings of institutions which hold the Group 5 financial assets are regularly monitored to ensure they meet the minimum credit critena set by the Board
through the Group Treasury policy At the year end all the nstitutions holding the Group s finanaal assets were rated A /A or higher by Stendard and Poor s

The credit quality of customers is assessed by taking into account their financial position past expenence and other factors Indmdual nsk liruts are
set and the utihsation of credit limits monitored regularly
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27 Financoial instruments and risk maragement continued

Credit nsk continued

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk wath exposure spread over a large number of customers For an analysis of the quality of the
ageing of the Group s trade recevables, see Note 19 for further disclosures

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each dass of recevable mentioned above The Group does not hold
any collateral as security

Currency and interest rate risk profile of inancial assets and financial iabihties

Financal assets

The Group had net finanoial assets of £11 0 millon at the year end (2014 £9 4 million) comprising cash on overnight money market deposits and
cash at bank This attracts floating rates of interest

The currency profile of the Group s financial assets at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 was

2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Currency
Sterling ' 12,052 7955
US Dollar (1,572) 909
Euro 530 577
Total 11,010 9441

Fareign currency cash balances are held on a short-term basis ta fund cash flow requirements in these currencies Al trade recevable balances are held
in sterling and bear no interest There 1s no currency nsk associated with these balances

At the year end £1 3 mullion (2014 E1 3 million) of cash collateral was held by Barclays in respect of @ bank guarantee given under Ofcom s Funds for
Liabilities regulations

Financial abilities
The currency and interest rate nsk profile of the Group s financial borrowings at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 was

2015 2014
Floating Fixed Total Floating Fixed Total
£ Q0! £ 000 E 000 £ 000 E 00D £ 000
Sterling 43,460 60,000 103,460 24417 60000 84417

Undrawn committed borrowing faciities at the year end were £95 0 million (2014 £135 G million)

Interest on arnounts drawn under the committed borrowing faclity 1s based on the relevant LIBOR plus margin Al trade payable balances are held
in sterhng and bear no interest There 15 no currency risk associoted with these balances

Farr values of financial assets and financial habilities

The mark to market value of the interest rate swaps and forward contracts at 31 March 2015 was an asset of £0 4 million (2014 hability of £1 0 rmillon)
Interest rate swaps are accounted for by adjusting the interest cost on the floating debt return The fair value of finanaal assets and financial habilities
1s obtaned from third party sources The movement in mark te market vatue 15 reflected in reserves and 1s shawn in the table below

£ 000
Hedging reserve
31 March 2014 (986}
Moverment in the year 1,428
31 March 2015 a2

The effectiveness of the interest rate swaps was tested quarterly throughout the period and at the year end and all are considered to be effective
cash flow hedges There are nio other significant differences between the fair value of the Group s financial assets end labiliises and thewr book value
IFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following farr value measurement hierarchy

= quoted prices (unadjusted} n active markets for identical assets or iabihttes (level 1)

* inputs ather than guoted prices Incdfuded within leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or habibty esther directly (that s as prices) or indirectly
{that 1s, denved from prices) {level 2) and

= nputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market dota (that 1Is unobservable Inputs) (level 3)
All of the Group s inanaial nstruments fall into hierarchy levet 2
Capital nsk management

The Group s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group s ability to continue as @ going concem, support the growth of the business
and maintan an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

9 O KCOM Group PLC
Annual report and accounts 2014/15




27 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Capital nsk management continued

Consistent with others inthe industry the Group monitors capital on the basis of its geanng ratio This ratio 1s calculated as net debt divided by total capital Net
debt s calculated as total bomowings (nduding current and non-current bosrowings. as shown in the Consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents.

Total capital 1s shown in the table betow and 1s calculated as equity as shown in the Consoldated balance sheet ptus net debt

2015 2014

£ 000 £000

Net debt 99,348 74976
Total equity 68,879 85153
Total capital 168,227 160129

Under the Group s £200 million revolving credit facdity the Group 1s required to comply annually with certain finanaial and non finanaal covenants
The Group 1s required to maintain o minimurm interest cover auo and a maximum net debt to EBITDA ratio Both financial covenants were tested and
cornplied with throughout the year and at the year end The Board momiters both covenant compliance and net debt performance on a regular basis

28 Financial commitments
Authonsed future capital expenditure and finanaal investment amounted to

Censoidated
2015 2014

£ 000 £ 000
Property plant and equipment 750 6354
Intang:ble assels 696 2575
Total 1,446 8929
The Group as lessee
The future aggregate mmimum lease rental commitments under nen cancellable operating leases were as follows

Consoldated

2015 014

£ 000 £ 000
Leasehold buildings
—withirt 12 months 3363 3871
—in 1 to 5 years 9,094 2600
—after 5 years 6,412 7217
Totat 18,869 20 688
Plant and equipment
—within 12 months 1,183 899
—In 1to 5 years 487 1618
Total 1,670 2517

None of the Group's lease arrangements include any contingent rent payments and there are no renewal or purchase options or escalation dauses
There are also no restnctions imposed by the Group s leose arrangements

29 Retirement benefit obligation — consolidated

Defined centribution schemes

The Company operctes defined contnbution schemes which are open to all eligible employees Contributions charged to the income statement
in respect of defined contribution schemes amounted to £3 9 milhon (2014 £3 9 mullion)

Defined benefit schemes

The principal defined benefit schemme at 31 March 2015 was the Kingston Commurnications Penston Scheme which 1s a funded scheme and provides
defined benefits based on final pensionable salary The assets of the scheme are held separately from the assets of the Group in Trustee adrministered
funds The Company operctes afso a second funded defined benefit scheme the Kingston Communications {Data) Pension Scheme Both schemes are
closed to both new members and future accrual

The defined benefit schemes are operated in the UK under the same regulatory frameworks Both of the schemes are final salary pension schemes
which provide benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life The jevel of benefits provided depends on members
length of senvice and thesr salary in the final years lecding up to retirement. In the schemes pensions in payment are generally updated in ine with
the retail price index In addimion to this inflationary risk the schemes face the same risks as descnbed below

All of the benefit payments are from Trustee administered funds Plan assets held in trusts are governed by tocal regulations and practice as is the
nature of the relationstup between the Group and the Trustees (or equivalent) and their composition Responsibility for governance of the plans
— incdluding investment decisions and contsbution schedules — lies jointly with the Group and the Trustees The Trustees must be composed of
representatives of the Group and scheme participants in accordance with the scherme s regulations
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2015

29 Retirement benefit obligation = consolidated continued

Parent company

KCH (Holdings) Limited a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent 1s responsible for all obhigations and liabilities of the schemes An equivalent liatuhity
has been provided in the accounts of KCH (Holdings) Limited

The Parent company provides ¢ guarantee to both defined benefit schernes whereby if KCH {Holdings} Limited 1s unable to meet its obigations to the
schermes such obligatons would be met by the Parent company No llability has been recagnised in respect of the guarantee at 31 March 2015 (2014 £Nil)

Mast recent valuations
The most recent formal valuation for the Kingston Communications Pension Scheme was at 31 March 2014 The main long term finanaal
assumptions used in that valuation were

Per gnnum
Rate of return on scheme assets 390
Rate of future salary inflation 290

The most recent formal valuation for the Kingston Communications {Data) Pension Scheme was at 31 March 2014 The main long-term fAnancial
assumpttons used in that valuation were

Per annum
%
Rate of return on scheme assets 410
Rate of future salary inflation 290
Funding
Asset backed partnership

On 24 March 2014 the Group reached an agreement with the Trustees to provide further funding of the Schemes curent deficit position through the
asset backed Partnership { the Partnership ) that had been previously established dunng the year ended 31 March 2013

As pan of this agreement a loan note of £20 0 million was secured over the KC network asset The secunity does not offer the Trustees any ‘normat nghts
of enforcement over the assets Instead it provides first pnonty payment of any value that would be realised from the KC network o an insolvency event

As partner in the Partnership the pension schemes are entitled to an annual income distribution of £1 6 million, nising in ine wath the Consurner Price
Index (CPI} {capped at 5% ) over a potential period of 15 years The total value of this income distribution to the Schemes 1s £16 0 million which
prowded an immediate improvement to the funding deficit.

Under IAS 19 the investment held by the pension schemes in the Partnership does not represent ¢ plan asset for the purpase of the Group s consolidated
accounts The distnbution of the Partnership s profits to the pension schermes is reflected as pension contnbutions in these Group accounts on a cash basis

Employer contnbutions for the year ended 31 March 2015
The disclosures (n the table below are for the two schermes combined

Contributions nto the two defined benefit schemes durning the year were as follows

2015 2014

£ 000 £000

Deficlt payments 4,270 788
Existing committed defiait recovery payments due over the financial year ending 31 March 2016 are £2 0 million

Matn finanaial assumptions

2015 2014

per annum perannum

% %

RPI inflation 295 340

CPLinflation 195 240

Rate of increase to penstons N payment 200 240

Discount rate for scheme habilisies 325 430

Qur central approach 1s to base the discount rate on the AA yield curve published by Memil Lynch, over an 18 year duration for the schemes

The mortality assumpttons are based on standard mortality tables, which allow for future Improvements in ife expectancy The effects of these tables are that,

» a future pensioner aged 65 at retirement wilk tive on average to age 89 4 (2014 89 0) if they are male and on average to age 91 8 (2014 91 2)
if they are female and

» acurreni pensioner aged 65 will live on average to age 877 {2014 871}« they are male and on average to age 89 9 (2014 89 1) if they are fernale

The defined benefit cbligation reflects the assumption that 20% {2014 20%) of deferred members will transfer out of the scheme over its ife Where
such transfers take place the value of such transfers 1s assumed to be 0% (2014 0%} above the current 1AS 19 value for indmdual members
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29 Retirement benefit obhigation — consolidated continued
Main financial assumptions continued

The key assumptions used for 1AS 19 are discount rate mflation and mortahty The sensitivity of the retirement benefit obhigation defiat to changes

in the assumpiions is as follows

Impact on the retirement benefit obligation

Sensibvity Of incsease Of decrease
RPI nflation 01% 73% {70%)
Discount sate for scheme labihities 01% {(143%) 146%
Mortality 1 year 19 7% {200%)

The sensitivity analysis in the table above 15 based on a change In an assumption while holding afl other assumptions constant In practice thisis

unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assurnptions may be correlated When calculating the sensitinty of the retirement benefit obligation
deficit te sigreficant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit liability calculated with the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting penod} has been applied as when calculating the retrement benefit obligation deficit recogrused in the Group

balance sheet

Fair value of assets

Value at Value at
o

Equities 37,701 34300
Hedge funds 51,480 45,000
[ndex inked gilts 59,465 26,200
Corporate bonds 34,550 41300
Other 25,586 44300
Total fair value of assets 208,782 191 100
History of asset values defined benefit obligation deficit in scheme and expernience gains and losses Restatad!

izg:x:; Ezgt])‘d 523(113 Ezgéé 52&‘)(‘1
At 31 March
Present value of defined benefit obligation (240,217) (217600} (203300) (199377) (175716)
Fair value of plan assets 208,782 191100 193542 185491 168789
Deficit {31,435) {26 500) (9758) (13886) (6927)
Experience gains/{losses) on plan assets 14,607 (3130} 7715 {2 860) {507)
Experlence {losses)/gains on plan habilities (21670) (13500 (3010) {22606} 3201

1 The comparative results have been restated for changes in [AS 19 {Employee benefits)

The Group employs a building block approach in determining the long term rate of return on pension plan assets Historical markets are studied and
assets with higher volatility are assumed to generate higher returns consistent with widely accepted capital market principles

Reconcihation of funded status to balance sheet

2015 2014
£ 000 £ 000
Faw value of assets 208,782 191,100
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (240,217)  (217.,600)
Liabihty recogmsed on the balance sheet (31,435} (26 500)
Analysts of iIncome and expenditure charge
- adrminisiration expenses 500 500
— finance costs 1,067 400
Charge recognised in the income statement 1,567 900
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Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2015

29 Retirement benefit obligation - consolidated continued
Fair value of assets continued
Reconciliation of funded status to balance sheet continued

2015 2014
£ 000 £000
Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obligation during the year
Operung defined benefit obligation 217,600 203,300
Finance costs 9,182 2100
Remeasurements ansing from changes in finangial assumptions 22170 12,400
Remeasurements arising from changes (in demographic assumptions (500) 1100
Net benefits paid out (8,235) (8 300)
Closing defined benefit obligation 240,217 217 600
2015 2014
£ 000 £000
Changes to the far value of scheme assets
Opening fair value of assets 191,100 193542
Finance sncome 8.115 8700
Adrministration expenses (500) (500)
Asset backed partnership expenses {375) —
Remeasurerments 14,407 {3130}
Contributions by the employer 2,270 788
Deficit repair payments 2,000 —
Net benefits paid out (8,235) {8 300)
Closing fair value of ossets 208,782 191100

30 Other commitments and contingent habilities

Contingent liabiliies existed at 31 March 2015 and at 31 March 2014 in respect of guarantees given by the Parent company on behalf of subsidiary

undertakings together with contingencies arising in the normal course of the Group s business in respect of overdraft faciities None of these

guarantees are considered matenal in the context of the net assets of the Group

31 Related party transactions
Remuneration of key management personne!

The semuneration of the Directars who are the key management personne! of KCOM Group PLC, 1s provided in the audited port of the Directors

Remuneration report on pages 42 to 57 and forms part of these financial statements

Intra-Group transactions

Amounts payable by the Company to subsidianes totalled £7 5 million (2014 £2 9 millon) as at 31 March 2015
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Five year summary of consolidated figures
as at 31 March 2015

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Income statement (total operations)
Revenue 347984 370697 372869 387316 395412
EBITDA before exceptional stems 74,304 75291 74862 77875 75963
Group operating profit before exceptional items 57,193 55019 55250 57770 48 631
Profit after taxation before exceptional items? 44,093 38317 37395 37727 28624
Profit after taxation (reported) 12,544 318 770 35845 37,727 22621
Balance sheet
Non current assets 236,678 247208 235446 239639 242272
Current assets (excluding cash) 81,353 76782 72510 75530 72643
Current habilities {(excluding finance leases and overdrafts) (118,754) (130210} {123592) (146367) {151154)
Net debt {incleding finance leases) {99,348) {74976) (88218) (75267) (81,996)
Prowisions and other non current habilives (excluding finance leases) {36,050) (33651) (13504) {20078) (8871)
Total equity 63,879 85153 82642 73457 73194
Movement in debt
Net cash flow from
— gperating activities 50,779 71266 50309 55994 68009
— capial expenditure (32,022) (27912) (27996) (22148) (13948)
- interest (5,574) {4 436) (4 006) {7363} (8574)
—equity dividends pard {26,057) (23764) (21,387) (19786) (12140)
- other (11,498} {1912) (9.871) 33 1452
{Increase)/decrease in net debt (24,372} 13242 (12951} 6,730 34799
Ratios and other key information
Average number of employees 1,776 1907 1886 1792 1801
EBITDA before exceptional items to revenue { %) 214 203 200 201 192
Group operating profit befere exceptional items to revenue (%) 164 148 148 149 123
Basic earnings per share (pence) 247 764 708 741 444
Dividend per share relating to the finarncal year (pence) 537 488 444 400 360

1 Induding the tex impact of exceptional items
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Financial statements

Shareholder information

Analysis of ordinary shareholders
{at 31 March 2015 by category)

Number of Number of % of
holders shares copital
Private shareholders 53263 50919 389 S 86
insurance company 0 0 000
Investment trust 5 108 001 002
Pension fund 0 0 000
Nominee companies 1117 381650379 7388
Limited company 71 787131 015
Bark and bank nominees 15 82763826 1602
Other institutions 14 375184 007
Total 54,485 516,603,910 100 00
Financial calendar
Annual General Meeting 31 July 2015
Half year results announcement (provisioncl) 25 Noverber 2015
Finat results announcement (provisional) 10 June 2016

Information relating to beneficial owners of shares with ‘information nghts’

Please note that beneficial owners of shares who have been norminated by the registered holder
of those shares to receve information rights under Section 146 of the Companies Act 2006
are required to direct all communications to the registered holder of therr shares rather than
to the Group's registrar Capita Asset Services or to KCOM Group PLC directly
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Company information
Registered office
KCOM Group PLC

37 Cars Lane

Hull HU1 3RE

Registered in England and Wales

Company number
2150618

Investor relations
KCOM Groug PLC
37 Carr Lane
HullHU1 3RE

Emall investor relations@kcom com
Tel 01482 602711
Website www kcornplc corn !

Corporate responsibility
KCOM Group PLC

37 Carr Lane

Hull HU1 3RE

Advisors

Independent auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and

Statutory Auditers

Benson House

33 Welington Street |
Leeds LS1 4IP !

Registrar

Copita Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenhamn Road
Beckenham

KentBR3 4TU

Erncul
shareholderenquines@capita co uk
Tel 0871 664 0300 (calls cost

10 pence per minute plus network
extras lines are open

900am — 5 30prm Monday — Frday)
Website

www capitaassetservices com

Financial advisors
Barclays

1 Churchill Place
Canary Wharf
London E14 5HP

Peel Hunt

Moor House

120 London Road
London EC2Y SET
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